PENINSULA TOWNS

13235 Center Road, Traverse City MI 49686
Ph: 231.223.7322 Fax:231.223.7117
www.peninsulatownship.com

PENINSULA TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
May 23, 2024
7:00 p.m.
Call to Order
Pledge
Roll Call

Approve Agenda
Brief Citizen Comments (For Agenda Items Not Scheduled for Public Hearing)

Conflict of Interest
Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: Planning Commission Regular Meeting, May 7, 2024.
8. Business
a. Special Use Permit (SUP) #123 Peninsula Shores PUD, Amendment #5 — Public Hearing (Waters
Edge Drive and Shoreline Court)
b. Draft Master Plan — Review of Redlines and Existing Land Use Map
9. Reports and Updates
a. Special Use Permit (SUP) #138 Old Mission Lavendar Farm, Amendment #1 - Withdrawn
10. Public Comments
11. Other Matters or Comments by Planning Commission Members

12, Adjournment

NouhLhwNR

Peninsula Township has several portable hearing devices available for audience members. If you would
like to use one, please ask the clerk.

N

Jenn Cram, Director of Planning and Zoning
Posted: May 20, 2024, 8:15p.m..







Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

™

Lo

PENINSULA TOWNSHIP

13235 Center Road, Traverse City MI 49686
Ph: 231.223.7322 Fax: 231.223.7117 www.peninsulatownship.com

PENINSULA TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
May 7th, 2024, 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order by Hall at 7:00 p.m.
Pledge
Roll Call
Present: Alexander, Beard, Dloski, Hall, Hornberger, Shipman, and Cram, Director of Planning and
Zoning
Absent: Shanafelt, excused
Approve Agenda
Shipman moved to approve the agenda as presented with second by Alexander.
Motion passed by consensus
Brief Citizen Comments (For Agenda Items Not Scheduled for Public Hearing): none
Conflict of Interest: none
Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: Planning Commission Regular Meeting, April 2, 2024
Shipman suggests changing “cited” to “sited” in minutes, but is unable to find the location of the
error.
b. Correspondence from Judy Spencer
Dloski moved to approve consent agenda as noted with second by Alexander.
Motion passed by consensus

Business

a. Special Use Permit (SUP) #123 Peninsula Shores PUD, Amendment #5 - Continued
Discussion
Cram: Thanks for participating in the site visit prior to the meeting. Although much is learned by
viewing plans, seeing how it relates to the site by seeing things on the ground is very helpful.
Mentions that Kyle (O’Grady) was meant to attend the meeting but seemed to have misunderstood.
The discussion was kept on the agenda so that the Planning Commission could ask further questions
or request more information after the site visit.
Hall: Does anyone have any comments or questions.

Dloski: | do. | don’t quite understand why putting more units at the north end of this development
is a good idea when we had such a problem with one unit. Now we’re going to put units up there. |



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

just don’t get it. | think the first plan where they had Unit #41 at the bottom was a better plan. I'm
not getting it. 'm sorry. | don’t think...they gave us this about moving these units over - | don’t think
they’re buildable to begin with. If you look at it there’s the drop off - it’s so severe - | don’t know
how they’re going to build units there. So, I’'m not sure what’s going on here.

Hall: Larry - the drop off where?

Dloski: Units 27, 30..24 on the west side - east side - of the plan. Driving up the hill on the east side,
or right hand side - they’re not developed and they were trying to move - remember - move those
units up a little bit?

Hornberger: Unit 27 is not being moved.

Dloski: I'm not saying it is, I'm just saying 1 don’t know how they’re ever going to build there. You've
been out there. You see how far it drops off and how fast it drops off. But regardless of that, what is
the drill about putting two more units at the north end when we had such a controversy with one?
Why is this such a great plan?

Cram: Well, | think, Larry - first of all - it would have been helpful if you were with us on this site
visit...

Dloski: | visited the site. | was there today. I've been there twenty times. I've ridden my bicycle up
and down fifteen times. | don’t have to be at a site visit with twenty people to know what | see.
Cram: Okay. So, | didn’t see the same concerns with the drop off, having been out on the site today
and seeing the staking of existing lot lines and proposed lot lines. | don't think it is for the staff or
for the Planning Commission to say what makes this a better plan. We have to review...the applicant
has the ability - the right - to come in and request an amendment to their PUD site plan and SUP.
Our job is to review that request with the Zoning Ordinance to make sure that it meets the
standards. So, seeing it out in the field today, | think it helped me to understand how the future
homes - if this plan were approved - would be sited, where the center was, you could see how it fit
on the land. That helped me because originally, we had talked at the introduction about there being
a concern about the steepness of this area on the west side of the property and now going out
there you can see that there's really kind of a flat area - a crest. The trees were marked along the
perimeter of the existing forested area that would need to be removed, but generally speaking, |
have less of a concern about the grade and the steepness of that. That slope has lots of vegetation
to retain it. So, that was helpful, but | guess, to answer your question: it is the applicant's
prerogative to come in and request an amendment. He explained out in the field why they thought
this was a betterment, and the reason that he gave was that when you go out there you stand in
this area [using curser to show the area on the screen], preserving the open space where existing
units eleven and twelve currently are was a positive. He's maintaining the same number of units
that were originally approved, so the density isn’t increasing, the open space remains increases
slightly, and so it's his prerogative to rearrange things, and we have to determine whether or not it
meets the standards.

Alexander: While | would agree with you on some of the things, like the open space down in 11 &
12 - I really liked that - one of the things that Susie and | were thinking about when we were down
there is that not all the houses are built yet, so there are some spaces in between that are going to
be built, so that might impede the view a little bit. 1did like the idea of them being able to use that,
have more visibility, like if they're bringing their boats and their trailers down and that turnaround
now will be clearer and it will increase that visibility. As to Lot 41, | do have some concerns about
steepness there. Walking around and looking at it was very hard for me to visualize where they
were gonna site the house. Looking at the stakes way down in the woods, | wasn’t crazy about that
steepness. Up at the top - when we looked at putting those two units in - the concern about where
exactly is the front door going to be and how would they site that. Locking at Unit 11 and what the



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

setbacks would be, because | personally prefer that the front door face the street and that you have
that 30 foot set back instead of a shorter one. And then there was that crest on the slope to the
east side. | thought there was a little bit of a slope there and | was kind of concerned about that,
too.

Cram: Clarifies which lot/area Julie is referring to.

Alexander: There's kind of that ridge up there, then there's the slope down. And so when you
looked at where the corners were in the setbacks of the lot | had trouble seeing - you know there's
like this rise there - how are they gonna site the house, and how are they gonna alleviate erosion
there.

Hall: Asks for any other comments.

Shipman: I'll run through my thoughts post-site visit. Walking around and sort of talking about the
footprint of the actual home structures was most informative for me to get a good sense. When |
look at the lines on the map and | think about something going right up against a line that causes
me grief.

Cram: Asks for clarification on the site Shipman is referring to.

Shipman: I'm not talking about anything specifically yet, I'm talking generally that it was helpful to
be out there and have a sense of how a structure would be built on each of these parcels. For
instance, the one Julie was talking about - Lot 11 - at first | was quite concerned that the patch of
forest that he has listed there as common open space would be kind of further decimated. But it
appears to be essentially maintained right where it drops off, so that gave me a level of comfort.
You know, | was in opposition to the previous request for an amendment, largely for the addition of
the unit so for me, | see this as more just adjusting within the site. Also being on site, at the bottom
of the slope there at the junction of Shoreline Court and Waters Edge Drive, | did appreciate that
open space. Across the road, the house that isn't built on the opposite corner, and then having a
house right there - opposite it on Shoreline Court - being there on site, it felt like that would be very
congested. Tight almost. | have an appreciation for there being the relief in a community of some
open space, so | do appreciate that there. I'm gonna go back up to 11 and 12. Because those are
both smaller lots compared to what was proposed for Unit 1 in the last approved plan. | wanted to
look at that eastern corner of unit eleven and look at where the forest was and look at what the
impacts were there. My concerns were a little bit allayed. Now | know it's two structures but | also
saw the size of the trees that are currently there. The trees are very large, and the ones in the
middle are going to grow up, so that’s really sufficient for that buffer. That boundary where we
have the 15 foot versus the 30 foot - rear yard, side yard - he’s got it off to the west with a 30 foot,
and | believe that that should be 30 feet going to the north. My only concern there is what that
might mean for the lot and fitting the structure in there, but | think that's his problem. | do think
that's just more appropriate. It seems a little bit disingenuous to put it where he put it - sort of
pinched off there when clearly the back is that northerly line. Then coming back up to the
turnaround - the cul-de-sac at the top of the hill - my main concern there was the forest off to the
west, and that line that drops down further than the current approved plan. Being there and
standing there and talking about that and how they would site the house | don't feel that there
would be any benefit and there was no stated desire to go down that slope whatsoever. Given that
my concerns about that particular site are pretty well allayed. | know the front of those - as Julie
was mentioning - it’s somewhat steep but that's just what that development is. No one, including
the developer, wants to see that having a whole bunch of erosion, so | know they're going to take
care of it. He mentioned that they were going to revegetate that slope and make sure there wasn't
an issue. Turning around at the end - when we finished the site visit - you could actually see the
view from Boursaw into where there would now be more open space. | don't know once it's all built



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

out how much that will really be impactful but | did know that it was true you could see that it
would be more open from the public road.

Hall: Good comments. Anyone else?

Hornberger: My one basic point that has not been covered by everybody else and sort of was
touched on by. Susie is: | think any normal, sane person that looks at Unit 11, if you were to ask
them, what is the rear it would not be that little jog, it would be the part that faces away from the
street and | think that if and when he is given approval to have these, that, we are very adamant
that it is that 30 foot rear set back there and then it's his problem how he's gonna build it.

Hall: Jenn, would you mind talking to that point about the amount of setback for Unit 11? We’re
talking about either a fifteen foot or a thirty foot setback from the northerly boundary. For Unit 29,
what is the setback there from the northerly boundary?

Cram: That is fifteen feet.

Hall: Can you speak to this question that’s being raised?

Cram: Sure. Setbacks are specific to the underlying zone district and because this underlying zoning
still applies even though Kyle’s gone through the PUD/SUP processes. As such, the required rear
yard setback is thirty feet and the required side yard setback is fifteen feet. it is interesting that unit
29 does the bend. Susie helped me to see something. They chose to put the rear property line along
the bluff to pull those structures further away from the bluff. Because it's a funky lot, | can see why
there was some confusion on what was the side and the rear. Common planning practice is that
your front yard is usually adjacent to the road or where you take access. Because Lot 11 will take
access from Waters Edge Drive this line right here is the front [uses curser to show location on the
screen]. Common with planning and zoning, the rear is opposite the front. Lot 11 is shaped
differently than Lot 29, it doesn't have the L shape, and so in my determination | would call this the
front, the east: the side, the north: the rear, and then this would be another side yard setback and
another side.

Dloski: If they are allowed to build this will they need setback variances?

Cram: They shouldn’t. | would hope that we would look at that and if the recommendation from the
Planning Commission - and as a staff person, that is my recommendation to all of you, and | will
provide you with background on that in the findings of facts and conditions - but if you agree and
say that as a condition of approval that needs to be a rear yard. It might be helpful for Kyle to do a
little design study to make sure. | think that it was also helpful for us that Kyle had that staked out in
the field and | got a photo of it. He knew that there was a concern, he was ready to address it. He
showed where the 15 foot setback would be, and he showed where the 30 foot setback would be.
What would happen then is the house gets pushed a little closer to the road, which, from a property
value standpoint maybe isn't as desirable, but would still allow him to do a reasonable sized home
with those setbacks. This is based on looking at it out in the field and where the property lines were.
Hall: Jenn, what would be the policy reason for a zoning ordinance to have a larger rear yard
setback than a side yard setback?

Cram: The purpose of setbacks is, first and foremost, for safety. To allow for emergency access for
fires and things like that. That's why you want separation of buildings. And then your rear yard
setback is generally larger for privacy. Your backyard is where you have your patio, your pool...other
private things and so generally speaking, you see larger rear yard setbacks and side setbacks for
privacy and separation of uses.

Shipman: As he was standing there showing us the 15 feet, I'm looking at how close the growing
trees are. | mean, it honestly didn't seem feasible to have a house there. It looked pretty tight.
Dloski: | still have one question: why is this plan better than the SUP that he had proposed initially,
where he had Lot 41 down at the southern end.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Hornberger: | don’t think that it’s up to us to decide better or worse, as it is to decide different but
okay. And to me, this is different but okay because he’s creating an open space at the corner of
Waters Edge and one | can’t read which was not there before. That doesn’t necessarily make it
better but it’s a different good. Before it was like the plan was to eke out space at the rear of these
houses, which seemed worse. This just moves an open space to an area that gives you certain
advantages in terms of moving boats in and out, of being able to see it from Boursaw...I think it’s as
good as what he had before.

Cram: Just to be clear, Peninsula Shores SUP #123 - when we all worked together, | think before
Kevin was on the commission - we worked together through Amendment #3, and that allowed
moving Lot 1 from the southeast corner to the northeast corner, and then Amendment #4 came
before you and that was a proposal to shift units from the bluff and add another unit of density. The
recommendation that came from the Planning Commission to the Board was a recommendation of
denial. The Planning Commission found that, based on the Zoning Ordinance, that it did not meet all
of the standards. So, that recommendation was moving to the Board and then Kyle paused it and is
coming in now to look at Amendment #5. So, depending on what the Planning Commission decides,
Kyle will have to make a decision - does he move forward with #4 or #5 and withdraw one officially.
Alexander: In any answer to your response, Larry, | don’t think it’s necessarily that one is better
than the other. One of the things we ask builders is to be creative and come up with solutions to
issues, and | think this is a creative solution - or a creative proposal. The thing that makes me lean
toward considering it more carefully is the fact that he’s not increasing the density. We're getting
more open space. We’re not increasing septic systems.

Cram: Confirms that no additional septic systems are occurring as part of this proposal.

Alexander: So, since we’re not adding any more, I'd say that these are very comparable.

Dloski: My only concern was the neighbors to the north and | don’t think this is a better plan for
them.

Alexander: | understand that. That’s another reason to look at a thirty foot setback as you’re talking
about privacy. Again, does the builder have the legal right to do this? Does the ordinance support
the builder being able to, whether we think it’s better for the neighbor or not.

Dloski: Why didn’t we take this philosophy when we wanted to build that unit? We had 17 public
hearings and everybody was going around in circles for that one unit, and we agreed. Now we’re
putting two more up there and everybody’s happy.

Hall: Let’s not worry too much about history.

Dloski: History is part of this.

Hall: Larry, your point is well taken and there are other points too that are well taken. If people feel
strongly that there are problems with this, that it doesn’t comply with the ordinance or that there
are aspects that create serious consequences for neighbors, risk of hilltop collapse or something, we
should air those. If not, then | think the only consensus is that we would like to see a thirty foot rear
yard setback applied to Unit 11.

Hornberger: My opinion about Unit 11 is that if there is not a thirty foot setback, | probably would
not vote to approve it because it is a rear yard.

Hall: Jenn has explained the public policy reason for the rear yard setbacks and 1 find that
persuasive here.

Beard: We're all on record as to our support or objections to Amendment #4 and we all articulated
the reasons why we think it (applied?} with the zoning code. Amendment #5 needs to be considered
on it's own merits against those same standards. Comments are broken into categories here: what
do | like about #5: the applicant stayed with 41 lots to the original approval and was consistent
through this; it does increase open space for the betterment of the residents there slightly; it does



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

not increase the density; it opens up some square footage on that intersection to improve sightlines
and aesthetics. What | don’t like or what I’'m concerned about is: what are now numbered lots 1 and
41 at the south end of the cul-de-sac are still smaller than any other lots up on the hill, so that’s not
consistent with the rest of the development. The other place where the lots are smaller is down by
the shore but not up on the hill. 11 and 12 - I don’t think this discussion about fifteen or thirty yard
setbacks or what constitutes a side or rear yard is a trivial discussion. This can affect all kinds of
future developments and regardless of what previous zoning administrators determined at some
point, | think we need a legal interpretation although | agree with Jenn and her interpretation. If
that’s the case, the north lot line does need to have a thirty foot setback. The other thing that
concerns me about 11 is just that odd shape. How difficult it's going to be to construct something in
that envelope. I’'m sure the developer is creative and will come up with something. At our
walkthrough today, he pointed to property across the street and it’s layout and suggested we
imagine that flipped and put on Lot 11. Might work, | don’t know. I'm concerned about that because
the minute you put a pentagon up there you get into an arm wrestling match about defining your
rear yards and side yards and open this can of worms. It should really be much more
straightforward than that, making the fifteen and thirty feet much easier to calculate.

Alexander: One more point to raise. | realize that this is a really emotional decision for those
homeowners, and it was difficult. We wrestled with it to see if it meets the ordinance and do we
like it. | really struggled with that. | have to keep reminding myself that it’s not my personal
preference that I’'m voting. It's “does it meet the standard” and | have to be more objective about
that.

Dloski: What standards are we looking at?

Alexander: Just saying “does it follow the ordinance?” “Does it do what the ordinance says?” “Is it
legal?”

Dloski: | understand that, but we had a wrestling match about the standards and how do they apply
and do they apply to one unit? This whole thing is up in the air.

Alexander: | think what Kevin was saying is (we can’t worry about) what planners have done befare.
We must look at where we are right now. We have an excellent planner and we have to meet that
standard. Regarding the setbacks, | must agree with you, Donna, if it were fifteen feet | would say
no.

Dloski: | would feel a lot more comfortable if we could articulate the standard.

Cram: We have to follow the standards and the zoning ordinance to approve an amendment to a
special use permit, as well as...so, per Section 6.8 of the zoning ordinance schedule of regulations
we look at setbacks, lot coverage, and all of those things. Our engineering firm, GFA, is reviewing all
of the calculations that Kyle and his team have provided to make sure that the lot coverage still
meets the requirements of not exceeding 15% of the total area. All of that is being confirmed. We
talked about the setbacks. Section 6.8 clearly says that the rear is 30 feet, the side is 15 feet, the
front is 30 feet, so we look at all of those things. Do they have adequate water and sewage
disposal? Yes. Nothing is changing with this proposal. Then we go through all of those standards in
Section 8.1.3, that we go through in the findings of fact. Those are the standards that we are using.
Currently, our zoning ordinance is not set up to distinguish between a brand new special use permit
or if this is an amendment, so we use the same standards right now for both.

Dloski: One question, Jenn. Is one of the standards a benefit to the community?

Cram: Yes.

Dloski: How can we determine that this is a good benefit to the community? The community that
we’re concerned about are the property owners to the north.

Hall: They’re part of the community.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Cram: They are one lot.

Dloski: But they’re the ones that are being directly affected, so in my mind, they’re the community.
So, is this a benefit to the community?

Hall: My view is that that’s overly narrow. | wouldn’t restrict it like that. | think that they are part of
the community. The property owners to the north have been consistently against anything up there
and they’re just part of the community.

Alexander: So it says: the community as a whole. (That language is agreed upon.)

Hornberger: To me, having a thirty foot setback between Unit 11 and their cul-de-sac meets the
requirement that it is okay for them. They may not think so, but according to our ordinance it’s
okay.

Shipman: Addresses Jenn. Where 11 and 12 are sited, is that formerly 1? Was that in Amendment
#3? Was it thirty feet from the north?

Cram: Yes. I'm pretty sure. (Checks plans.) Yes.

Shipman: So, thirty feet from the north. For me, that was an amendment where | wanted to go look
at the site. | wanted to see what the exposure was to the northerly neighbors, and to have that
setback was important to me which made me feel confident it was how that was (thirty feet). Also,
that the buffer is what put it over the edge. | didn’t see any additional impacts as being substantial
to the point of concern. The way that the topography is, the big buffer there...seems like there’s a
lot of protection especially because on the cul-de-sac at the southeast corner it's all wooded, as far
as where the property line extends to the east.

Beard: It's too bad that Mr. O’Grady isn’t here but Jenn, maybe you know the answer for this: for
those two lots up there - 11 and 12 - is the infrastructure already in? Sewer lines? Electrical?

Cram: | would have to look to see and ask Kyle. | can't remember if those two lots connect to the on
site or to the community septic system, or if they're proposed to be individual.

Hornberger: It says here it's proposed to be individual, so they are probably not there yet.

Beard: All right. Thank you.

Hall: Asks for any further comments.

Cram: | will recommend that Kyle listen to the recording on YouTube so that he can hear this
firsthand. | have taken copious notes. I've heard you. With that, this has been scheduled for a public
hearing on Thursday, May 23rd. It will be a special meeting of the Planning Commission for the
public hearing. That public notice has gone out.

b. Special Use Permit (SUP) #134 First Congregational Church, Amendment #1 - Introduction
Cram: The First Congregational Church SUP #134 was approved by the board on January 14th, 2020.
A copy of the approved findings of facts and conditions were attached in your packet as Exhibit #2.
The original approval of that SUP included the construction of a 5,600, square foot addition to the
northwest corner of the existing building, new patio, outdoor park, and play area along with
relocating an existing pavilion. First Congregational Church would like to add on to the outdoor park
and play area, including a play structure, swing set, shade structure, and fencing to enclose the
expansion area consistent with existing fencing. A copy of the application was included in your
packet for review. The site plan is really easy to understand because they showed the whole site
and then a blow up of the site. | will recommend that prior to public hearing we do a site visit to
look at it on the ground. The applicant, Mike Wills, is here and can fill you in on anything that | may
have missed. He did prepare this wonderful PowerPoint for you.

Wills: My name is Mike Wills, at 110 Fairway Hills Drive, Traverse City, Ml and I'm a member of
First Congregational Church, and t am the Chair of the Infrastructure Committee. With me is Bill
Myers. Bill is the Chair of the Community Children’s Center which is really what's driving this. The



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Community Children Center is a daycare center within the church proper. It's a division of the
church but it serves the entire community so this is not restricted to church members' children, it's
open to the public. With the addition that we just completed a year - two years ago - we were able
to double that space to expand their service to the community with increasing enroliment from
about 65 kids to somewhere over 140 at this point. And with more children, we have more need for
outdoor play space because there are some very restrictive regulations with regard to daycare and
the ratio of students to teachers and amount of space per student. So, what we have now just won't
accommodate the number of children that we need to accommodate. The other part of it is we
need to give the children some shade in the hot blazing sun. We're open year round so they spent a
good deal of time out there without any shade and that’s a concern. There's a play structure that's
going inside of one of the fenced in play areas we already have. That's one of the elements. We
have a fence extending around the enlarged play area because we're finding that kids can wander
off and they can wander into the parking lot or even into the neighbor's property and that's a
concern, so keeping them corralled is a big issue. The impacts of this expansion (is) insignificant.
There's no impact to the parking whatsoever. There's no significant impact to the site in any way.
It's pretty flat where it is. We'll have to do a little bit of grading to flatten it out a bit more and we'll
have to remove about 6 inches of topsoil and clay so that we can put 6 inches of fall protection,
rubber mulch down where the kids play. We are open weekdays only from 7:00 a.m. until about
6:00 p.m. - the day care part of this. It serves a huge community need, as you all know. This is the
overall site plan of the church. Center Road runs at the bottom, off at an angle to the right. The
entrance to the church is about midway along the property line. It's a very large parcel of land - over
13 acres. The church is kind of sprawling but the two points to showcase here are the oval at the
top - which would be the north of property line - (which) is the area of the playground expansion,
and I've got a blow up of that in another slide. We've contacted the Walnut Ridge Homeowners
Association, and they are considering writing a letter of support, which will come to Jenn before the
public hearing. There's also another little highlighted area in the bottom of the triangle, a small
amount of spoils from the grading would go right there. There's a steep hillside there, and we'll just
help to even that out. So, that's the site and the project elements. As Jenn said there's a 20 by 20
fabric shade structure that will go inside of an existing fenced in play area. There's a swing set, a
large play structure, and the rubber mulch underneath and around all of that for fall protection.
And then the fence with gates so that we can actually get a vehicle in if we need to. The upper left
hand corner is a photograph of the existing playground, and you'll see the fence in the lower right
hand corner. That's the same fence that we will be extending around the new play area. In the
upper right hand corner is this 20 by 20 shade structure, which has four posts with a fabric over top.
Lower left is the large play structure (30 ft long. 20 ft. wide at its widest) and then the swing set on
the right corner. The brown box is the proposed structure inside the existing fence. Moving to the
right, you'll see the green shaded area is the total amount of finished disturbance to the land. 2,600
sq ft of rubber mulch area for fall protection. And within that, you've got the swing set towards the
top, and then the large play structure expands across the bottom area there. That whole area is
only 2,600 sq ft. To the right of that you'll see a cross hatched area which is the future-proposed
addition to the church that we're planning on. We put it on there, not for approval, but for our
planning purposes. We wanted to make sure we stayed out of that footprint area. Then you'll also
see the proposed fence that will follow along the circular play area at the top-middle, and then
straighten out till it becomes perpendicular to the front of the church, and then back down and will
meet the church. At the corner there by the existing sidewalk we’ll have a double gate - this 42 inch
side would be normal use for pedestrians in and out and then we can open up another seven foot



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

section to give a ten foot wide opening to get a vehicle in there if we need to for maintenance
purposes. That's the end. Do you have any questions?

Hall: You said something about ‘open to the public’ and | missed the context of that statement.
Wills: So, the daycare program, while it's a church function, is open to the general public so any
child from anywhere within the community can enroll.

Hall: They would sign up.

Wills: As long as there's openings, of course. That's the challenge: finding places for all these kids.
Hall: The playground area - when it's not being used for daycare is it secure? Can kids from the
neighborhood come over there to use it?

Wills: They'll be able to go in through the fence to be able to get into the area but yes it's not
blocked or anything. It's open to the public, and we do find families actually drive there with their
children or stay after school to play on the playground.

Hall: Okay Thank you. Anyone else have any questions?

Hornberger: You said you had to move some of the soil to even it out? Where are you moving it? Is
that where the kids sled now in the winter.

Shipman: It's way further to the west from the toboggan hill.

Dloski: | just have a comment: we have talked about this several years ago, but it seems to me like
this is kind of a poster child for an amendment to the SUP, ordinance to allow for technical in-house
review and approval. | don't think (the desire to) put a tent/umbrella over a swing set, or to put in
another swing set justifies these people spending all the money to go through special land use
approval. We should look at having an in-house review where department heads all send their
reviews, and if it's okay It gets approved, and it's done. If it doesn't, it comes to the Planning
Commission and Township Board.

Hall: | would second that, Jenn, and I'm assuming that...

Cram: | would prefer to do that, as well...

Hall: (Suggests Jenn add this to a list of what needs to be addressed when more wholesale
amendment and updating of our zoning ordinance occurs.) | agree with Larry that we need a more
streamlined administrative process for some of these things.

Shipman: | was here when you guys came through for the initial expansion project and it looks
great. It was really good working with you guys then. At a previous point in time, the board was
concerned about the traffic (acknowledges the approval of this amendment won't affect traffic), the
height of the structure and Walnut Ridge. | felt like that project went very smoothly and this is a
fantastic project. | agree with Larry and Randy that these kind of changes should probably be more
in house. (Cites her understanding of childcare rules.) You need a fence. | can't believe you're
operating without a fence.

Wills: Well, we do have a temporary snow fence up for that.

Shipman: I'm in favor of everything | see here.

Alexander: | used to do home daycare so | know exactly what you're talking about (as far as) the
space, number of teachers, and being compliant with ratios. | think that this is a wonderful project
and | agree this should be something that should be able to be done administratively. It seems like
there's minimal disturbance to neighbors and it's very much contained and a great project.

Dloski: | will say the church really worked well with the neighbors because | know the neighbors
were concerned, | was on site with the neighbors in the church and we worked some of these issues
out and they really did a good job, | commend you on that.

Wills: Thank you. We have a very good relationship.

Cram: Would the Planning Commission like to make a motion to schedule this for a public hearing at
the next regular meeting on June 4th?



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Hall: The motion is for what exactly?

Cram: To move this forward to a public hearing at the June 4th meeting.

Motion to move SUP #134, First Congregational Church, Amendment #1 to a public hearing at the
next regular meeting of the Planning Commission. Dloski motioned with second by Shipman.
Motion passed by consensus

c. Special Use Permit (SUP) #138 Old Mission Lavender Farm, Amendment #1 - Introduction
Cram: the Old Mission Lavender Farm SUP #138 was approved by the board on March 9, 2021. A
copy of the approved findings of fact and conditions is attached as an exhibit. The original approval
for SUP #138 was under the section of the zoning ordinance that allows for greenhouses and
nurseries which is included in your packet. The applicant is now requesting the first amendment to
this SUP to allow for additional accessory value-added agricultural uses including a seasonal
aromatherapy sauna, farm related meet-ups, including curated picnics with a farm tour experience.
| asked for some additional information on that. With regard to the picnic: these would be curated
picnics that would include one fresh or dried lavender bouquet takeaway as a component to the
farm picnic experience, a pre-packaged lunch box or snack boxes with the tie into lavender that will
be produced elsewhere by a third party caterer or restaurant and held in a refrigerator unit in the
existing farm shop for pick up as scheduled. The snack box items may include lavender shortbread
cookies made locally at Potters Bakery with lavender from the farm and/or charcuterie boxes
produced at Mission Proper with food that pairs well with lavender. The outdoor picnic experience
will be scheduled for small groups ten or less or as an optional add-on during the seasonal lavender
u-pick experience. On a one-off basis they're also requesting to do some yoga and group exercises. |
asked for more information on that because it's very important as this property is zoned
agriculturally, and so the uses do need to be accessory to agriculture. The exercise experience will
be granted each participant one fresh or dried lavender bouquet takeaway as a component to the
farm exercise experience. Lavender aromatherapy will be included as part of the exercise
experience, as well. The outdoor accessory use will be held for small groups ten or less, in an
outdoor setting adjacent to the lavender and gardens. There is an existing outdoor portable toilet
and hand washing station that already exists on the property. The other accessory uses that are
being requested would be a lavender-based class, wreath making, sachets, centerpieces, etc.,
garden club meet ups, and marketed photography sessions. Some of the uses that have been
requested are clearly addressed in the Right to Farm Act and some are not. Regardless of whether
or not they are addressed in the Right to Farm Act we still have to apply our zoning ordinance, so
there's a balance here. 1 will help guide you through that. | said the two uses that are questionable
were the curated picnics and the yoga classes so we'll need to get into that a little bit. The other
thing: we were talking about what are the standards that we have to look at when we're looking at
an amendment to a special use permit: we need to look at adequate water, adequate sewage
disposal, access, parking, hours of operation, etc. With regard to adequate sewage disposal, the
onsite portolet is okay for smaller groups (ten or less, as proposed) but at some point if the lavender
farm is going to be successful, and they want to expand programs at such point there should be an
investment in an appropriate onsite septic system (a flushing toilet and things like that). I tried to be
very transparent when taking this application as to the things that the Planning Commission would
be looking at and the things that we would need to address in order to demonstrate that this meets
the standards under section 8.1.3, as well as other zoning ordinance standards. 1 think a site visit
will be very helpful. I'm excited to get a tour of the farm and see how all of this works, and to
understand where some of these outdoor uses would take place. The current zoning ordinance
does allow for special outdoor uses within the Al zoning district. | believe that some of these are



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

consistent with the original approval for a greenhouse nursery, but we would also have to, in this
amendment, incorporate those special outdoor uses because the sauna experience is outdoors. In
reading through the original approved findings of fact and conditions, it really focused on “indoors”,
due to the negative impacts associated with outdoor uses such as noise, and so we can address that
with setbacks, hours of operation and those types of things. The plan was included in your packet so
that you can understand the relationship of where the outdoor sauna and cooling-off area would be
located in relation to the existing building. It also shows an expansion to the parking lot is proposed
as being non-paved which is appropriate for an agricultural operation. She has shown where
additional parking spaces would be to accommodate these additional accessory agricultural uses.
The u-pick part of this operation is huge, and so we want to make sure that we have enough parking
for the existing uses and the new uses so | think the parking that is shown is reasonable. I'll take a
look at that further to see how it meets the zoning ordinance. The other thing | wanted the
commission to know is that the original approval did allow for a larger building to be built and that
building was never built, and so that part of the SUP has expired. Subsequently, the conservation
easement that is held on this property would not have allowed the larger building that was
approved by the Planning Commission to be built. We are also looking very closely at the
requirements of the conservation easement to make sure that the proposed uses are consistent
with that.

Hall: Pardon me, just a matter of clarification: when you say a conservation easement, is that an
easement agreement pursuant to the township’s PDR program? It's not a conservancy easement?
Shipman: It's not a PDR.

Hornberger: So what is it?

Cram: It's a deed restriction. It's in the property file. Sorry if | misspoke.

Hall: It’s important because if it's a PDR, it means the township is a party to that document and has
a right to enforce the provisions. So, we really need to understand.

Cram: There have been no violations because the larger building was not buiit.

Hall: We need to understand what it is. | also want to go back and clarify something else you were
talking about: The Right to Farm Act. | think you were indicating that some of the proposed uses are
covered by the Right to Farm Act, but you also said, regardless of Right to Farm, we still need to
apply the zoning ordinance. Now, this is a technical point, do you mean to the extent that the
zoning ordinance on these issues is not preempted by Right to Farm?

Cram: Correct.

Hall: All right, thank you. | would like to ask for the benefit of the applicant and the Commission
that when you come back on this one: items that they want to do here that you believe are clearly
permitted by Right to Farm, please flag those...

Cram: | will,

Hall: ...so that we don't have to debate that if Right to Farm applies clearly, then it preempts the
zoning ordinance.

Cram: | would like to add that it's timely that this application is coming before you because, as you
know, the Board did approve the formation of an Agricultural Advisory Committee and so that
committee will be working with me and all of you to amend our zoning ordinance to actually codify
some of these uses as uses by right, that are covered by the Right to Farm Act, so | do plan to make
that very clear.

Hall: Terrific, thank you.

Alexander: | just had some questions. You brought up that it's a conservation easement...

Cram: We are going to confirm what type of restrictions are on the property.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Alexander: That is a concern right now in ongoing litigation and what is happening with
conservation easements, and what commercial activity - if any - is allowed on a conservation
easement. So that's just something that we need to think about. You mentioned the qigong and
yoga in the lavender. Wasn't there a similar concern with the vineyards and yoga in the vines? That
activity was not allowed. Was it?

Hornberger: You're talking apples and oranges; you're talking lavender and grapes.

Alexander: Well, but I'm just thinking of being consistent.

Hornberger: I'm not sure that there needs to be consistency between growing lavender and
growing grapes.

Alexander: It's not that, it's just the fact that it was an activity considered to be commercial activity.
It was not allowed at a vineyard, and now we're considering doing it in a lavender orchard. So, what
is the difference? We need to tread carefully here. I'm just bringing that up because we’re in this
lawsuit now, and this is one of the issues.

Dloski: | agree. | think that's a very good point and because (the issue) is not the grapes and
lavender. It's the exercise that you're doing in the grapes or lavender.

Alexander: It's the difference between the principal use or the accessory use. What is the principal
activity: is it lavender or is it yoga? Is (the principal use) the sauna or aroma therapy? Is 50% of the
aromatherapy coming from lavender? With the lunch boxes, is 50 % of that product (from the
lavender)? I'm really concerned about that fine line here, and it seems very similar to the current
litigation.

Dloski: Expresses concern that allowing one sauna is going to mean they'll pop up all over the
peninsula, don’t see how it relates to agritourism.

Alexander: It's the principle versus the accessory that is the struggle.

Cram: There was no question in my mind that lavender-based classes, the farm tours, all of those
things are clearly allowed under the Right to Farm Act and Farm Market GAAMPs. The sauna - due
to its association with aromatherapy was more , accessory to ag than the yoga or exercise classes.
Again, the property owner/applicant has the right to come in and to (make a) request. Erin came in
with some questions about expanding her farm to make it viable. | hope to be working with the
Agricultural Advisory Committee to present more options for farmers that are truly ‘accessory to ag’
so that they can add value to their farms. When Erin originally approached me about the sauna |
notified her that it would require an amendment to the SUP. | also advised her to consider any
other things she might like to do in the future, as it would be sensible to include those before
entering into the amendment process. She provided a list, | reviewed the list, and then asked for
some additional information. It will be really helpful for us to do a site visit prior to the public
hearing.

Hafeli: Good evening, members of the board. My name is Erin Hafeli. | reside at 13387 Blue Shore
Drive. I'm a full time, year-round resident of Old Mission. I'm also the sole member of Lightwell LLC
and bought the lavender farm at 2150 Carroll Road that we're talking about this evening. | left a 15
year corporate career to preserve farming, and I'm really proud to be able to preserve this farmland
site. | bought it in 2023. First, | want to express my agreement with Jenn Cram’s statement and
confirm that her remarks aligned with my intentions with regard to small curated events. { also
want to extend my gratitude to the board that we're talking about this proactively. I'm here to
request permission, as opposed to forgiveness. My conversations and open communication is (for)
establishing the business plan to make this a viable farm use. As it relates to some of the other uses
we've talked about today -the yoga and that type of thing - my primary interest at this time is really
to look at the sauna, | understand that it's an SUP process and so that's a (good) time to get all
these out in the open. | have no immediate plans to do these activities. | really want to know what !



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

have permission to do first before | pull the trigger on this. As it relates to the outdoor sauna, |
would also like to draw attention to the fact that my lavender farm is over ten acres (450,000
square feet) and the proposed area constitutes about 900 sq ft which is 0.2 % of the total square
footage. It’s a very small component of the overall farm experience. We distill lavender essential
oils and hydrosol on site and the expectation would be that we would be using lavender essential oil
from our farm as part of the aromatherapy experience. If there are participants that do not wish to
use the aromatherapy, for personal preference | don't know that we would restrict their use for the
sauna. | do have a narrow and time sensitive opportunity to attract a business partner who is an Old
Mission native and owner of Hearth Sauna. There is an existing Hearth Sauna location presently at
Mt. Holiday, if anyone would also like to take a site visit there to take a look at the existing
operations it would be very compatible with what | would hope to do at the farm. I'm happy to
answer any questions you have. | appreciate your consideration and would ask for permission to
proceed with the activities that are truly, as the principal nature, intended to be farm-related. 'm
learning to farm with the Grand Traverse Conservation Districts Great Lakes Incubator Farm (which
is) training new farmers in the area on regenerative farming practices. I'm working to take this
mono-crop lavender farm and transition it to a regenerative model. We transitioned to no-spray,
we're adding biodiversity this year with the opportunity to have garden allotments and invite our
neighbors to grow their kitchen garden in our row gardens onsite. We hope to continue to be a
community space to invite people back to connect with the natural land, and lavender farms are a
really beautiful place to do that. The location of this farm {(cannot be seen) from any main road. If
you haven't been there yet, | welcome the visit. We are down a dead-end street in a valley so it
truly is off the beaten path. Again, the sauna is my primary focus at this time. Given that it is an
extensive, timely, and expensive process to go through this, | wanted to make sure to, as Jenn
recommended, ask, what other types of ‘accessory to agriculture’ uses do we think could be
consistent with the infrastructure today at that farm. In the future, if there were any larger scaled
plans, | understand that a much fuller process would have to go along with that. I'm looking
specifically today - without doing any site work or any construction - what uses could be approved
today for the farm.

Hall: I'd just like to make the observation -a variation of what's already said - that this is a great
project in that it forces us to examine our policies and ordinances right now. We're going to be
looking at Right to Farm, and how it applies here. | recognize that the agricultural community here
on Old Mission needs support and some flexibility. How do we do that? The devils in the details and
we're going to get into those details here. To Larry's point, other agricultural users here will likely
ask for similar things. 1 don't mean to signal that I'm critical of this but just because something can
be done on a farm doesn't make it an agricultural or an accessory use. | think it's going to be great
to work through this and (identify) what are the principles and how flexible is the concept of
accessory use. | want to emphasize, we need to understand what easements, or restrictions, are on
your property. Whether they are PDR - doesn't sound like they are - we really need to understand
that.

Cram: It's a deed restriction, not a conservation easement. | misspoke.

Hafeli: | can just add the original SUP did have the proposed construction of 60 by 40 building and
the underlying deed restriction allowed for a greenhouse that, | believe, was smaller in size. At the
time that we acquired the property, we did come, in advance, to really understand what use rights
we had in existence. It was confirmed, at the time, by the township, that I likely could not go back
and build what had originally been proposed in the SUP, due to that inconsistency, but that if, in the
future, | wanted to build, it would have to be in accordance with the size restrictions called for in
the deed restriction. | don't currently have the finances to build that. I'm bouncing all over town at



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

different greenhouses trying to make it work, but in the future, when my farm is successful and if
the opportunity presents itself, I'm aware of the size restrictions for that.

Hall: Jenn, anything more in your presentation.

Cram: | want to be clear with Erin because this is time sensitive for her. And this goes back to the
conversation that we had out in the field about the fact that our current process requires the
introduction, and then the approval to move to a public hearing. So, the soonest that we could
bring Erin back for a public hearing would be June 4th in order to do the public noticing. After, of
course, having your blessing after the introduction. She was really hoping to get all of this up and
running because lavender will start to harvest at the end of June. If this came before the Planning
Commission on June 4th, it would then go to the Town Board at their July meeting. | was not able to
advertise this for a public hearing at the special meeting on May 23. | don't know if that is a no-go
for you or if you want to proceed with the process, but | want it to be very transparent, so that you
understand the timing, | have to treat everybody fairly and consistently. | didn't have the ability to
advertise for a public hearing without having the blessing from the Planning Commission. | was
trying to figure out how quickly | could move this through - because it is my goal to move
applications and applicants through the process as quickly as | can - but that is the reality of the
timeline based on the requirements for public notices. Depending on what happens with the
Planning Commission in June, you would have a good understanding of their findings (about these
different uses) and the likelihood of approval. Moving to the Township Board between June and
July, you might be able to talk to your partner. But of course, you would ultimately need to have
approval from the Town Board to engage in the activities proposed under this amendment.

Hafeli: 1'd like to proceed. I’'m aware | may miss this opportunity, but it will be good information
going forward.

Cram: | just wanted to be very clear that | did my best to make it all fit together and I’'m sorry that |
wasn’t able to make this happen sooner.

Hall: Any other comments from the Planning Commission on this? | do want to ask a question. Jenn,
it seems to me that I need a little bit more education about our ordinance on the question of
agricultural zoned property, principal agricultural use and accessory use. We may need to get the
Township legal counsel involved as well in light of the concern about equal protection and
consistent treatment and the litigation that we are still in. As much as we might like the project, in
terms of our own personal interests, we have to think about the next applicant coming in with a
different type of project and asking for an expansive interpretation of accessory use.

Cram: | did anticipate that there would likely be legal counsel involvement and that this application
would require a resolution with all of the whereas’, to connect the thought process of how this is
accessory to the agricultural use. | don't know if all of you know this, but | do sit on the Committee
for the Right to Farm/ Farm Market GAAMPS. | know them very well and believe that | can make a
compelling presentation to all of you on where this fits and (where it) doesn't. (I can) also look at
the zoning ordinance, specifically when it talks about the principal use of the land and the accessory
use; what is customary and incidental to the agricultural operation. All of that will be forthcoming
Hall: Terrific. Thank you.

Shipman: If we're trying to be considerate with the timeline - like we would be with anyone where
we're not going down a special path or anything - one of the things that 1 like to think about when
we get our packets is: if | have any questions, | don't want to do them at the meeting. | want to
make sure that those questions can be answered at the meeting. Letting Jenn know what those
questions are, (in case) she needs to go to legal counsel just arms us to actually get things moving at
meetings. Just a reminder as we're talking about timeline.

Cram: | appreciate that, so that | can be prepared to answer your question.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

Hall: Because we want to be efficient about processing things. This is an example of why we need to
be.

Dloski: I'm sorry, Jenn, did you say that you're looking at this application under the Right to Farm
GAAMPs for a Farm Market?

Cram: | will be, yes.

Hornberger: | vaguely remember when the previous owner came to us to build that. We did talk
about a deed restriction.

Hall: We'll drill into it, we'll find out. (To Hafeli) When did you acquire the property?

Hafeli: | closed in March of 2023.

Hall: You must have a title policy or title commitment.

Hafeli: I'm sure | do.

Hall: | guarantee you there is a title commitment of title policy, if you don't mind you could send
that to Jenn. And Jenn, you could send it to me and | could look at it.

Cram: Why would we need to look at it?

Hall: Because it will tell us what's of record.

Cram: We have it and | apologize that | didn't bring the paper file with me. It is not a conservation
easement. It is a deed restriction that was put in place by the previous property owner before Erin
bought it. It limited buildings and things like that. | will definitely include that for your information
at the next meeting. If you want me to look at that, Randy, I'm happy to but | don't think it's
necessary.

Hall: Great. Okay.

Cram: | know looking at Susie, because Susie holds the contract for monitoring that this is not...
Shipman: It's 100% not PDR.

Hafeli: | don’t know the whole chain of ownership but | think it was original Kroupa land. |
purchased the farm from Amy and Mike Parker. Their lavender farm is “Lavender on Old Mission”.
They continue to operate at farmers markets and they grow lavender in their front yard, further
north. They're still wonderful Old Mission residents and were very helpful in the transition. I'm sure
they weren't excited to sell to what is now a competitor. | really appreciate the opportunity to be a
female farmer, changing career, and trying to figure this out. | welcome the proactive conversation
and hope to collaborate towards something that really is a true accessory to agricultural use
outdoors, that's consistent with the existing infrastructure that | have today.

Shipman: Thank you for being here.

Cram: With that, | would like to entertain a motion to allow this application to proceed to a public
hearing at the June 4th meeting.

Motion to move SUP #138, Old Mission Lavender Farm, Amendment #1 to a public hearing at the
next regular meeting of the Planning Commission. Shipman motioned with second by Beard.
Motion passed by consensus

d. Draft Master Plan - Review of Redlines and Existing Land Use Map
Cram: The draft existing land use map is still a work in progress. It is coming along tremendously
and makes more sense as to what the actual existing land uses are. (Local firm) Beckett and Raeder
has been working with our assessor with the tax codes as to how properties are currently being
taxed to determine how it's currently being used. We did change the colors of the map so things
stand out. We have the Agricultural Preservation Area noted, we have the parcels that are under
conservation easement and protected, and then we grouped parcels from 1-5 acres as ‘suburban-
residential’ and then 5 acres and more as ‘rural-residential’ rather than trying to make it similar to
the zoning district map. | think it really reads better. Beckett and Raeder was working on some tax



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

IDs that showed up as vacant or unknown. Sally did get them the updated information last week, so
it was a tight turnaround for their GIS person. We were hopeful to have it today, but we will
absolutely have that for you at our meeting on May 23rd. In the meantime, | have included the
redlines in the packet. | don't know if we want to go through those point-by-point this evening? |
received this from Beckett and Raeder on Monday when | forwarded it to all of you and so | haven't
had a chance to go through it. | have all of the notes that you've given me for your corrections and
haven't had the opportunity to compare that document. | wanted to be very transparent with all of
you, as well as the community, as to where the document is at, to date. | think it might be a good
use of our time if everybody perused this between now and the May 23rd meeting. Then we could
have a more lively discussion there. | did notice that they didn't include our prologue. If you have
had the opportunity to dig into it between the time | shared it with you and now, I'd be happy to
take those comments, but | didn't want to put you on the spot.

Hall: | would suggest that we wait until May 23rd to collect those comments and give them to you.
Motion to table the discussion until the next special meeting of the Planning Commission.

Dloski motioned with second by Shipman.

Motion passed by consensus

9. Reports and Updates

a. Shoreline Regulations Study Group - Verbal Update
Cram: The Shoreline Regulation Study Group is really working well. | did send out a letter to all
shoreline property owners, so anybody who had single ownership or a shared waterfront interest. A
letter went out to 2,158 property owners and | would say every day since the letter went out, |
receive an email or a phone call from people who are very appreciative to have this information.
They didn't know certain things applied and they want to be engaged in the process, and they're
engaging in the process in a very thoughtful way. Whether they agree with our existing zoning
ordinance or not, they're being very helpful. We've had a good turnout from the community at each
of the meetings, and we allow for public comment at the end of the meeting. The shoreline
regulation study group has come to a consensus that the current zoning ordinance is too restrictive.
Only allowing one boat hoist per 50 linear feet is just not enough. Our residents want to have the
ability to have more boats. Based on our interest in having shoreline regulations, the number one
reason why we're doing this is for public safety. The second reason that we are doing this is the
protection of natural resources and the third reason is due to a lot of conflicts out there between
neighbors/where people are locating their docks and hoists. The group agrees on all the reasons
why we're doing this, and moving forward, we will have a very strong intent and purpose statement
for these regulations. What we're looking at right now is coming up with what makes sense because
in addition to having the dock and boat hoist, we need to think about where the dock and hoists are
going to be stored when it's not in the water? What is a reasonable number of parking spaces -
especially for shared waterfront - to ensure that there is adequate parking. We looked at all of the
activities associated with our beaches: swimming, non motorized boats, walking the shoreline,
picnics, etc...and so how do all of these different activities coexist with one another. Everyone is
feeling very comfortable with something that was presented in the zoning ordinance rewrite which
was having setbacks for where these things could be located. If you projected your property lines
out into the water - an imaginary property line extending out into the water - then however many
docks and hoists we end up with, they would be located in this polygon within this setback. It makes
sense for us to stick with the 15 foot side yard setback, because that's what everybody knows.
Therefore, there would be this area where a dock and hoist could be located, and it wouldn't be




Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

located any closer than 15 ft of the property line unless, of course, there was agreement between
neighbors to share a dock or something like that. We discussed single waterfront ownership. The
recommendation, with regard to single waterfront ownership would be to allow two boat hoists per
50 ft as opposed to one. We also want to clarify that a jet ski is a half of a boat hoist, so if somebody
wanted to have two jet skis, that would equal one boat hoist. Dave Sanger had done some research
in 2022 and had looked at a variety of shared waterfront pieces, and noted what the length of the
shoreline was, the frontage, and how many hoists there were. We saw very quickly that very few
are in compliance with the existing zoning ordinance. We have some HOAs out there that are doing
really well with managing their dock and hoists with their community, so we want to consider that.
{Mentions that they've been meeting every other Monday from 3 to 5:00 p.m.) The
recommendation that is being considered right now is 3 hoists per 50 ft. A concern was raised that
it would not be equitable if you allowed three hoists per 50 ft. for shared and not for single,
because the single waterfront ownerships are paying more property tax and the group agreed that
it should be equitable between shared waterfront owners and single waterfront ownership. The
policy direction is moving forward and still under discussion, and will be on paper to share with you
soon. | do plan to have some guest speakers come to educate us. I'm hoping that Heather Smith,
the bay keeper, can come. I'd like to have someone from EGLE. | want the study group to be
educated, so that we can understand the different things we can do, creatively, to allow people to
enjoy their beach but also protect the natural resources.

Hall: | would just like to comment that, in my opinion, the Shoreline Study Group is really terrific.
Like we did with Building Height, the study group is educating our planning office and, also
indirectly, the Planning Commission. We're getting a lot of input, we're getting surprising
information on things we didn't think about in the discussions. | think it's terrific because there was
an enormous amount of concern, people who felt that they were worried that this would be a
governmental overreach, and would prevent them from enjoying the water, and so on. As Jenn
explained, there are at least three very good reasons why we need to have these shoreline
regulations. One of the things that Jenn came up with is - an idea that | assume is going to make its
way into the policy recommendation from her office - for shared waterfront is that there are no two
shared waterfronts that are identical, and it's not like single family ownership. Those are very
similar, but with shared waterfront it's different. We may have - depending on the density level and
the number of hoists per shoreline linear foot, we may have different processes to get those
approved which would give more flexibility and provide a path for those. I think it's great that a
letter went out to the shoreline owners because we really want to avoid, particularly on a topic of
this importance, a lack of transparency. We want to be transparent. We want to tell everybody that
we're doing this, invite them to the shoreline study group meeting which are open to everybody
and there is a chance for public comment, if you're out there watching this.

Cram: Know everybody has the same goal, let's make our zoning ordinance the best that it can be to
work for the community, and it's not going to work for every situation but it will work for the
majority. Because the shoreline is irregularly shaped, we could have some challenges in the future
of projecting the property lines. The zoning ordinance will have to have some administrative
flexibility built into it. As Randy mentioned, at the last shoreline study group we talked about how if
you're meeting all the standards and you're proposing 1-4 boat hoists, just do it. If you have 5-10
boat hoists, it would require a sort of land use permit specific to the shoreline. We just want to see
the plan: how are you really going to fit these things, where are you going to store things and then
the approved shoreline permit would be good for five years at which point it would require renewal
and then you'd come back and renew it. If there were a proposed higher density, it would come to
the Planning Commission. This might lend itself nicely to an abbreviated amendment to an SUP



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

process | had proposed instead of a full process with a public hearing. It could just come before the
Planning Commission, and we would advertise so neighbors would know that somebody's
proposing a dock with 20 hoists or something. That way we can look at the plan to make sure
they’ve made an accommodation for where the swimmers are, where items are stored, and where
parking is. In addition to talking about the standards in the process, we’ll be able to make this easier
and become something we can actually administer.

Shipman: There is something that | want to put forward. As you’ve just mentioned, about individual
lots... | have direct personal experience of a situation where, if the line was extended when the
water was low, we would have zero waterfront. | will admit that this is our personal property, and
we usually have a couple hundred feet of shoreline, according to our survey. (Shipman shows the
original parcel, and the piece that was divided off. Based on the angle, at low water, it illustrates
that they would have zero access.) This means that you can’t just run a line (from the property into
the water). One answer would be going to the zoning board of appeals for a dimensional variance,
but that's a pretty cumbersome process, and so we would prefer that it be done administratively.
Cram: Acknowledges that Susie’s property is a good example of how, for some properties,
projecting the property line out is not going to work and she will look into it.

Shipman: Thanks for listening.

Cram: acknowledges that good work is being done on private and shared waterfront by the study
group. The plan was for me to bring all of my notes back from this meeting to the study group to
make sure | captured things. | believe that at the June meeting | can come back with a policy
direction for single and shared waterfront. Then we will move on to the development standards for
work on the shoreline.

Hall: Thanks, Jenn. By the way, is doing her usual great job on running the discussion on the
shoreline study group, so thank you.

Cram: It really helps to have visuals and so going to more of a charette really helped us break down
some verbal barriers by allowing people to come up and add their own notes. The conversation
really just started to evolve from there. | reserve the right to get smarter and learn new things and
then get creative.

b. Agricultural Advisory Committee - Verbal Update
Cram: The board approved the concept of forming a standing agricultural advisory committee. This
committee would function very similarly to the parks committee. They would be charged with
advising the board on matters related to production agriculture on the peninsula. We are looking
for a diverse representation of all farmers and have done an email blast and posted it to the
township website. We are currently accepting letters of interest to serve on this committee. The
plan is that they would meet every other month, which amounts to six times per year. | want to be
flexible because our farmers are busy. In addition to advising the board in matters related to
agriculture, we would also discuss current hot topics. For instance, migrant housing or cold storage
of apples, etc. We could work on at least doing one presentation to the board, but in addition, have
a standing committee to work with on making amendments to our zoning ordinance. This will allow
us to be nimble to support agriculture here. The first project that I'll be working with this committee
on is signage. Again, this year | will be requesting that the board renew, or approve another
resolution, that suspends the enforcement of agricultural signage to allow farmers more signhage for
the u-pick operations. There are farms such as Erin (Hafeli)’s that are off the beaten path and they'd
like to have some off-premise signage. We'll dig into signage and we will be working on value-added
accessory uses. Some of the things that (have been) proposed are things that, in the future, should
be uses by right, but they're not in the zoning ordinance right now. So, we need to look at them as



Planning Commission Regular Meeting
May 7, 2024
Recording Secretary: Shaina LaFond

part of an SUP amendment and how it meets those requirements. | was the staff liaison to the
agricultural advisory board for Larimer County and we learned so much and were able to
accomplish so much. We did three presentations to the county commissioners every year and did a
huge overhaul to our land use code on some pretty contentious issues. We were dealing with
livestock and poultry and really large acreages/feedlots, and things like that have some pretty
serious negative impacts. We were able to work through regulations that the farmers could
embrace, so I'm excited to work with the agricultural community here. It’s important.

10. Public Comments

Board discusses future unavailability of certain members but notes that upcoming meetings will
have enough members present to have a quorum.

11. Other Matters or Comments by Planning Commission Members

Cram: Tomorrow is the first Agritourism Summit at the Hagerty Center. | will be speaking on a panel
with two planners: one from Long Lake Township and one from Emmett County. We will be
speaking to what we've learned about zoning and how it can support agritourism. | have learned a
lot about this community, | think that Amendment #201, looked at mitigating those negative
impacts, using a scaled approach, and having this Agricultural Advisory Committee so that the
agricultural community has a voice. I'll be talking about the PDR as one of our success stories. As
you know, the PDR program is something that the citizens have voted to tax themselves on to
preserve agricultural land three times. We've preserved a lot of land, there's more to be preserved,
and the preservation of that land in a conservation easement helps to keep the land affordable for
new farmers and it gives financial support to existing farmers to expand their farm operations. So,
the first part of my presentation will be to give Peninsula Township a pat on the back for their vision
and to the community for embracing the PDR program.

12. Adjournment
Dloski moved to adjourn at 8:59 p.m. with a second by Hornberger.

Motion passed by consensus







Peninsula Shores PUD



Peninsula Township Planning & Zoning Department
13235 Center Road
Traverse City, MI 49686
Special Use Permit (SUP)/Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONDITIONS
SUP #123, Amendment #5 - Peninsula Shores (Formerly The 81) PUD Condominium Subdivision

May 23, 2024
PENINSULA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION
Applicant: The 81 Development Company, LLC
Kevin and Kyle 0’Grady, Owners
Hearing Date(s): Planning Commission: April 2, 2024 (Introduction),
Planning Commission: May 23, 2024 (Public Hearing)
Township Board: TBD
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Parcel ID#: 28-11-609-001-00 through 28-11-609-041-00 and 28-11-609-900-00
Total Acreage: ~81-acres
Property Address: Waters Edge Drive and Shoreline Court
Zoning: R-1A - Rural and Hillside Residential & R-1B - Coastal Zone Residential
Adjacent Zoning: R-1A - Rural and Hillside Residential to the north and west (northwest corner

= A-1 - Agricultural), R-1B - Coastal Zone Residential to the south and East
Grand Traverse Bay to the east

Water: Individual Wells
Sewage Disposal: Community Septic Facility and Individual On-site Septic Systems
Access: Water’s Edge Drive via Boursaw Road

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

On August 11, 2015, the Township Board approved an application for a Special Use Permit (SUP
#123) for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) to build a 41-unit residential condominium
development with 65% private open space located off Boursaw Road. The approval was subject to
ten conditions of approval. Subsequent court proceedings led to another project approval pursuant
to action taken by the Township Board on January 23, 2018. This review and approval were specific
to grading, soil erosion and storm water plans, and an emergency access road only. There were two
additional conditions of approval added to the original approval from 2015.

On September 10, 2019, the Township Board approved the first amendment to SUP #123 that
included shifting the private road (currently Shoreline Court) to the west that enlarged Units 5-9,
adjusting the lot widths of Units 1-9 to be more uniform, eliminating the landscaped area along the
private road to enlarge Units 4 and 10, reducing the lot size of Units 11-28 along the easterly side to
meet the 65% open space requirement, and realigning the emergency access to the south.



On May 10, 2022, the Township Board approved the third amendment to SUP #123 that included
relocating Unit 1 from the southeast corner of the development to the northwest corner of the
development, removing Parcel A from the SUP/PUD eliminating a steep lakefront access, modifying
a sanitary easement for Unit 6 and lot line adjustments to Units 38-41.

The 81 Development Company has submitted an application and supporting materials attached as
(ExHIBIT 1) to amend the approved SUP #123 that will amend the configuration of the approved
PUD. This will be the fifth amendment, as the second amendment was withdrawn, and the fourth
amendment is currently pending before the board and will likely be officially withdrawn. The current
request for Amendment #5 is summarized below.

Maintain 41 Units

Increase open space from 65% to 66%

Add approximately .75 acres of open space to center of development
Improve this open space with outcroppings, ornamental trees and plantings
Relocate Unit 1, 11, 12

Realignment of Units 13, 14, 15, 30, 41

FINDINGS - SECTION 8.1.3 (1) GENERAL STANDARDS

General Standards: The Town Board shall review each application for the purpose of determining that
each proposed use meets the following standards, and in addition, shall find adequate evidence that
each use on the proposed location will:

(a) Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity
and that such a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is
proposed.

The underlying zoning of the development is R-1A - Rural and Hillside Residential and R-1B
- Coastal Zone Residential. Both zone districts allow for single-family residential uses and
approval of a Planned Unit Development via a Special Use Permit per Sections 6.2.4. and 6.3.2.
of the Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance.

The surrounding area is also zoned and developed similarly (R-1A and R-1B) with the
property adjacent to the northwest corner being zoned A-1-Agricultural that allows for
residential development to support agriculture. Thus, the intended character of the approved
PUD and surrounding area is predominately residential in nature.

The Peninsula Shores Planned Unit Development (PUD) was approved for 41 single-family
residential units with 65% open space. The requested amendment does not increase the
proposed density of the development and increases the amount of the development that will
be used as private open space. Thus, the proposed use of the property for single-family
residences does not change as a result of the requested amendments to modify the
configuration of the PUD.

The PUD process allows for flexibility in the physical development pattern in exchange for
preserving open space. Had the property utilized the standard land division process the total



density allowed on the ~81 acres were estimated at 55 units with no requirement to preserve
any open space. Per Section 8.3.2. one of the objectives of a PUD is to cluster the location of
residential uses. As such, the approved development generally clustered the 41 residential
units around the perimeter of a large tract of open space located centrally on the property.
Open space was also maintained along the eastern side of the property to preserve an area of
steep shoreline. The proposed relocation and reconfiguration of the 41 units of development
remain clustered around the open space.

There is currently a 30 foot PUD buffer to the northern property line. Unit 11 proposes a 15
foot setback from the northern (rear) property line. Both the R-1A and R-1B zone districts
require a 30 foot rear setback. A condition of approval has been proposed to increase the
setback from 15 feet to 30 feet. There will then be a 60 foot buffer from future homes to the
northern property line. The applicant has also planted a double row of evergreen trees within
the northern 30-feet to provide a buffer to adjacent residences to the north.

The appearance of the PUD will not change as viewed from the water or surrounding area as
the elevation of any proposed residence will be similar to the surrounding area based on the
approved grading plan. The high point in the northwest corner of the property and at the cul-
de-sac at the end of Trevor Road is roughly at the elevation of 765. Any proposed residence
will be consistent in elevation to the surrounding area. A condition of approval is included
that no fill shall be used when siting the new residence and the finished floor elevation of the
proposed residence shall be no greater than two feet above existing natural grade. The intent
of this condition of approval is to site any new residence into the existing topography and not
have a residence that towers over the other residences in the area.

Staff finds that the proposed amendments as summarized above are harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing character of the general vicinity because single-
family residential uses are allowed in the area and currently developed. Furthermore, the
larger blocks of open space are still preserved and enhanced. A generous buffer between
compatible residential uses is also proposed.



(b) Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity and
will be a substantial improvement to property in the immediate vicinity and to the
community as a whole.

The proposed amendments will not change the overall character of the previously approved
PUD. Therefore, the proposed amendments would not be hazardous or disturbing to existing
or future uses in the same general vicinity, as a residential use adjacent to another residential
use is compatible.

The approval of the PUD allowed for the development of 41 residential units with the
preservation of 65% open space. The density of residential development within the approved
PUD does not change and therefore the intensity of the residential uses within the
development remains the same. No additional disturbance is anticipated other than what is
standard for the construction of one single-family residence.

A thorough soil analysis was conducted as part of the original approval process and air
monitoring was performed by a third-party consultant during the initial site grading for the
development. Staff asked the consultant Roger Mawby, PE of Otwell Mawby PC during the
review of Amendment #3 if they anticipated that normal construction of a single-family
residence would present any additional concerns and received the following response.
“Regarding construction of a single- family residence, if normal dust suppression and storm
water management practices are instituted, they should be effective in preventing soil/dust
from leaving the construction site. Dust suppression and storm water management were the
techniques utilized in the mass grading phase of the development. Opacity testing and
perimeter air monitoring testing completed during construction indicated that these methods
were effective in managing particulates from leaving the property.” Staff has included a
condition of approval that a Land Use Permit be obtained prior to construction of any new
residences within the PUD that covers standard permitting for dust suppression, soil erosion
and storm water management.

Section 8.3.2. encourages developers to use a more creative and imaginative approach in the
development of residential areas. Relocating Units 11 and 12 to the northwest corner
preserves a view to the bay from Boursaw Road. Relocating Unit 1 to the south creates two
smaller lots that will result in two smaller homes rather than one large home. The
amendments also result in a more desirable and usable open space area for the development.
In addition, the total open space preserved increases from 65% to 66%.

Staff finds that the proposed amendments will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or
future uses, as the area allows for residential development and has been developed with
single-family residences. The spirit and intent of the original approval is also maintained with
residential units clustered around larger tracts of open space. Furthermore, the amendments
are a substantial improvement as they preserve a view to the bay for the entire community
to enjoy and increase the total percentage of open space for the benefit of the entire
development.



(c) Be served adequately by essential facilities and services, such as highways, streets,
police, fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities,
or schools.

Staff finds that the proposed amendments to the SUP/PUD will not materially change
essential facilities and services, such as highways, streets, police, fire protection, drainage
structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, or schools, as previously defined in
the original PUD approval.

(d) Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and
services.

Staff finds that the proposed amendments to the approved SUP/PUD will not create any
additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.

(e) Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by
fumes, glare or odors.

Staff finds that the proposed amendments to the approved PUD will not involve uses,
activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of operation that will be
detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by fumes, glare or odors. Nor is
it anticipated that there will be any negative impacts from particulates leaving the property
with proper dust suppression and storm water management practices that are required as
part of the issuance of a land use permit for each individual residential unit to be constructed
within the development.

FINDINGS - SECTION 8.1.3(3) SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS:

Specific Requirements: In reviewing an impact assessment and site plan, the Town Board and the
Planning Commission shall consider the following standards:

(a) That the applicant may legally apply for site plan review. The 81 Development Company
as the property owner and developer/applicant may legally apply for an amendment to the
SUP and PUD to amend the site plan.

(b) That all required information has been provided. Staff finds that the application for the
requested amendments to be complete.

(c) That the proposed development conforms to all regulations of the zoning district in
which it is located. Staff finds that all existing approved uses and proposed amendments
conform to the requirements of the R-1A and R-1B zone districts. Staff also finds that the
requested amendments conform to the requirements associated with a PUD per Section 8.3
as discussed in detail below.



(d)

(e)

43

(8)

That the plan meets the requirements of Peninsula Township for fire and police
protection, water supply, sewage disposal or treatment, storm drainage and other public
facilities and services. Staff finds that the proposed amendments to the development
conform to the requirements associated with a PUD per Section 8.3. There are no changes
proposed that will impact fire and police protection, water supply, storm drainage or other
public facilities and services.

That the plan meets the standards of other governmental agencies where applicable, and
that the approval of these agencies has been obtained or is assured. Staff finds that the
proposed amendments to the SUP/PUD meet requirements or standards of other
governmental agencies consistent with the original approval and subsequent amendments.

That natural resources will be preserved to a maximum feasible extent, and that areas
to be left undisturbed during construction shall be so located on the site plan and at the
site per se. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not negatively impact prior
approvals with respect to natural resource preservation. The open space for the development
continues to meet the 65% requirement. The proposed relocation of Units improves the open
space within the development and creates another view to the bay from a public road.

That the proposed development property respects flood ways and flood plains on or in
the vicinity of the subject property. Staff finds that the proposed plan amendments do not
impact flood ways and flood plains.

(h) That the soil conditions are suitable for excavation and site preparation, and that

1)

organic, wet or other soils which are not suitable for development will either be
undisturbed or modified in an acceptable manner. Staff finds that the proposed
amendments do not impact prior approvals with respect to soil suitability.

That the proposed development will not cause soil erosion or sedimentation problems.
Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not negatively impact prior approvals with
respect to soil erosion or sedimentation. A condition of approval is proposed that requires
that the applicant receive a Land Use Permit prior to construction that covers these items.

That the drainage plan for the proposed development is adequate to handle anticipated
stormwater runoff, and will not cause undue runoff onto neighboring property or
overloading of water courses in the area. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not
negatively impact prior approvals with respect to stormwater. Again, a condition of approval
has been proposed that requires that the applicant receive a Land Use Permit prior to
construction of single-family residences that covers storm water management. The Township
Engineer has reviewed the stormwater control plan and found it to be satisfactory.



(k) That grading or filling will not destroy the character of the property or the surrounding
area, and will not adversely affect the adjacent or neighboring properties. Staff finds that
the proposed amendments will not destroy the character of the property or the surrounding
area, and will not adversely affect the adjacent or neighboring properties with regard to
grading and filling. The underlying zoning allows for residential uses and the PUD as
approved allowed for 41 residential units within the development. Construction of a single-
family residence is normal for areas that allow for residential uses. A condition of approval is
proposed that notes that no fill will be allowed and sets a reasonable finished floor elevation
with existing natural grade. Few mature trees will be removed as a result of the relocation
and configuration of lots. The applicant has planted a buffer of evergreen trees along the
northern property line as well to improve the character of the area.

(1) That structures, landscaping, landfills or other land uses will not disrupt air drainage
systems necessary for agricultural uses. Staff finds that the proposed amendments will not
disrupt air drainage systems necessary for agricultural uses.

(m)That phases of development are in a logical sequence, so that any one phase will not
depend upon a subsequent phase for adequate access, public utility service, drainage or
erosion control. Staff finds that the proposed amendments will not impact any project
phasing.

(n) That the plan provides for the proper expansion of existing facilities such as public
streets, drainage systems and water sewage facilities. Staff finds that the proposed
amendments will not change plans to expand existing facilities such as public streets,
drainage systems and water sewage facilities.

(o) That landscaping, fences or walls may be required by the Town Board and Planning
Commission in pursuance of the objectives of this Ordinance. Staff finds that the proposed
amendments will not change any requirements for fences or walls.

(p) That parking layout will not adversely affect the flow of traffic within the site, or to and
from the adjacent streets. Staff finds that the proposed amendments will not adversely
affect the flow of traffic within the site, or to and from adjacent streets.

(a) That vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the site, and in relation to streets and
sidewalks serving the site, shall be safe and convenient. Staff finds that the proposed
amendments will not change vehicular and pedestrian traffic flow within the development.

(r) Thatoutdoor storage of garbage and refuse is contained, screened from view and located
so as not to be a nuisance to the subject property or neighboring properties. Staff finds
that the proposed amendments will not change plans for addressing outdoor storage of
garbage and refuse.



(s) That the proposed site is in accord with the spirit and purpose of this Ordinance and not

inconsistent with, or contrary to, the objectives sought to be accomplished by this
Ordinance and the principles of sound planning. Staff finds that the proposed amendments
are in accordance with the spirit and purpose of this Ordinance and past approvals of the
SUP/PUD.

SECTION 8.3 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS

FINDINGS - 8.3.2 OBJECTIVES

The following objectives shall be considered in reviewing any application for a special use permit for
planned unit development.

1.

To provide a more desirable living environment by preserving the natural character of
open fields, stand of trees, steep slopes, brooks, ponds, lake shore, hills, and similar
natural assets. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not change the initial
determination that the project creates a desirable living environment by preserving the
natural character of open fields, stand of trees, steep slopes, brooks, ponds, lake shore, hills,
and similar natural assets. This is accomplished by clustering the residential development
sites around large tracts of open space that exceeds the 65% requirement (66%).

To provide open space options. Staff finds that the proposed amendments increase the
amount of open space being preserved. The relocation of Units 11 and 12 improves open
space within the development and a view to the bay. Proposed amendments require the
removal of a few mature trees.

To encourage developers to use a more creative and imaginative approach in the
development of residential areas. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not change
the initial determination that the development offers a more creative and imaginative
approach in the development of residential areas. Furthermore, the open space within the
development is improved, and the clustering of residential development sites around larger
tracts of open space is maintained. The overall density allowed by the approved PUD is less
than what could have been achieved using the standard land division process. Proposed
amendments do not increase density.

To provide for more efficient and aesthetic use of open areas by allowing the developer
to reduce development costs through the by-passing of natural obstacles in the
residential project. Staff finds that the proposed plan amendments do not change the initial
determination that the development offers a more efficient and aesthetic use of open areas.
Staff further finds that the proposed amendments are a substantial improvement to the
designated open space as the size of the open space is increased for the benefit of the entire
development and preserves a view to the bay.

To encourage variety in the physical development pattern of the Township by providing
a mixture of housing types. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not change the
initial determination that the development offers a variety in the physical development
patterns. Forty-one residential units were approved with 65% open space where 55 units
with no associated open space could have been developed under the Land Division Act.



6.

To provide for the retention of farmland by locating the allowed number of housing units
on the agricultural parcels of land in clusters which are suitable for residential use and
keep the remaining agricultural land in production or fallow and available for
production. Staff finds that the proposed amendments do not change the initial
determination that the development locates the allowed number of housing units on the
residentially zoned property in clusters which are suitable for residential use and keeps the
remaining open space protected from development with residential uses. The 41 units are
clustered around two large tracts of open space.

FINDINGS - 8.3.3 QUALIFYING CONDITIONS

Any application for a special use permit shall meet the following conditions to qualify for
consideration as planned unit development:

1.

The planned unit development project shall not be less than twenty (20) acres in area,
shall be under the control of one owner or group of owners, and shall be capable of being
planned and developed as one integral unit. Staff finds that the development area is still far
more than 20 acres in size at ~81 acres.

The planned unit development project shall be located within a Residential or
Agricultural District, or a combination of the above Districts. Staff finds that the
development area remains residential (R-1A and R1-B) and has an approved PUD that allows
the development of 41 residential units by virtue of past approvals.

Water and waste disposal shall comply with the Township Master Plan and be approved
by Grand Traverse County or State of Michigan requirements. Staff finds that the proposed
amendments do not change past approvals of water and waste disposal systems.

The proposed density of the planned unit development shall be no greater than if the
project were developed with the lot area requirements of the particular zone district or
districts in which it is located subject to the provisions of Section 8.1. except as provided
by Section 8.3.5 (1). Forty-one units were approved and 41 units still exist as a result of
requested amendments. Approximately 55 units could have been developed using the
standard land division process with no requirement for open space. Staff finds that the
proposed amendments do not change past determinations of equivalent density.

Open space shall be provided according to Section 8.3.6. Staff finds that the proposed plan
amendments positively change the open space configuration such that a larger tract of open
space is provided on the east side of the development that preserves a view to the bay.

For purposes of this Section 8.3, Open Space does not include building envelopes, parking
lots and roads (roadbed width plus two (2) foot shoulders on each side). Staff finds that
the proposed amendments do not include building envelopes, parking lots and roads within
the designated 66% open space.

The proposed planned unit development shall meet all of the standards and
requirements outlined in this Section 8.3 and also Section 8.1. and Article VII. Staff finds



that the proposed amendments do not change prior determinations that the proposed
planned unit development meets the standards and requirements outlined in Section 8.3,
Section 8.1. and Article VII.

COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS:

The petitioner shall comply with all state, county, township and other governmental regulations
relative to the establishment for property zoned R-1A - Rural and Hillside Residential and R-1B -
Coastal Zone Residential, with the above permitted use(s) on site as approved by the PUD, which
includes meeting the requirements of the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), the
Grand Traverse County Drain Commissioner (GTCDC), the Grand Traverse County Road Commission
(GTCRC), and the Grand Traverse County Health Department (GTCHD). Zoning compliance is based
on the governing special land use document, approved site plan, and Articles 6 and 8 of the Peninsula
Township Zoning Ordinance.

APPROVAL CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS:

Conditions and Safeguards: The Township Board may require such additional conditions and
safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the protection of individual property
rights, and for ensuring that the intent and objectives of the ordinance will be observed. The breach
of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall automatically invalidate the permit granted.
Specific conditions include:

1. All prior findings, conditions and safeguards imposed by the Circuit Court and the Peninsula
Township Board of Trustees that apply to this amendment remain in effect.

2. Approval of a Land Use Permit is required prior to any construction of residential units within
the development. Such Land Use Permit will include review and approval of dust suppression,
storm water management, soil erosion control, and Grand Traverse County Environmental
Health requirements.

3. Nofill shall be placed on Units 11, 12, 1 and 41. The single-family residences shall be sited to
utilize the existing topography of the lots. The finished floor elevation of the residences shall be
no greater than two feet above existing natural grade on each lot.

4. The Master Deed shall be updated to be consistent with the approved amendments.

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION

The commencement and completion of special land uses are governed by Section 8.1.2(5) of the
Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance. Violations of the special land use and accompanying site
plan are enforceable and remedies available under Section 4.2 of the zoning ordinance.

10



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Peninsula Shores PUD,
SUP #123, Amendment #5 to the board based on the Findings of Fact and four conditions of approval.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

I move that we the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Peninsula Shores PUD, SUP
#123, Amendment #5 to the board based on the Findings of Fact and four conditions of approval.

EXHIBITS:
1. Original Application Materials + Additional Materials Provided by the Applicant since
Introduction

2. Engineering and Fire Department Comments
3. Public Comments

EFFECTIVE DATE OF SPECIAL LAND USE:

The special land use permit for the Peninsula Shores PUD, SUP #123, Amendment #5 shall be
effective when the application has been approved by the Peninsula Township Board of Trustees,
subject to the above conditions. The board approves by a vote of:

AYES

NAYS
ABSTAINING
ABSENT

The undersigned hereby certifies that she is the clerk for the township of Peninsula, Grand Traverse
County, Michigan, and that the foregoing special use permit was approved by the Peninsula Township
Board of Trustees on

The undersigned further certifies that a quorum was present at said meeting and that said meeting
complied with all applicable laws and regulations.

Rebecca Chown, Peninsula Township Clerk

Approved by the Peninsula Township Board on

Isaiah Wunsch, Peninsula Township Supervisor

11



THIS PERMIT SHALL BE ATTACHED TO THE SITE PLAN AND BECOME A PART THEREOQF.

I hereby acknowledge that I have received a true copy of the special land use permit and I have

been informed of said requirements of this special land use permit and of the requirements of the
Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance.

The 81 Development Company, LLC
Kyle O'Grady

901 S Garfield, Suite 202,

Traverse City, MI 49686

12






Mansfield

| Land Use Consultants

March 71, 2024

Peninsula Township
Jenn Cram, Planner
13235 Center Rd.,
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE:

Peninsula Shores, PUD #123

Application for Amendment #5

Dear Ms. Cram and Peninsula Township Planning Commission,

On behalf of Kyle O’Grady and the community at Peninsula Shores, please find the following
information regarding the requested Amendment #5 to the Peninsula Shores PUD located at

3985 Boursaw Road, Traverse City, Ml 49686.

Please feel free to call me at (231) 946-9310 should you have any questions or require any
additional information. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Doug Mansfield
President

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



( PENINSULA TOWNSHIP APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT NO._
Section 8.1

Parcel Code/s #28-11-114-001-00 & 28-11-114-002-00

Property Address: _Boursaw Road, Traverse City, Ml 49686

Applicant Address: 901 S. Garfield Rd., Suite 202, Traverse City, Ml 49686
il
?j}li t/Signature CheckNo. Date
1

. Kolt 0Grady Review Fee
rry : APPL{CATION REQUIREMENTS Section 8.1.2

1. Each application is submitted through the Township Planner, and shall be accompanied by
a fee as established by the Peninsula Township Board.

2. The applicant will assume direct costs for any additional professional review determined
necessary by the Planning Commission or the Township Board, subject to prior review and approval
of the applicant.

3. No part of any fee is be refundable and no portion of the fee covers the cost of any individual
land use permit that may be issued on any of the building sites located in a Planned Unit
Development.

4. Requirements for documents and information filled out in full by the applicant:
(a) A statement of supporting evidence showing compliance with the requirements of
Section 8.1.3.

(b) Site plan, plot plan, development plan, drawn to scale (preferable 1"=50"), of total
property involved showing the location of all abutting streets, the location of all
existing and proposed structures and their uses, and the location and extent of all
above ground development.

(c) Preliminary plans and specifications of the proposed development.

5. This application, along with all required data shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator.

(a) Upon receipt of a completed application and the required data by the Zoning
Administrator, it is transmitted to the Township Planning Commission for review.

(b) The Planning Commission may hold a public hearing on the application.

(c) Following a study by the Planning Commission it is transmitted to the Township Board
for consideration.

(d) The Township Board may deny, approve, or approve with conditions, a request for
special land use approval.

Page 1 0of 3

\ S




7

(a)
(b)
(c)

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)
Page 2 of 3

\

6. Specific Requirements: In reviewing an impact assessment and site plan, the Town Board
and the Planning Commission shall consider the following standards:

That the applicant may legally apply for site plan review.
That all required information has been provided.

That the proposed development conforms to all regulations of the zoning district in
which it is located.

That the plan meets the requirements of Peninsula Township for fire and police
protection, water supply, sewage disposal or treatment, storm drainage and other
public facilities and services.

That the plan meets the standards of other governmental agencies where applicable,
and that the approval of these agencies has been obtained or is assured.

That natural resources will be preserved to a maximum feasible extent, and that
areas to be left undisturbed during construction shall be so located on the site plan
and at the site per se.

That the proposed development property respects floodways and flood plains on or
in the vicinity of the subject property.

That the soil conditions are suitable for excavation and site preparation, and that
organic, wet or other soils which are not suitable for development will either be
undisturbed or modified in an acceptable manner.

That the proposed development will not cause soil erosion or sedimentation
problems.

That the drainage plan for the proposed development is adequate to handle
anticipated stormwater runoff, and will not cause undue runoff onto neighboring
property or overloading of water courses in the area.

That grading or filling will not destroy the character of the property or the surrounding
area, and will not adversely affect the adjacent or neighboring properties.

That structures, landscaping, landfills or other land uses will hot disrupt air drainage
systems necessary for agricultural uses.

That phases of development are in a logical sequence, so that any one phase will not
depend upon a subsequent phase for adequate access, public utility service,
drainage or erosion control.

That the plan provides for the proper expansion of existing facilities such as public
streets, drainage systems and water sewage facilities.

That landscaping, fences or walls may be required by the Town Board and Planning
Commission in pursuance of the objectives of this Ordinance.

(.

\§




(@)

REVISED August 21, 2004

v

That parking layout will not adversely affect the flow of traffic within the site, or to and
from the adjacent streets.

That vehicular and pedestrian fraffic within the site, and in relation to streets and
sidewalks serving the site, shall be safe and convenient.

(p] That outdoor storage of garbage and refuse is contained, screened from view and
located so as not to be a nuisance to the subject property or neighboring properties.
(s)  That the proposed site is in accord with the spirit and purpose of this Ordinance and
not inconsistent with, or contrary to, the objectives sought to be accomplished by this
Ordinance and the principles of sound planning.
7. A public hearing on a special land use request is held by the Township Board if:
a. A public hearing is requested by the Township Board, the applicant for special land
use authorization, a property owner, or the occupant of a structure located within
three hundred (300) feet of the boundary of the property being considered for a
special land use.
b. The decision on the special land use request is based on discretionary grounds.
Page 3 of 3

PENINSULA TOWNSHIP FORM

\

N




Special Use Permit - Planned Unit Development Checklist

et e e e e e e e el e e e o T I "

Applicant: -Penlnsula Shore - 901 S. Garfield Road, Suite 202, '
Traverse City, MI 49686 :
ARTICLE Wl =="7777777777777777-mmmmmmoomoomoomomsooososoooo oo :

Ordinance Reference - Section 8.1.2 Permit Procedures:
1. Submission of Application:

Ordinance Reference - Section 8.1.3

Section 8.1.3 Basis for Determinations: Before making recommendation on a special use
permit application, the Town Board shall establish that the following general standards, as well
as the specific standards outlined in each section of this Article, shall be satisfied.

General Standards: The Town Board shall review each application for the purpose of
determining that each proposed use meets the following standards, and in addition, shall find
adequate evidence that each use on the proposed location will:

.General Standards continue to be met with proposed dimensional site modifications. '
=~ 27~~~ Germerar Stamiards = inciutie™a statement o iUW the propused project neets the~ -~ -

standards::

and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the
general vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential character of
_________ the area in which it is proposed.
vicinity and will be a substantial improvement to property in the immediate
Fommmmmm vicinity and to the community as a whole.
e-no_____ , Be served adequately by essential facilities and services, such as highways,
streets, police, fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water
_________ and sewage facilities, or schools.
_________ facilities and services.
e-no ' Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or
the general welfare by fumes, glare or odors.

Conditions and Safeguards: The Town Board may impose such additional conditions and
safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the protection of individual property

\_ PUD Checklist 1/



rights, and for insuring that the intent and objectives of this Ordinance will be observed. The
breach of any condition, safeguard or requirement shall automatically invalidate the permit
granted.

.The proposed dimensional site modifications continue to meet these standards.
- - Spetific Regoirenents. inTeviewing an-impact assessmentand site pianT, he Towr Board =~~~
and the Planning Commission shall consider the following standards:

3. ___Include a statement of HOW the proposed project meets the standard:
ano change - That the appllcant may legally apply for site plan review.
b.‘ “==°["""' Thatall required information has been provided.
c. N That the proposed development conforms to all regulations of the zoning
district in which it is located.
d _ | That the plan meets the requirements of Peninsula Township for fire and

police protection, water supply, sewage disposal or treatment, storm
drainage and other public facilities and services.

e. That the plan meets the standards of other governmental agencies where
applicable, and that the approval of these agencies has been obtained or is
assured.

i. Grand Traverse County Road Commission -

ii.\/ Grand Traverse County Drain Commissioner

iii. © County DPW standards for sewer and water if public.

iv. ” Grand Traverse County Health Department for private systems

V. State and Federal Agencies for wetlands, public sewer and water.
f. _1 That natural resources will be preserved to a maximum feasible extent, and
that areas to be left undisturbed during construction shall be so located on
the site plan and at the site per se.

g _ 1 That the proposed development property respects floodways and flood
plains on or in the vicinity of the subject property.
h. | That the soil conditions are suitable for excavation and site preparation, and

that organic, wet or other soils which are not suitable for development will
either be undisturbed or modified in an acceptable manner.

i. That the proposed development will not cause soil erosion or sedimentation
problems.

That the drainage plan for the proposed development is adequate to handle
anticipated stormwater runoff, and will not cause undue runoff onto
neighboring property or overloading of water courses in the area.

k. _ | That grading or filling will not destroy the character of the property or the
surrounding area, and will not adversely affect the adjacent or neighboring
properties.

l. That structures, landscaping, landfills or other land uses will not disrupt air
drainage systems necessary for agricultural uses.

m. That phases of development are in a logical sequence, so that any one
phase will not depend upon a subsequent phase for adequate access, public
utility service, drainage or erosion control.

n. _ | That the plan provides for the proper expansion of existing facilities such as
public streets, drainage systems and water sewage facilities.
o _ | That landscaping, fences or walls may be required by the Town Board and
v Planning Commission in pursuance of the objectives of this Ordinance.
p. That parking layout will not adversely affect the flow of traffic within the site,

or to and from the adjacent streets.

o PUD Checklist 2/



quno_____ i That vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the site, and in relation to streets K

ntaiainl Sl and sidewalks serving the site, shall be safe and convenient.

r. That outdoor storage of garbage and refuse is contained, screened from
view and located so as not to be a nuisance to the subject property or
neighboring properties.

S. That the proposed site is in accord with the spirit and purpose of this
Ordinance and not inconsistent with, or contrary to, the objectives sought to
be accomplished by this Ordinance and the principles of sound planning.

4. Present 8 copies of Site plan, plot plan, development plan
Drawn to scale (preferable 1"—50) of total property involved showing:

‘—_—_jo -=~-'the location of all existing and proposed structures and their uses
& _ L the location and extent of all above ground development, both existing and
--! proposed.

& Preliminary plans and specifications of the proposed development. This preliminary

plan shall be in a form that can be easily reproduced on transparencies that can be
used for public presentation.

PUD Checklist 3

&



B e e o e e e e e R e e e e Em em Em G G e m em R A A M G e e e e e e e e e G o e e S R e e mm e e e e e m R M e o e e e e e e ey

iThe proposed modifications do not change the original intent of the approved PUD. !
* -Secton 873 Ptamred bnit Deveigpments; -~~~ ---~----~=-------------seemeeo—meo oo

Section 8.3.2 Objectives: The following objectives shall be considered in reviewing any

application for a special use permit for planned unit development.

Provide statements showing HOW the project meets the following Objectives:

1. - i____Provides a more desirable living environment by preserving the natural
character of open fields, stand of trees, brooks, ponds, lake shore, hills, and similar
natural assets.

2. - __Provision of open space and the development of recreational facilities in a
gejigllally central location and within reasonable distance of all living units.

3. _;,.__,'___A more creative and imaginative approach in the development of residential
aréa

4. _:-_— 1__More efficient and aesthetic use of open areas by allowing the developer to
reduce development costs through the by-passing of natural obstacles in the residential
site..

5. = :_Encourage variety in the physical development pattern of the Township by
providing a mixture of housing types.

6. - i The retention of farmland by locating the allowed number of housing units on

thedgricultural parcels of land in clusters which are suitable for residential use and

The proposed dimensional site modifications do not change the Conditions for PUD. :
-~ ~Sécfion 8:3.3 Qualifying Tondifions: "Any application for a special use permif Shall meetthe ™™~
following conditions to qualify for consideration as planned unit development.

1. - 1__The planned unit development site shall not be less than twenty (20) acres in
ared, shall be under the control of one owner or group of owners, and shall be capable
of being planned and developed as one integral unit. PROVIDED that the site size
requirement may be reduced by the Township Board if the Board determines that the
proposed use is a suitable and reasonable use of the land.

2. __1___Located within a Residential or Agricultural District, or a combination of the
absve Districts.
3. . 1 Where the County Health Department will approve, community type water and

sewdr facilities shall be provided as part of the site development. Package or other
treatment systems shall be of sufficient capacity to process the total sewage load of the
project. The location shall be such as to afford possible mechanical hook-up with the
proposed Regional Treatment System when fully developed. It is recognized that
joining water and sewer ventures with contiguous or nearby land owners may prove to
be expedient.

4. __i."__The proposed population density of the planned unit development shall be no
greatér than if the tract were developed with the lot area requirements of the particular
zone district or districts in which it is located subject to the provisions of Section
8.3.5(2)(b).

PUD Checklist 4




5. _:;_:}_For each square foot of land gained through the reduction or averaging of lot
sizes, equal amounts of land shall be dedicated to Peninsula Township, or retained by
the property owner when specifically permitted by the Special Use Permit, or shall be
set aside for the common use of the home or lot owners within the planned unit
development under legal procedures which shall also give Peninsula Township a
covenant or interest therein, so that there are assurances that the required open space
shall remain open subject to the provisions of Section 8.3.6.

6. - 1__The proposed planned unit development shall meet all of the standards and
requirements outlined in this Article, Section 8.1.

Section 8.3.4 Uses that May be Permitted: The following uses of land and structures may be

permitted within planned unit developments, Indicate the proposed uses in the Planned

Unit DeV,elt?Pment iNo change in use type with increase of density to open space
1. _ ' All usés pafmitted by figit; of by spethdl Use petmitintng Tespecve~~~ ="~~~

Re3|dent|al or Agricultural Districts in which the Planned Unit Development is proposed,
subject to all the restrictions therefore.

2.

3.

4. -] :r__Recreation and open space, provided that only the following land uses may be
set aside as common land for open space or recreation use under the provisions of this
Sectipn:

a. - 1 Private recreational facilities, but not golf courses, such as pools, or other
recreational facilities which are limited to the use of the owners or occupants of the lots
locatgd within the planned unit development.

b. __:: i Historic building sites or historical sites, parks and parkway areas, ornamental
parks, extenswe areas with tree cover, low lands along streams or areas of rough
terrain when such areas have natural features worthy of scenic preservation.

C.

5. E;IO change ! Signs as allowed by Section 7.11.

Section 8.3.5 Lot Size Variation Procedure: The lot area for Planned Unit Developments
within Residential and Agricultural Districts may be averaged or reduced from those sizes
required by the applicable zoning district within which said development is located by
compliance with the following procedures: iOverall PUD open space increase of .71% !
1. Site Acreage Computation: @ -----------"-- - - !
a. 82 44 . The gross acreage proposed for a planned unit development.
b. "'o i Acreage not included:

i-- 0 1_Land utilized by public utilities as easements for major facilities, such as
elec‘trlc transmission lines, sewer lines, water mains, or other similar lands which
are not available to the owner because of such easements.

i. 0 | _Lands below the Lake Michigan ordinary high water mark.

ii. '0 1 Lands used for commercial purposes subject to the requirements of
Secflon 6.8.

¢c. Maximum Number of Lots and Dwelling Units:

PUD Checklist 5




| 2.3_6__ o R-1Aand R- 1B Residential Districts - 15%.
i, 1 I~ R-1C Residential District - 20%.

I
i _; _i__R-1D Residential District - 30%.
- A-1 Agricultural Distrect - No Reduction.

70.08 :Net Acreage available for development.

R-1A District (Net Acreage divided by 43 560 square feet}ée_24 acres |

ii. :_6_'_/ :R-1 B District (Net Acreage divided by 25,000 square feet);_-:::_-::::::
iii. oo !
! R 1D District (Net Acreage divided by 15 000 square feet).
1__A-1 District (Net Acreage divided by 5 Acres).

J—
=
—Fs—

—.

I0 - __Requested additional density reasons such as higher than normal developing

__costs_resulting from special requirements of Section 8.3.
no change .

Permissive Minimum Lot Area:

| Districts R-1A and R-1B -- 12,000 square feet

| District R-1C -- 9,000 square feet

| District R-1D -- 5,000 square feet

] District A-1 -- 22,000 square feet when the open space land is restricted
agri¢ultural land and 1 acre in all other cases.

Maximum Lot Area:

___ | When the open space land is to be retained by the property owner as
restiicted agricultural land; the maximum residential lot size shall be one acre,

| The Township Board may approve larger lots if prime agricultural land will not
be Igst.

Perrpissive Minimum Yard Requirements: Under the lot averaging or reduction
procedure, each lot shall have at least the following minimum yards:
Front Yard: Twenty five (25) feet for all dwellings. PROVIDED that front yard
reqyirements may be varied by the zoning board after consideration of common greens
or ofher common open space if such space provides an average of 25 feet of front yard
ared per dwelling unit.

Side Yard: Fifteen (15) feet on each side for all one and two-family dwellings;
non}?for town houses or row houses PROVIDED that there shall be a minimum of 15

feet petween ends of contiguous groups of dwelling units.

Rear Yard: Thirty (30) feet for all dwellings, PROVIDED that rear yard
requirements may be varied by the Township Board after consideration of common
opef space lands or parks or waterfront areas which abut the rear yard area.

Maxdimum Permissive Building Height:
2.5 stories but not exceeding 35 feet.
j? Accessory buildings shall not exceed a height of 15 feet.

PUD Checklist 6




________________________________________________________________

6. Sechon 8.3.6 Open Space Reguirements Option: The Townshlp Board shall utilize
one [of the following three options for dedication of the provided open space:
a. That open space land shall be set aside as common land for the sole benefit,
use gnd enjoyment of present and future lot or home owners within the development.

i. Such open space shall be conveyed by proper legal procedures from the
tract owner or owners to a home owners association or other similar non-profit
organization so that fee simple title shall be vested in tract lot owners as tenants in

ommon.
i. Documents providing for the maintenance of said land and any buildings
thereon to assure that open space land remains open shall be provided to the
Townshlp Board for its approval

7. Section 7.7 Developments Abutting Agricultural Lands: Section 7.7.1 Agricultural
Setback:. The following setbacks shall be required when a planned unit development,
subdivision, condominium, mobile home park, or other group housing is developed; and
on those metes and bounds parcels created after the effective date of this amendment,
as provided below

a. Section 7.7.1.1 Requirement Agricultural Setback:
I. - LA setback of 100 feet from the property line of the adjacent property shall
be'réhmred for accessory uses, buildings or structures as follows:
(1) When a planned unit development, subdivision, condominium, mobile home
park, or other group housing is developed adjacent to land that is zoned A-1
Agriculture, and;
(2) When a planned unit development, subdivision, condominium, mobile home

park, or other group housing is developed adjacent to land that is zoned

AG setback standards remain ! PUD Checklist 7




AG _setback standards remain '

it e ]

-

Xe

___________________

Residential but is shown on the Agricultural Preserve Map of the Peninsula
Township Comprehensive Plan as adopted and amended from time to time
by the Planning Commission.

A setback of 50 feet from the property line of the adjacent property
shall be required for those portions of metes and bounds parcels created after the
adoption of this amendment that have a common line with land that is zoned A-1
Agriculture unless that A-1 Agriculture zoned land is being used for residential
purposes.

The setback areas required by (1) and (2) above shall not be used for
accessory uses, buildings or structures.

A setback of 100 feet shall be required when a planned unit
development, subdivision, condominium, mobile home park, or other group
housing is developed adjacent to land that is zoned Residential but is currently
being used for agricultural production that includes the carrying on of usual soil

Common Elements adjacent to such agricultural lands shall have designated building
sites shown on the preliminary and final plans. Residential and accessory uses shall be
located within the designated areas. Plans accompanying applications for zoning

C.

Setback dimensions within individual lots (building envelopes) are unchanged.

Séction 7.7. 1.3 EXceptions 16 Required SéfbacksT ~ "~~~ ~~""""""T"777777

The Township Board may, upon recommendation of the Planning
Commission, decrease the required setback on any or all lots or limited common
elements when the Township Board determines that one or more of the following
conditions exist:

1) The existence of topographic conditions i.e. steep slopes, changes
in grade, wetlands etc. or other site conditions which make it:
(@) unlikely that any of the uses allowed in the agricultural district would
be located on the adjacent agriculturally zoned land; or
(b) so that the properties are sufficiently separated to mitigate
incompatibilities of use.
(2) There exists an easement such as a conservation easement on the

land adjacent to the proposed plat that restricts agricultural uses in such a
manner that protection to future homeowners is equal or better than that
provided by the 100 foot setback.

(3) There are existing residential uses along the lot line of the
agriculturally zoned property.

Section 8.3.7 Affidavit. The applicant shall record an affidavit with the register

of deeds containing the legal description of the entire project, specifying the date of
approval of the special use permit, and declaring that all future development of the
planned unit development property has been authorized and required to be carried out
in accordance with the approved special use permit unless an amendment thereto is
duly adopted by the Township upon the request and/or approval of the applicant, or
applicant's transferee and/or assigns.

Revised January 8, 2004

PUD Checklist 8




R—Aangfiel—d

Land Use ‘Consultants ,

Introduction to Amendment No. 5

Amendment #5 Application Requests
e Maintain 41 Units
e Increase open space from 65% to 66%
e Add approximately .75 acres of open space to center of development
o Improve this open space with outcroppings, ornamental trees and plantings
e Relocate Unit 1, 11, 12
e Realighment of Units 13, 14, 15, 30, 41

Benefits:
e Preservation and protection of important viewsheds
¢ Increase open space throughout
Centrally locating open space within the development
o Add outcroppings, plantings, and ornamental trees to this protected open space
o See landscape drawing provided
Improved flow of traffic at community intersection
Improved line of sight at community intersection
Provide for a better open space aesthetic from Boursaw Road

Supporting documents as part of this submittal request include:
e SUP Application
e SUP Development Checklist
¢ PUD Amendment Site Plan
o Letter from Health Department

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 T 231.946.8926



Man,snfield

Land Use Consultants ,

ARTICLE VIi
Ordinance Reference — Section 8.1.2 Permit Procedures:

STATEMENT OF HOW THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL:

9. (a) Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and
that such a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed.

This amendment seeks to allow for the reconfiguration of a few units in the subdivision.
Reconfigurations outlined in this proposed amendment will continue to maintain the essential
character of the originally approved PUD. Not only will this amendment improve the
community’s open space in terms of net square footage of total open space, it will also improve
the actual location and function of that open space - making it much more harmonious with the
rest of the community.

(b) Not to be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity and
will be a substantial improvement to property in the immediate vicinity and to the community
as a whole.

The proposed amendment will be a substantial improvement mainly because of the increase to,
and function of, the Common Open Space area of the PUD. These changes will preserve and
protect important viewsheds. This will result in better flow of traffic and improved line of sight
at the community’s only intersection. Additionally, the developer will make improvements to
this relocated open space including outcroppings, decorative trees and plantings.

(c) Be served adequately by essential facilities and services, such as highways, streets, police,
fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water sewage facilities or schools.

All units are accessible by a private road which is adequate for police and fire protection as
approved and constructed. The relocation of Unit 1 will require it to be serviced by the
community septic system. Units 11 and 12 are currently serviced by the community septic
system. Relocating these units to the north will allow Unit 1 to be serviced without any
expansion of the system as Units 11 and 12 will be served by individual septic systems, which is
the case with many of the units within the development. We do have a letter from the Grand
Traverse Health Department for preliminary approval of septic systems for Unit 11 and 12.

(d) Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.
There will be no additional creation of any excessive requirements for public facilities and
services with the reconfiguration of the proposed Units and open space.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use ‘Consultants

(e) Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of operation
that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by fumes, glare or

orders.

There are no proposed new uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of
operation that will have any detrimental consequences to any person or property in the
surrounding area or within the PUD.

ORDINANCE REFERENCE — SECTION 8.1.3
STATEMENT OF HOW THE PROPOSED PROJECT MEETS THE STANDARD:

10.

a.

That the applicant may legally apply for site plan review.

The applicant is the legal owner of the project site and has been since June 2014.
Recorded deeds for the parcels listed below were provided to the Township in the
original SUP/PUD application.

15634 Smokey Hollow Rd., (Tax ID 28-11-114-001-00)

15636 Bluff Rd., (Tax ID 28-11-114-002-00)

The applicant is still the majority shareholder of Peninsula Shores HOA - owning 25 of the
existing 41 lots within the PUD therefore may still solely and legally apply for the
requested amendment to the PUD per the development’s Master Deed and Bylaws.

That all required information has been provided.
The applicant believes that all the required and requested information has been provided
as part of the application.

That the proposed development conforms to all regulations of the zoning district in
which it is located.

Peninsula Shores SUP#123 was approved in 2017 and consisted of 41 lots, preserving
65% of the development to open space which includes 1,500 linear feet of shoreline
along East Grand Traverse Bay. The proposed amendment #5, will continue to meet the
intent of the original approved SUP and all other applicable zoning regulations while
increasing the open space requirements.

That the plan meets the requirements of Peninsula Township for fire and police
protection, water supply, sewage disposal or treatment, storm drainage and other
public facilities and services.

The requested amendment does not affect the road lay-out as the Units are located
along the existing drive and no changes are proposed to the circulation for fire or police
protection. The Units will still be served by private wells while some of the sites are
served by private septic systems, and some served by a community septic system. The
existing storm drainage will continue to meet all the township’s requirements. The
infrastructure for storm water was constructed as required by the Peninsula Township
Stormwater Control Ordinance and has been operating and maintained successfully

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use bonsultants

since being installed. Individual land use permits will continue to be submitted to the
Township with a storm water permit application in accordance with the PUD’s original
approval. The proposed amendment will not have additional impacts on emergency
services, use of the secondary emergency access drive, or the underground fire
suppression water tank located centrally within the site.

e. That the plan meets the standards of other governmental agencies where applicable,
and that the approval of these agencies has been obtained or is assured.
There are no changes to the overall development of the PUD that would require
additional permits to be obtained; the agencies that are applicable to the development
of these parcels will continue to be attained through the permitting processes. The
development’s infrastructure was installed in 2018 which required permitting from the
following governmental agencies:
e Soil Erosion Sedimentation Control
e NDPES DEQ Notice of Coverage permit
e Grading and Stabilization plan
e Storm Water Control Permit — for the entire parcel and each individual site that
has since been improved
e Sanitary and water final plan submittals
e DEQ Permits (part 41)
e Health Department Permits for individual wells and septic systems.
e Army Corps of Engineers permit for the seasonal community dock
e Private Road permit from Peninsula Township
e Grand Traverse County Road permit
e Private Road Name approved by the Township Board
*Each lot that has been developed has also been permitted by Soil Erosion
Sedimentation Control, Health Department (well and septic), Storm water permit from
Peninsula Township, Land use permit from Peninsula Township and Grand Traverse
County Construction permits.

f. That natural resources will be preserved to a maximum feasible extent, and that areas
to be left undisturbed during construction shall be so located on the site plan and at the
site perse.

The Peninsula Shores’ PUD offers reduced residential density by preserving 66.52% open
space, including wetlands, steep slopes, wooded acreage and 1,500 lineal feet of
waterfront shoreline on a very scenic parcel of land. The proposed lot line adjustments
meet the intent of the original PUD and continue to preserve the natural resources listed
above.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, Ml 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use Consultants |

g. That the proposed development property respects floodways and flood plains on or in
the vicinity of the subject property.
The proposed amendment does not impact any floodways or flood plains on the subject
property or in the vicinity of the subject property.

h. That the soil conditions are suitable for excavation and site preparation, and that
organic, wet or other soils which are not suitable for development will either be
undisturbed or modified in an acceptable manner.

The proposed locations for Unit 11 and 12 are well suited for development in that the
soils are good, there are no steep slopes, and very little woody vegetative cover. Multiple
test holes by the Health Department verified that soils in the proposed locations will
sustain drain field infrastructure.

i. That the proposed development will not cause soil erosion or sedimentation problems.
The overall site is developed and has not caused any adverse effects on soil erosion or
sedimentation issues. The development of each site will continue to follow the measures
outlined by Grand Traverse County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation and the Peninsula
Township Storm water management procedures.

j. That the drainage plan for the proposed development is adequate to handle anticipated
stormwater runoff and will not cause undue runoff onto neighboring property or
overloading of water courses in the area.

The infrastructure for stormwater has already been constructed within the development.
The proposed amendment will not negatively impact the drainage plan that has been
approved and permitted. Each individual unit will continue apply for a stormwater
permit from Peninsula Township as they are developed.

k. That grading or filling will not destroy the character of the property or the surrounding
area and will not adversely affect the adjacent or neighboring properties.
This condition will continue to be met throughout the development of each individual
unit within the PUD.

l.  That structures, landscaping, landfills or other land uses will not disrupt air drainage
systems necessary for agricultural uses.
This is not applicable to this project.

m. That the phases of development are in a logical sequence, so that any one phase will not
depend upon a subsequent phase for adequate access, public utility service, drainage or
erosion control.

There are no remaining phases for development, only the development of each individual
unit.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use ‘Consultants

n.

That the plan provides for the proper expansion of existing facilities such as public
streets, drainage systems and water sewage facilities.

There are no necessary or required expansions of these facilities as no additional
units/lots are being created within the PUD.

That landscaping, fences or walls may be required by the Town Board and Planning
Commission in pursuance of objectives of this Ordinance.

Additional landscape requirements outlined in Condition #2 of Approval of Amendment
#3 were exceedingly met. The applicant has prepared a landscape plan for newly located
community apen space in the center of the development. In addition to setbacks on
individual lots, the entire existing development offers a 30-foot PUD perimeter setback.

That parking layout will not adversely affect the flow of traffic within the site, or to and
from the adjacent streets.
This standard will continue to be met.

That vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the site, and in relation to streets and
sidewalks serving the site shall be safe and convenient.

This amendment will further increase safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian
traffic within the site. The centrally located open space will improve the line of sight and
the flow of traffic at Shoreline Court and Waters Edge Drive. This will additionally
improve safety and well-being of homeowners traversing to and from the community
lakefront.

That outdoor storage of garbage and refuse is contained, screened from view, and
located so as not to be a nuisance to the subject property or neighboring properties.
This standard will continue to be met.

That the proposed site is in accord with the spirit and purpose of this Ordinance and not
inconsistent with, or contrary to, the objectives sought to be accomplished by this
Ordinance and the principles of sound planning.

This standard is met as this proposed amendment continues to comply with the original
approval of the PUD and each subsequent amendment. As stated in the original PUD
application, the development meets and exceeds the objectives of the Ordinance and the
principles of sound planning by approval through a Planned Unit Development.

Section 8.3 Planned Unit Developments:

Section 8.3.2 Objectives:

1. Provides a more desirable living environment be preserving the natural character of
open fields, stand of trees, brooks, ponds, lake shore, hills, and similar natura!
assets.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Manstield

Land Use ‘Consultants :

The proposed reconfiguration of the lots does not alter the integrity of the originally
approved PUD. Moreover, the relocation of Units 11 and 12 will preserve a critical
development area to be utilized as common open space, allowing for a viewshed to
be created and preserved. The proposed changes have only positive impacts on
these objectives.

2. Provision of open space requirements
This proposed amendment increases open space. New calculations are provided in
the packeted materials. The development now exceeds the required 65%+ (54.83
acres) of common open space for the use and enjoyment of Peninsula Shores
residents.

3. A more creative and imaginative approach in the development of residential areas.
Approval of this amendment request allows for a more imaginative approach for the
development of the residential Units. Shifting Units 11 and 12 to the northern portion
of the site provides for a common open space area to be created for pedestrian foot
traffic, as well as improved vehicular traffic, resulting in more fluidity throughout the
site. This relocation will also provide for better residential lots away from the public
road corridor.

4. More efficient and aesthetic use of open areas by allowing the developer to reduce

development costs through the by-passing of natural obstacles in the residential
project.
The proposed amendment allows for a larger and more centrally located open space
area to be achieved within the PUD for the enjoyment of Peninsula Shores residents.
Relocating Units 11 and 12 provide for a better open space aesthetic along Boursaw
Road.

5. Encourage variety in the physical development pattern of the Township by providing
a mixture of housing types.
The proposed amendment does not change the intent of the previously approved
PUD for clustered development with community open space areas.

6. The retention of farmland by locating the allowed number of housing units on the
agricultural parcels of land in clusters which are suitable for residential use and keep
the remaining agricultural land in production or fallow and available for production.
The proposed lot line adjustments within the existing development does not change
the intent of the previously approved clustered, open space development, SUP #123.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use‘Consultants

Section 8.3 Planned Unit Developments:
Section 8.3.2 Objectives:

FH =5

Use-By-Right Planned Unit Development |

Per Zoning/Mlichigan Land Division Plat Act Peninsula Shores — an open space community
55 lots 41 lots

1+ acre lot size Y% acre to % acre average lot size

0% common open space (0 acres) 66.52% common open space (54.83 acres)
0 linear feet of East Bay preserved shoreline 1,500 linear feet of preserved shoreline

No protection of forested areas forested areas protected within open space
No protection of steep bluffs steep bluffs protected within open space
55 individual septic systems with no 10 individual septic systems / 1 community
oversight monitoring permitted and monitored sewer system
maximum density / maximum traffic reduced density / reduced traffic

The PUD plan provides the benefit of a 25% reduction of housing density and 66.52%
preservation of open space including 1,500 linear feet of preserved shoreline along East Grand
Traverse Bay.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use Consultants |

Section 8.3.3 Qualifying Conditions: Any application for a special use permit shall meet the
following conditions to qualify for consideration as planned unit development.

1. The planned unit development site shall not be less than (20) acres in area, shall be
under the control of one owner or group of owners, and shall be capable of being
planned and developed as one integral unit PROVIDED that the site requirement may be
reduced by the Township Board if the Board determines that the proposed use is a
suitable and reasonable use of land.

The existing development is 82.44 acres of land. The applicant still maintains the
majority of shares within the Peninsula Shores HOA and as the majority property owner
may legally apply for the requested amendment to the PUD.

2. The planned unit development project shall be located within a Residential or
Agricultural District, or a combination of the above Districts. Individual planned unit
developments may include land in more than one zone district in which event the total
density of the project may equal but not exceed the combined total allowed density for
each district calculated separately.

The underlying zoning district is R-1A Rural & Hillside and R-1B Coastal Zone. The total
allowable density of the site is 66 one acre lots and five 25,000 square foot lots, equaling
a total of 71 lots allowed, however, the practical number of buildable units is 55 based
on a platted subdivision layout designed on the site. Peninsula Shores SUP#123 was
approved with 41 units while preserving 54 acres of open space including wetlands,
steep slopes and 1,500 linear feet of shoreline.

3. Water and waste disposal shall comply with the Township Master Plan and be approved
by Grand Traverse County or State of Michigan requirements. It is recognized that
joining water and sewer ventures with contiguous or nearby landowners may prove to
be expedient.

The requested amendment does not require any additional changes to the existing
community infrastructure already in place within the development. Each of the proposed
41 units will have a private well. The relocation of Units 11 and 12 will have individual
sanitary systems along with units 2, 3, 4, and 25-29. The relocation of Unit 1 will be
serviced by an on-site community wastewater treatment facility along with Units 5-24
and 30-41.

4. The proposed population density of the planned unit development shall be no greater
than if the tract were developed with the lot area requirements of the particular zoning
district or districts in which it is located subject to the provisions of Section 8.1.

This amendment reduces the lot coverage of the existing Peninsula Shores SUP #123
development. The relocation of Units 1, 11 and 12 and realignment of 13, 14, 15, 30, and
41 result in a net decrease in lot area, creating additional open space in the amount of
.62 acres.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 T 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use ‘Consultants

5.

Open space shall be provided according to Section 8.3.6.

Open space is provided per Section 8.3.6(1) Open Space Preserved for Private Use. 65%+
(54 acres) of the site continues to be kept in open space owned by the Homeowners
Association for the sole use and enjoyment of owners and residents within the PUD.

For purposes of this Section 8.3, Open Space does not include building envelopes,
parking lots and roads (roadbed width plus two (2) foot shoulders on each side).

Total project site 82.44 acres
Residential Lots -22.63 acres
Roadway -4.98 acres
Total remaining open space 54.83 acres or (more than 65%)

The proposed planned unit development shall meet all of the standards and
requirements outlined in this Section 8.3 and also Section 8.1 and Article VII.
Please see the submittal relating to Section 8.3 and Section 8.1 for compliance.

Section 8.3.4 Uses that May be Permitted: The following uses of land and structures may be

permitted within a planned unit developments, Indicate the proposed uses in the Planned Unit
Development:

1.

2.

Single family dwellings.

Peninsula Shores SUP #123 is for the development of single-family residential dwellings.
Two-family dwellings.

Not applicable for this application or request.

Group housing, row houses, garden apartments, or other similar housing types which
can be defined as single-family dwellings with no side yards between adjacent dwelling
units, provided that there shall be no more than eight (8) dwelling units in any
contiguous group.

Not applicable for this application or request.

Open space according to Section 8.3.6 Provided that only the following land uses may be
set aside as common land for open space or recreation use under the provisions of this
Section:

a. Private recreational facilities (but not golf courses) such as pools, or other
recreational facilities which are limited to the use of the owners or occupants
of the lots located within the planned unit development.

Not applicable for this application or request.

b. Historic building sites or historic sites, parks and parkway areas, ornamental
parks, extensive areas with tree cover, lowlands along streams or areas of
rough terrain when such areas have natural features worthy of scenic
preservation.

Not applicable for this application.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, M1 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mansfield
' Land Use Consultants

¢. Commonly owned agricultural lands.
Not applicable for this application.

5. Signs as allowed by Section 7.11

There is no additional request to add or modify the existing signs that were approved as
part of the original approval of SUP #123.

6. Deed restricted Agricultural lands.

Not applicable for this application or request as there are no deed restricted agricultural
lands within the PUD.

7. Garages and accessory buildings and uses exclusively for the use of residents of the
planned unit development and for the proper maintenance thereof,

All garages and accessory buildings are privately owned and located within individual
parcels within the PUD.

Section 8.3.5 Lot Size Variation Procedure: The lot area for Planned Unit Developments within
Residential and Agricultural Districts may be averaged or reduced from those sizes required by

the applicable zoning district within which said development is located by compliance with the
following procedures:

1. Site Acreage Computation:

a. The net acreage proposed for a planned unit development shall be computed to
determine the total land area available for development into lots under the
minimum lot size requirements of the applicable zoning district in which the
proposed planned unit development is located.

The net acreage of the site is 82.44 acres.

b. Acreage not included:

i. Land utilized by public utilities as easements for major facilities, such as electric
transmission lines, sewer lines, water mains, or other similar lands which are not
available to the owner because of such easements.

Not applicable for this application as there are no public easements.

ii. Lands below the Lake Michigan ordinary high water mark.
Not applicable for this application as land below the ordinary high water mark
are not part of the originally surveyed site and therefore are not included in the
calculations for open space, parking, or individual parcels.

iii. Lands used for commercial purposes subject to the requirements of Section 6.8
Not applicable to this application as none of the property is zoned C-1,
Commercial.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, Ml 49685 f 231.946.8926



\Mangfield

Land Use Consultants |

2. Maximum Number of Lots and Dwelling Units: After the net acreage has been determined
by the above procedure, the maximum number of lots and/or dwelling units that may be
approved within a planned unit development shall be computed by subtracting from the net
acreage a fixed percentage of said total for street right-of-way purposes, and dividing the
remainder by the minimum lot area requirement of the zoning district in which the planned
unit development is located.

a. The fixed percentage for street right-of-way purposes to be subtracted from the net

acreage shall be fifteen (15) percent for the R-1A and R-1B residential districts, twenty

(20) percent for the R-C district and thirty (30) percent for the multiple family

development in the R-1D district. These percentages shall apply regardless of the

amount of land actually required for street right-of-way.

82.44 times 15% = 12.36 acres

b. Under this procedure, individual lots may be reduced in area below the minimum lot
size required by the zone district in which the planned unit development is located,
PROVIDED that the total number of dwelling units and/or lots created within the
development is not more than the maximum number that would be allowed if the
project were developed under the minimum lot area requirements of the applicable
zone district or districts in which it is located. Units may be disturbed without regard to
district boundaries.

The included site plan for the Peninsula Shores amendment request includes each
existing lot and proposed modifications and relocations of lots 1, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 30
and 41. Lots will still maintain the minimum requirements as outlined in the R-1A zoned
district for area requirements.

3. Permissive Building Envelope: Building Envelopes shall be as shown on the Site Plan not
included as open space.
The site plan outlines each building envelope for each individual lot including the
maodifications and relocations of lots 1, 11, 12, 13, 14, 30 and 41.

4. Permissive Minimum Lot Area: Minimum Lot Area shall be as determined by the Township
Board and shown on the Site Plan.
Each lot is identified on the site plan distinguishing the total square footage for all lots 1 - 41.
No requested adjustment results in lot area less than existing lots or less than required by the
ordinance.

5. Maximum Permissive Building Height: 2.5 stories but not exceeding 35 feet. Accessory
buildings shall not exceed a height of 15 feet. Provided that the height of agricultural
buildings |;nay be increased pursuant to Section 7.3.3 Permitted Exceptions, Agricultural
Districts.

The development of each lot is permitted individually and conforms with the specifications of
these provisions.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mansfield

Land Use Consultants

6. Section 8.3.6 Open Space Reguirements Option: The Township Board shall utilize one of the
following four options for dedication of the provided open space.

7. Open Space Dedication for Private Use: A residential planned unit development with a
minimum of 65% of the net acreage kept as open space and owned by the Home Owners
Association or Condominium Association. That open space land shall be set aside as common
land for the sole benefit, use and enjoyment of present and future lot or homeowners within
the development.

a. Such open space shall be conveyed by proper legal procedures from the project
owner or owners to a homeowners association or other similar non-profit
organization so that fee simple title shall be vested in project lot owners as tenants in
common.

This standard will continue to be met.

b. Documents providing for the maintenance of said land and any buildings thereon to
assure that open space land remains open shall be provided to the Township Board
for its approval.

Will be provided and submitted to Grand Traverse County upon approval of the
requested amendment.

¢. The access and characteristics of the open space land are such that it will be readily

available and desirable for the use intended.
The requested amendment increases open space and relocates it in order to improve

its availability to the Homeowners Association.

1. Barns existing or proposed for uses necessary for agricultural production.

2. Outbuildings existing or proposed for storage of machinery and equipment used for
agricultural production. If a farmstead is shown on the site plan it shall be counted as
one of the allowed dwelling units.

d. The deed restricted agricultural land may be sold separately from the dwelling

parcels.

b. Shall be viable farmland as determined by the Township Board.

c. Irrespective of (9) above; no buildings shall be allowed.

11. Section 8.3.7 Maximum Percentage of Lot Area Covered by All Structures:
a. The maximum percentage of lot area covered by all structures shall not exceed fifteen

(15) percent of the net acreage.
The total buildable area within lot setbacks is 11.47 acres equaling 14% lot coverage

within the development.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mangfield

Land Use Consultants
b. A building envelope withing which structures may be located shall be shown on the

site plan for all existing or future structures.
A site plan has been included in this submittal locating the individual building

envelopes for each individual lot/unit within the development.

¢. The maximum number of square feet to be covered by all structures for each building
envelope shall be shown on the site plan or attached to it.
Area calculations have been provided and are included in the submittal of the

application.

12. Section 8.3.8 Affidavit: The applicant shall record an affidavit with the register of deeds
containing the legal description of the entire project, specifying the date of approval of the
special use permit, and declaring that all future development of the planned unit
development property has been authorized and required to be carried out in accordance
with the approved special use permit unless an amendment thereto is duly adopted by the
Township upon the request and/or approval of the applicant, or applicant’s transferee and

J/or assigns.
The required documentation for the approved amendment shall be recorded.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 T 231.946.8926



P s 3 : 3w wSiomemomin

NN CORNER |
SECTION 47N, RIGW 4 U
LT
SMOKEY HOLLOW EXT) A HE

e Ty
I

— HORTH LINE SECTION 14

Yo
PUD BOUNDARY

OB EaEmE CBMERINE <

ELEVATION 581.5
ORDIMARY HGH

T
FODT 13 MAFIE
BRI = TAETNE /008

GRAND
TRAVERSE BAY
EAST ARM

. \
L T
UNIT 34 | !
AREA. 249665 F i UNIT 20 .
AREA 221695F. 1
: UNITIY
AREA; 221965 F.

PORTARLE RESTROOM

EXISTING PATH

CARNT AREA (FOR UP TO 30 CARTS)

| o TRAVERSE INE
EROLO 5 1ANDY ~ i ‘ i pUD BOUNDARY

an o s
ORDIES HGH W NER
iy

| o navastue

~

' MID BOUNDARY

ELEVATION 581.5

/_ ORDINARY HIGH
o WAERMARC

LR IO
T ALE P
amw

LT

Lot s o 5
20 PUD /

raE SEBACK
FENCE ENCROACHMENT

FENGE AND DRIVEWAY ENCROACHMENT

THOLLOW ACRES

s

HSE

/ *' ) CANMCICAE Inche 10 taal

" e \ Frr——
BOURSAW ROAD ictunue)  BuckoACHvET NOTES:
\—u ’;‘c‘o;‘:]:p y PER THE FENRNSULA TOWKSHIF ZONING ORDINANCE,

SN 14, : SECTION 8
(8) FOR THE PURFOSE OF THIS SECTION 8.3, OPEN
SPACE DOES NOT INCLUDE BUBDI PES,
PPARKING LOTS AND ROADS. (ROAD BED PLUS TWO
12} FGOT SHOULDER EACHSIDE.}

LoT1a wiiz

PUD BOUNDARY st NON-OPEN SPACE PROVIDED OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

82.44 ACRES TOTAL GROSS [TO O.H.W.M.) UNITS 22.68 ACRES - 54.83 ACRES (86.52%)
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED-MINIMUM 53.59 ACRES (45%)

NON-OPEN SPACE ALLOWED-MAXIMUM  28.85 ACRES (35%) ROADS':‘ 4.98 ACRES OPEN $PACE PROVIDED AMENDMENT #3
§4.28 ACRES (45.84%)

27.61 ACRES 00.55% INCREASE PROPOSED FROM AMENDMENT #3
NON-OPEN $PACE (33.487%) PROVIDED

[2d] B33 THE 81 DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC ey = = —

5% R . [ Trerea [ PoalPe Tonewon 1 21 rdrron o foniele ——

SRR PENINSULA SHORES - PUD #123 B S L e i R Mansfield “< oo
Z i3 3 B Teaverse Ciry. MI 49685

|°! | 12!  PROPOSED PUD AMENDMENT #5 - OPEN SPACE PLAN =] 3 o e & Phons: 519469310

* B i SECTION 14, T.29N.. RIOW, ] wwammeps.com

I~ - j J | PENINSULA TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNYY:MICHIGAN £ e Land Use Consultmts o




C:\Users\dusty\AppData\Local\Temp\AcPublish_17640\14016 plan1é.dwg {8.5x11-exhibit-1} - Mar 06, 2024 8:19am - Dusty

IPROPOSED UNITS 11 AND 12

PROPOSED
OPEN SPACE

UNIT 11 \
B AReA: 20189 s F. \ 2

UNIT 12
AREA: 19032 S.F. =90.29"

EXISTING UNIT 30

PROPOSED
OPEN SPACE

EXISTING UNIT 1

—— — —

—

PROPOSED
OPEN
SPACE

UNIT 30
AREA: 22137 S.F.

UNIT 31
AREA: 23003 S.F.

PROPOSED UNIT 30

2ol UNIT 32
- 330 Comgeviev e, 5 201 | _LPENINSULA SHORES-PUD #123 [oRv:mmmcko: phk |
Mansfleld Tevese Cig M #9685 EXHIBIT PROPOSED UNITS 11, 12 & 30 02262024 ]
a B PROPOSED PUD AMENDMENT #5 14016 ]
Land Use Consultants info@maacps.com Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan |_m TOF 3 |




C:\Users\dusty\AppData\LocalTemp\AcPublish_174640\14014 plan1é.dwg (8.5x11-exhikit-2) - Mar 06, 2024 8:21am - Dusty

0
=
UNIT 38
AREA: 25163 S.F.
UNIT 39
AREA: 22579 S
N UNIT 40
1 AREA: 25018 S.F.
- \
2
I UNIT 41 \%,
: AREA: 15702 S.K;
—%{I{EA. 19515 S.F. \‘{&c}' N
\l N\
|
IPROPOSED UNIT 1 PROPOSED 20’ SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT AND LEAD FOR UNIT 1
GRAPHIC SCALE: 1inch = 80 feet
0 40 80 160"
= 50 Cousgrvien e, 5e 01| [PENINSULA SHORES-PUD #123 ] BRRmmm)(cxo: phk ]
Mansf leld Toaves Ciy, oy 49408 EXHIBIT PROPOSED UNITS 1 & 41 [ 02262004
@ B = ooy PROPOSED PUD AMENDMENT #5 w6
Land Use Consultants info@maseps.com Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan m]




P:\Land Projects\2014\1401 6 Insight Builders\dwg\Plan\ 14016 plan1é.dwg (8.5x1 1-exhibit-3) - Mar 06, 2024 9:04am - Dusty

252

UNIT 15
AREA: 27630 S.F.

| 3 1 |
—
un
UNIT 13
AREA: 28582 S.F.
XISTING UNITS [~
- 3

/" AREA:1832] ¢
4 /
/

PROPOSED OPEN SPACE |

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1inch = 80 feet

0 4 80’ 160

f. ld 830 Cottageview D, Ste. 201
Mansfie e 10 B
R

[ PENINSULA SHORES-PUD #123 D'DRszmg"CKD: phk

EXHIBIT PROPOSED UNITS 13-15 | 02.26.2024 ]
PROPQOSED PUD AMENDMENT #5 | 14016 ]
Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan m

Phone: 231-946-9310

WWW.maacps.com

Land Use Consultants info@maeps.com




=+ 0.0V =.} -OlE3s 1D ouljaioysg

® (= @ - _, SANATDLNG A%,
= Q|{ SAA=L WLNAAINO; L

w -SA34). AAYHS

= @ o\ NI GEsadont

F h |
_
) - gt} \
LAl - 3
= . o
- '
G el (W @

\ ) | ] _ i | sovasnaco
|||||||||| # ' a350dOo¥d
ajeds o) jou
{o310)Ss Jojoelreyd
«PojoU BT, 6[EDE
VZ0Z USIeW :orep
1N “dm) ejnsujued

SFUOHS VINSNINId

1

T




\ —_— 3
| = NW CORNER
SECTION &, i RIOW
— ] UNT 4 \
EXISTING PUD UNIT 1/~ SMOKEY HOLLOW ESTA! HSE
AMENDMENT #3 NORTHUNE SECTION u\ £
g . . e ]
00 : # % - G
1o $ % - 2
3 seacx :g%‘:’g 3/_ COMMON g (& LAKESHORE SETBACK FROMO. KWLM,
PROPOSED UNITS 11 % / 3 OFEN SPACE % -
AND 12 TO INDIVIDUAL |¢ : : - -
WELL AND SEPTIC |3, i
s :. N A TRAVERSE URE

\ ; iy -
—f— e Y PUD BOUNDARY
N A
2 N
| R \‘3&_' 7
g \ %) ¢
\ A\,
ooy N ( ELEVATION 3815
— % DINARY HIGH
S WATER MARK
] 3 BENCHM Y
\ = : \ [o==T-01
/ i T~ \ \ (R e,
; AN\ YN \ ey
\\ o - = \‘ ':
- AS PROPOSED FUTURE WELL —s==" I \
A REAWSETBACK AND SRANRDS(VE) ) ’91 230478 ¥ \
I1\ ” ‘\
| = 1
— Y 3 “'.
— i\ " <
d
P \ .
TS AS PERMITED WELL AND SAMTARY HOOK-UP [IYP) ' )\ )
\ ! == GRAND
\\ e — TRAVERSE BAY
21
% | Area: 2, \ E EAST ARM
._\_\_H_\- WY UTIUTY EASEMENT- l\ " a
— t
1 1
Se ‘\ eea s | gl
H 2
I
¢ | ] COMMON
i ! | dmmgnsese™\ | B OPEN SPA
: | -
L i o hl DOCK
. i {
\ a4 ) { 8y ————
E 1 - n
\ PBETRUCK ACCESS EASSMENT— =" . + ¥
ATWATER TAKK & WELL A ,f’ ‘J 1
g Tl i | } N
E’JI. >.’
I WATER STORAGE TANK EASEMENT PORTANLE RESTROOM
N ——— T 30,000 GALLON WATER T EXISTING PATH
EXISTING PUD UNIT 41/ - STORAGE TANK, FOR AN AREA (FOR UP 10 20 GART)
AMENDMENT #3 Sy N
e i —~
RN — >N
f 4 A "
PROPOSED UNIT . 1 ..,,3‘ " \
10 CONNECTTO ey Rl T — il - AN
COMMUNITY SEPTIC OFF SPACE - \ | = g o g 3 3
FROFOSED AMENDED UNIT 41]* 1\ \ vt 14 | =1 %!/ i
o = \ JS TEP oY 5l 18| |
4 | TeatsrE -\
\ .
\ 5 ~ \
b g\~ - \
<. PROPOSED AMENDED| kY v e et A 4 L paverseune \‘_
I UNITS 13, 14 AND 15 v iy ¢ PUD BOUNBARY \
e ry 8 N
o \ = ; seanmoums \
(RN STORM WATER ORDRUF. WON Y ETER \
B BASIN N\
~ \\ S ad
COMMONS . NS - \
OPENSPACE  ~ Y S S —a— N,
, W™\, A NS 2 e
NN EXISTING PUD UNITS 11-15 AS 47
Y N\ \\ i
COMMUNITY R \
= SEFTIC N -
AN /
_— B 4 A i
L N R
or2 \ N * N s TRAVERSE UNE
| , N S
1 AS PERMITTED WELLS AND DRAINFLDS (TYP.} | = FUDBOUNDARY
} 3 g
wim 107 UTIUTY EASEMENT (TYMICAL) — - = N ol
N : >
— i fosr. 5, { OHWM WELL AND SEPTIC LEGEND
J VGRS INDEOREL:E D0 : o i —
/ FEGOROED P! Bk ] : e
i, \ s Em———
g ' 3y 3
¢ _| e rosmsacx [ e sk FENGE ENGROACHVENT
Q
3 | = b T FENCE AND DRIVEWAY ENCROACHVENT
g SPENCE A CRVEWAYE
= : /' d A PUD SETRACK
Lors /7 COMMONS HEIE Ny s \
/| OPEN SPACE I )
Sorupseack 2 PUD STTACK - rA
HEL 107 UTLITY EASEMENT __>f s S I's
TR — S 2 )
J':— = o i SHED I!
I\ e — /
T
e BOUSAW ROAD s~ N Wam
L~ wsﬁ 74 CORNER
5 080 )4, T2PNL RO I ; /
' LUNITS ON ¢
Lot 13 o112 wrn § —— NS 23
K THE CO I{STE (. HDOMINUI &
/ ™ — :

.

The 81 Development Company, LLC T T ——— = o
. . Cousgview Dy, Ste. 201
Peninsula Shores - PUD #123 — Mansfleld s
PROPOSED PUD AMENDMENT #5 - SITE PLAN = = ———: Phonc: 2319469310
Sectlion 14, Town 29 North, Range 10 West SWwaacps.com
Peninsula Towrship, Grand Traverse County, Michigan Laad Use Consultants Infulmaacps.com




. Doninstila Shores

v| Peninsula Shores

]:-S e AMENDMENT #5
Traverse City, Michigan Updated 03-05-24

Open Space (Section 8.3.3(6)): Acres

Total project site net acres 82.44

Residential Units minus 22.63

Parking Lot (waterfront access, grass) minus 0.15

Roads (roadbed 2’shoulder) minus 4.83

Total remaining open space 54.83 = 66.52% open space provided

65% open space required

Lot Coverage by Structures (Section 8.3.7(1)): Acres

Single Family Homes (area of building envelope) 11.47
Total Lot Coverage 11.47 divided 82.44 acres = 14% lot coverage provided

15% lot coverage allowed

The calculation above proves that the standard would be met even if every building envelope were completely
covered with structures. In reality, the size of homes within the building envelopes would likely range from 2,500sf
to 6,000sf; resulting in an actual expected lot coverage by structures of 3%-7%.

Lot Coverage by Structures (Section 8.3.7.(3)):
see chart on next page

. N Regulations Summary
ssocmag_cmwnme

Mansfield ==sms
Land Use Consultants i wrwmssesecon




Peninsula Shores
Traverse City, Michigan

AMENDMENT #5
Updated 03-05-24

Lot Coverage by Structures (Section 8.3.7.(3)):

Maximum allowable lot area covered by structures Net acres in PUD = 82,44
Total lot size (S.F.) Maximum allowable structure (S.F.)
(building envelope excluding easements)
Unit 1 19.515.14 9,950.16
Unit 2 28,778.16 13,348.52
Unit 3 29,922 .85 14,559.84
Unit 4 33,072.96 16,687.77
Unit 5 37,684.03 18,707.39
Unit 6 18,321.46 7,000.40
Unit 7 12,882.93 4,107.61
Unit 8 16,008.79 6,433.51
Unit 9 16,032.63 6,616.98
Unit 10 14,807.16 5,620.47
Unit 11 20,189.43 7,774.21
Unit 12 19,032.00 8,341.79
Unit 13 28,581.89 15,992.98
Unit 14 38,550.79 23,764.67
Unit 15 27,629.51 15,131.04
Unit 16 24,264 .05 12,294 .82
Unit 17 23,071.28 11,726.32
Unit 18 22,180.08 11,216.15
Unit 19 22,195.79 11,285.88
Unit 20 22,168.84 11,200.80
Unit 21 22,044.02 10,994.71
Unit 22 22,653.74 11,506.24
Unit 23 23,585.49 12,100.06
Unit 24 23,846.88 12,114.52
Unit 25 24,533.01 12,903.35
Unit 26 25,533.23 13,687.08
Unit 27 26,210.27 14,116.83
Unit 28 27,616.40 14,928.38
Unit 29 32,311.30 18,070.46
Unit 30 22,136.92 10,110.36
Unit 31 23,002.82 11,752.83
Unit 32 24,392 44 12,648.70
Unit 33 24,670.40 12,758.69
Unit 34 24,768.97 12,829.09
Unit 35 24,967.54 12,899.50
Unit 36 24,966.11 12,969.91 {
Unit 37 25,064.67 13,040.31
Unit 38 25,163.24 13,110.72
Unit 39 22,579.28 10,241.84
Unit 40 25,018.00 13,046.24
Unit 41 15,701.56 7,106.90
Total S.F. 985,556.06 498,336.62
Total Acres 22.63 11.44
% of net total site 27% 14%



Health Department

GRAND TRAVER:

March 7, 2024

Re: Site suitability for preliminary approval of proposed lots 11&12 in Peninsula Shores Site Condo
Development

On February 21st, 2024, the Grand Traverse County Environmental Health Department met O’Grady
Development Co. at the site location of two (2) proposed lots (Lot 11 and 12) in Peninsula Shores
Site Condo Development. The purpose of this meeting was to assess both proposed lots’ suitability
for onsite wastewater disposal and determine both lots' ability to meet the Health Department's
isolation requirements for well and septic. O’Grady Development Co. is requesting that these
parcels be approved for individual onsite wastewater septic systems and private wells. A perk test
was completed on each lot on February 21st. Both Lots 11 and 12 have been determined by the
Grand Traverse County Environmental Health Department to be suitable for onsite wastewater
disposal and private wells. Once approval has been granted by Peninsula Township, O’Grady
Development Co. will be required to follow the appropriate steps and submit the required
documentation to this Department to be granted final approval for the lots.

55 ()

Brent Wheat

Environmental Health Director



Mansfield

\ Land Use Consultants

March 6, 2024

Peninsula Twp.

Jennifer Cram, Director of Planning & Zoning
13235 Center Road

Traverse City, Michigan 49686

RE: Peninsula Shores PUD Amendment #5
Engineering Impact Review

Dear Jennifer

The following is a narrative of the potential engineering impacts associated with the changes included in
the proposed PUD Amendment #5 on the Peninsula Shores development.

The existing PUD includes 41 lots and is not currently fully developed. The amendment does not propose
a change in the total number of lots, only modification and relocation of select lots; including #1, #11,
#12, #13, #14, #15, #30 and #41, for reasons explained and exhibited within other PUD Amendment #5
documents.

The following includes a summary of the main engineering topics and PUD Amendment #5 impacts:

1. Traffic

2. Sanitary Sewer

3. Storm Sewer

4, Groundwater Supply

5. Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control
Traffic

PUD Amendment #5 does not propose a change in the number of lots within the development, only
internal lot adjustment and relocation. Therefore, there is no proposed increase in traffic generation
from the original PUD approval, and zero impact to both traffic numbers and patterns.

Sanitary Sewer

PUD Amendment #5 does not propose a change in the number of lots within the development, however
it does propose a change to which lots are connected to the existing community septic system. Currently
lots #11 and #12 are contributary lots to the community septic system. Their relocation to the northwest
corner of the development requires them to be on individual, on-site septic systems due to their
location with respect to installed sanitary sewer infrastructure. Additionally, the relocation of Lot #1 is in
a location where it may be connected to the sanitary sewer infrastructure that is associated with the
community septic system. The suitability of on-site septic systems for Lots #11 and #12, as required, has
previously been evaluated and approved by the G. T. Co. Health Department.

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Manstield

' Land Use Consultants

Storm Sewer

PUD Amendment #5 does not propose a change in the number of lots within the development. The
modification and relocation of the select lots #1, #11, #12, #13, #14, #15, #30 and #41 does not change
any drainage patterns or storm water calculations. The proposed changes are all tributary to the same
storm basins in both the current and proposed scenarios, with zero impact on the development’s storm
water management.

Groundwater Supply

PUD Amendment #5 does not propose a change in the number of lots within the development. All lots
within the development have individual groundwater supply wells, which are not changing with the
proposed amendment #5, only locational changes based on lot modifications and relocations.
Groundwater supply wells, with the proposed locational changes, will continue to require approval and
permitting by the G.T. Co. Health Department.

The 30,000-gallon in-ground water supply tank that the development constructed for the Township’s
use in fire fighting for the development and surrounding Township residents remains unchanged.

Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control (SESC)

PUD Amendment #5 does not propose a change in the number of lots within the development. The
modified/relocated lots proposed in Amendment #5 do not cause a substantial change in the net area,
approach, or permitting process. All individual lot construction requires permits from the G.T. Co. Health
Department prior to construction.

In summary, both individually, and collectively, the proposed lot modifications and relocations within
Amendment #5 pose no net change or impact to any of the engineering considerations discussed above.
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at (231) 946-9310 ext. 1007.

Sincerely,
Mansfield Land Use Consultants

Jim Hirschenberger, P.E., Project En'gineer

830 Cottageview Drive -Suite 201 p 231.946.9310
P.O. Box 4015 Traverse City, MI 49685 f 231.946.8926



Mansfield

Land Use ‘CQQSUIt?!QtS..

Site Storm Water Calculations: PUD
Project: The 81 on East Bay
Project No.. 14016
Location: Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse Gounty
Client: Insight Building Company

Rational = Q =C iA

Intensity = i = 2-yr, 24-hour duration = (Bulletin 71) Intensity i = | 0.087 inhr
Coefficient = C = weighted C (Per Table 2: Runoff Coefficients)
Area = A = varies per drainage area (ac.) (Based on Grading, Storm and Drainage Plans)

Unit Conversion = 86,400

Soils Type =|Predominant USDA Soils: Em (Emmet loamy sands), Lk (Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy sands) & Ma
{Mancelona gravelly sandy loam)

Project Area Prior to Development _
|  Area(Total) =] 3511807 sft | OR | 80.62 ac. |

PREDEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS
NO. Area Type c i A (ac.) conversion Q (cft)

1 Pavement 0.98 0.087 0.00 ac. 86,400 0 cit
2 Brick D.85 0.087 0.00 ac. 86,400 0 cft
3 Roof 0.85 0.087 0.00 ac. 86,400 0 cft
4 Lawns, Sandy, Avg. 0.15 0.087 17.04 ac. 86,400 19231 cft
5 Lawns, Sandy, Steep 0.20 0.087 35.68 ac. 86,400 53691 cft

On-Site Total = 52.72 ac. Total Q=| 72923 cft

SPECIAL NOTES:

The site soils range from somewhat poorly drained to somewhat excessively drained sands with permeability rates
from 0.57 to 19.98 infhour. The location for stormwater collection is within hte EmA soil type with permeability rates of
5.95 to 19.98 in/hr and a depth to water table »/= 80 inches. There are no areas of drainage concern on the site in the
area of the proposed storm water basin. The existing property has no defined drainage outlet feature, only overland
flow and ground infiltration into existing sandy soils and also a small wetland area continained on-site within the
commons area. A portion of the site drains off-site due to the steep terrain along a large portion of the site perimeter.
There is a large ridge line and steap terrain relief down to East Bay.

MAAEPS 141216_StormWaterCalcs_14016.x1s 1/16/2015



Mansfield

' Land U_sg_:C__onsplt_:ants |

Site Storm Water Calculations: PUD
Project & No.: The 81 on East Bay
Project No.: 14016
Location: Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County
Client: Insight Building Company

Rational = Q =CiA
Intensity = i = 100-yr, 24-hour duration =
Coefficient = C = weighted C (Per Table 2; Runoff Coefficients)
Area = A = varies per drainage area (ac.)
Unit Conversion = 86,400

[5.08Tn__|(Bulletin 71)

Intensityi=| 0.212 infhr

(Based on Grading, Storm and Drainage Plans)

Soils Type =|Predominant USDA Soils: Em (Emmet loamy sands), Lk (Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy sands) &

Ma (Mancelona gravelly sandy loam)

Infiltration Rate = 5.95 in/hr (1.00"112")) ft x 24-hr x A

(sft) = cft

POSTDEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS: 100

yr, 24-hour duration

NO. Area Type C i A (ac.) conversion Q (cft)
1 Pavement 0.98 0.212 4.06 ac. 86,400 72764 cft
2 Brick 0.85 0.212 0.00 ac. 86,400 0 cft
3 Roof 0.95 0.212 2.26 ac. 86,400 39264 cft
4] Lawns, Sandy, Avg. 0.15 0.212 16.03 ac. 86,400 43973 cit
5] Lawns, Sandy, Steep 0.20 0.212 34.08 ac. 86,400 124578 cft
On-Site Total = 56.41 ac. Total Q=] 280580 cft

Required 2x 100-yr Post Development Total Q =
Pra Development Q =

SPECIAL NOTES:

The site soils range from somewhat poorly drained to somewhat
excessively drained sands with permeability rates from 0.57 to 19.98
in/hour. The location for stormwater collection is within the EmA soil
type with permeability rates of 5.95 to 12.98 in/hr and a depth to
water table >/= 80 inches. There are no areas of drainage concern
on the site in the area of the proposed storm water basin. The
existing property has no defined drainage outlet feature, only
overland flow and ground infiltration into existing sandy soils and
also a small wetland area continained on-site within the commons
area. A portion of the site drains off-site due to the steep terrain
along a large portion of the site perimeter. There is a large ridge line

and steep terrain relief down to East Bay.

MAAEPS 141216_StormWaterCalcs_14

016.xls

Required Storage =
Provided Storage =
Excess Storage =

F 561160 cft

72923 cft
7

489349 cft

1112 cft

1/16/2015



Soil Map—Grand Traverse County, Michigan

85° 29'49"W
85° 29'11"W

44° 551"N S 4° 55 19'N
@

4975300

4975200

4974500 4974600 4374700 4974800 4974900 4975000 4975100

4974400

44° 54'44°N 44° 54 44N

618700 618800 618900 619000 619100 619200 619300 619400

Map Scale: 1:5,280 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.
N o 5 100 200 300

85° 249" W
85° 20'11"W

Feet
0 250 500 1000 1500
Map projection: Web Mercator Comer coordinates: WGS84  Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84

Natural Resources Web Soil Survey 6/4/2014
Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey Page 1 of 3



£ 10 Z abed Kanung Jiog aaneI1adoo?) [euoneN 99IAI0S UOIRAIOSUOD m
asn

PLOZ/VI9 Aaning |10 gapA $82JN0S8Yy [einjeN
wdgopog &
digsospys  of
siopius QO
‘Juapiae aq Aew sauepunoq jun dew jo lodg papoi] Ajprenes &
Bunys Jouiw awos ‘Ynsai e sy “sdew asay) uo paAejdsip Auabew jodg Apueg  *+*
punoiByoeq ay) wol siagip Algeqoid pazmbip pue pajidwod ..
alam saul| 10s ay} yoiym uo dew aseq Jay3o Jo ojoydoypo ay) jodg sues 4
‘a|gejieae Jou eleq  :paydeibojoyd atem safiewl euae (s)ajeq domjnQ ooy A
“ofse] 10 o pluusiay O
000°05:1 so|eas dewl 1o} (smoj|e aoeds se) pajaqe] ale syun dew [log J51EA SnoBUEJROSIY °
€102 ‘8l 99Q ‘L Uoisiap  eje Baly ASAINS fuenp oouy A
uebiyoiy ‘Alunog asisAel] puels)  Ealy ASAINS [10S

AydeiBojoyd |elay ' duwiems 10 ysiepy .&w

‘MOJ3q pajs| (S)a1ep UOISIaA au) punoibsoeg
10 se elep payiued SOHN-YASN 8} woy pajessuab s jonpoud siy| moener Y

0 |20

‘palinbai ase Bale Jo 3dUB)Sip jO Suoie|noles Speoy 8001 npue1 &
2JeJnaoe alow J) pasn aq pinoys ‘uopoalold ojuo9 eale-fenba siagly speoy Jofely 1ods Ajjsneis .
alf se |yons ‘ease sansasald ey uonoafoid v “eale pue asuejstp _— . )
spojeIp g adeys pue uopoalp sealasald LoIum ‘uonoalold 4sn - wdpren K
10)ROIBIN QAN @Y} UO paseq ale AJAINS [10S g3 3y} woyy sdepy shkemyBiH sjeisiop| P sostadsgposcy O
(L68€:98d3) I0jedIoy GO, (WSJSAS SjeulpIood sjiey e+ lodg dejy ¥

aobepsn'sosurAananspiosqamy:dny N ASAINS 10S GO uonepodsuel
20IUDS UOBAISSUOD) $32IN0SaY |ednjeN  :depy jo aounog ndmouog I

s[eue) pue sweang
‘sjuawalnseaw seanyesd 103eM womolg (3}
dew 10} Joays dew yoes uo ajeas Jeq ay) uo Ajas ases|d seinjead Juiod [e1oeds
salnjea4 aur] [elreds P

‘9jeas pajielap 240w B Je UMOYS UDag aAeY pjnos Jey) siios
Bugsenuos Jo sease [lews ay) moys jou op sdew ay) Juswsoeld
auy| jios Jo Aoeinsoe pue Buiddew jo [iejep oy} jo Buipuejsiepunsiw
asneo ueo Buiddew Jo sjeds ay) puokaq sdew jo Juswabiejus

*9]e0s sy} 1 pieA aq jou Aew depy j1og Buiweps

'008'G1:1 Je paddew aiam [QV JnoA asudwod Jey) skanins Jios syl

NOILVINYOANI dVIN

sjuiod Jun dep jios o
)

Q
«on_mum;b,
j0dg huayg kisp B

saur Jun dej (oS #rr

suobAjod yupn dey pos
sjlog

jodg Auoig (10V) 1saiepy| Jo ealy L

7]
valy lodgs = (10v) 3s019u] Jo BAIY

AN3IOaT dVIN

ueBiyoip ‘Aunon ssisael| pueio—dep oS




Soil Map—Grand Traverse County, Michigan

Map Unit Legend

Grand Traverse County, Michigan (MI055)
Map Unit Symbol | Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

EmA | East Lake-Mancelona loamy 154 13.4%
sands, 0 to 2 percent slopes

EmB East Lake-Mancelona loamy 1.1 1.0%
sands, 2 to 6 percent slopes

EyB Emmet sandy loam, 2 to 6 14 1.2%
percent slopes

KaE2 'Kalkaska loamy sand, 18 to 25 : 0.9 0.8%
percent slopes, moderately

_ eroded

LkB Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy 4.3 3.7%
sands, 2 to 6 percent slopes |

LkD2 | Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy 8.0 7.0%
sands, 12 to 18 percent
slopes, moderately eroded

LkE2 | Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy 8.3 7.2%
sands, 18 to 25 percent
slopes, moderately eroded |

LkF Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy 17.1 14.8%
sands, 25 to 45 percent
slopes

LkF2 Leelanau-Kalkaska loamy 12.7 11.0%
sands, 25 to 45 percent
slopes, moderately eroded

MaA Mancelona gravelly sandy 7.5 6.5%
loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes

MaC Mancelona gravelly sandy 2.9 2.6%
loam, 6 to 12 percent slopes

MaC2 Mancelona gravelly sandy 9.2 8.0%
loam, 6 to 12 percent slopes,
moderately eroded

Mk Adrian muck, O to 1 percent 1.2 1.0%
slopes

RcB Richter loams, 2 to 6 percent 9.6 8.3%
slopes, overwash

Subtotals for Soil Survey Area ' 99.7 86.4%

Totals for Area of Interest 155 100.0%

usoa  Natural Resources Web Soil Survey
Conservation Service National Cooperative Soil Survey

6/4/2014
Page 3 of 3






Jennifer Cram

From: Fred Gilstorff

Sent: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 4:25 PM

To: Jennifer Cram

Subject: Re: Peninsula Shores SUP #123, Amendment #5
len,

| see no issue with this change. Thank you.

Fire Chief Fred Gilstorff

Cell Phone: 231-463-0330

Station Phone: 231-223-4443

Email: fire@peninsulatownship.com

The content of this email is intended for the person or entity to which it is addressed only. This email may
contain confidential information. If you are not the person to whom this message is addressed, be aware
that any use, reproduction, or distribution of this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this in
error, please contact the sender and immediately delete this email and any attachments.

From: Jennifer Cram <planner@peninsulatownship.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 5:26 PM

To: Fred Gilstorff <fire@peninsulatownship.com>
Subject: Peninsula Shores SUP #123, Amendment #5

Fred, as discussed, | am attaching the application for Amendment #5. No additional units are proposed, just
another proposal to move units towards the top/west maintaining 41 units total.

Please let me know if you want to sit down and review the plans together or have any questions.

The PC is conducting a site visit on May 7 and the public hearing will likely take place at a special meeting on May
23.

If | could get your comments by May 15, that would be great.

Thanks!

Jenn Cram

Peninsula Township Director of Planning and Zoning
13235 Center Road

Traverse City MI 49686

phone - 231-223-7314



' Engine_ering 123 West Front Street
0 Surv_eylng Traverse City, Michigan 49684
Testing & 231.946 5874 @

Operations 231946 3703 @

May 8, 2024

Jennifer Cram, Director of Planning
Peninsula Township13235 Center Road
Traverse City, Ml 49686

231-223-7322

planner@ peninsulatownship.com

RE: Peninsula Shores, PUD #123 —Application for Amendment #5
Review of Revision: Relocate Units 1, 11,& 12, Realignment of Units 13-15,30, & 41

Dear Jennifer Cram,

We have reviewed the supporting documents for the Peninsula Shores — PUD #123 Application for
Amendment #5, dated 03/07/2024 as completed by Mansfield Land Use Consultants. We understand
Amendment #5 will replace the withdrawn Amendment #4 and the proposed changes affect the
previously approved Amendment # 3. The application package includes updated SUP Application, SUP
Development Checklist, Proposed PUD Amendment Site Plan, Letter from Health Department, Open
Space Plan, and stormwater calculations. Our review which consisted of reviewing the modifications for
their impacts to utilities, stormwater management, and the general compliance with the special Use
permit and zoning ordinance criteria.

According to Mansfield the modifications to the plan include the following dimensional shifts of the site
plan layout:

e Maintains 41 units
e Relocates Units 1, 11, 12
e Lot line adjustments to Units 13,14,15,30, and 41

A summary of our review is contained below:

Utility Review

Per the submitted application, 8.1.2.9c comments on the proposed amendments effect on the existing
facilities. Relocation of Unit 1, 11 & 12 removes lots 11 & 12 and adds Unit 1 flows to the existing
community septic system — a net decrease of one. Units 11 & 12 will have on-site septic subject to

GTCHD permitting and have obtained preliminary approval. This is acceptable.

Storm Water Review

According to the revised plans, no revisions to the storm water control design were required. There is no
change to the catchment areas and no increase in proposed impervious areas. Therefore, the previously
proposed storm water provisions are sufficient for the existing site and the proposed amendment.

T:\Projects\24029E\Peninsula Shores SUP 123 amendment 5\Peninsula Shores- PUD Amendment 5 Review_Draft_050824.docx

Neighbars building strong communities since 1948




Private Road Review

The application states there is no change in the use of the private road system. Therefore, no
adjustments are required.

Overall Ordinance Compliance Review

According to revised plans, a comparison to the original approved PUD Open Space Calculations along
with confirmation of values was performed by GFA with the following results provided:

Open Space Non-Open Space
Approved P.U.D. 65.8% (54.26 AC.) 34.2% (28.19 AC.)
Amendment 3
Proposed (Unit Shift and 66.52% (54.83 AC.) | 34.48% (27.61 AC.)
Dimensional changes)

The provided information shows maintaining Unit 41 units. The unit line modifications and relocations
appears to meet the dimensional requirements of the Township and the P.U.D. Project. These are
summarized as follows:

e Unit 1is relocated to the former Amendment 3 Unit 41 location, which is divided and realign to
accommodate. Appears to be similar footprint, therefore the density in this location is
increased.

e Relocated units 11 &12 are set at the former Amendment 3 Unit 1 location, which is divided to
and realigned to accommodate. The footprint now extends further east along the north
property line. Therefore, the density in this location is increased.

e Lot line adjustments to Units 13,14,15 ac provide additional at the Amendment 3 locations of
units 11 & 12. The density in this location is decreased.



oy

Assuming no other changes have been made to the project plans as previously reviewed, our
recommendation for engineering plan approval remains in place in accordance with our previous review
letters and the Township SUP Conditions dated August 6, 2019. The following general items are noted:
1. The same approved Findings of Fact and SUP conditions apply including but not limited site-
specific Storm Water Reviews for each lot.
2. Applicable revisions to the Master Deed to reflect the site changes are to be completed and a
new document shall be signed and recorded with the Register of Deeds. A copy of this
document shall be provided to the Township for their files.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions regarding this review.

Respectfully Submitted,
GOURDIE-FRASER

Jennifer Graham (Hodges), PE
Sr. Project Manager

cc: Dough Mansfield, Mansfield Land Use Consultants
Kyle O’'Grady - The 81 Development Company






Jennifer Cram

===
From: jrdinmn@aol.com
Sent: Sunday, May 19, 2024 1:25 PM
To: shipman.parks@gmail.com; Iwdloski@gmail.com; jualexanptpc@gmail.com;

duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com; armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com;
Jennifer Cram; rand.plancom@gmail.com
Subject: Peninsula Shores- SUP/PUD Amendment Number 5

To the Planning Commission Members:

| am a member of the Lewis family that owns the cottage at 4150 Trevor. | am writing to urge you to
reject the proposed Amendment Number 5 as it does not meet the requirements of the ordinance.

There has been discussion about the proper standards and approach for addressing Amendment
number 5. We believe that the standards and approach used in reviewing Amendment number 4
should be used here. Most commission members compared the proposed Amendment Number 4 to
the current SUP rather than comparing the proposed Amendment Number 4 to what could be done
prior to the original approval of the SUP. Forty Two units were viewed as not being a substantial
improvement when compared to 41 units instead of being compared to the development by right of 55
units. The approach taken as to Amendment number 4 is administrative precedent that you should
follow in deciding whether to approve Amendment number 5.

Further, the original 41 unit approval was stated as being in exchange for the shoreline protection,
open space, minimum lot size, and original parcel configuration. There was a balance struck
between those items. Lot location mattered. Open space location mattered. That balance should be
given due deference.

The findings of fact recommended by staff and approved by a majority of the planning commission as
to Amendment number 4 include the following underlined items:

1. The character of the original approval is eroded by adding an additional lot. Wouldn’t the
character of the original approval be eroded by moving a lot from the middle of the project to the edge
of the project and significantly altering the open space by, and views of, neighboring properties that
were a basis of the original approval?

2. Two lots would be located closer to the western property line reducing the buffer to adjacent
properties. As such, the existing character of the development as originally approved has been
changed. The size and location of those two lots is the same in Amendment Number 5 as in
Amendment Number 4, plus Amendment Number 5 would move another lot up by the northern
property line, thereby reducing the buffer to those adjacent properties. If the existing character of the
development would be changed by Amendment Number 4, it is changed even more in Amendment
Number 5, so the “change in essential character” standard is not met by Amendment Number 5.

3. Increasing the density of the development would be disturbing and/or not a substantial
improvement to the property in the immediate vicinity. If that is the case, then increasing the density
of the development by the neighboring properties to the north would be disturbing and/or not a
substantial improvement to those properties, so this standard is not met by Amendment Number 5.




4. PUD amendments should further carry out the objectives of the PUD, rather than maximize
economic realization without regard to the impact on the intent of the original approval. The intent of
the original approval of this PUD included having the housing sites complement the existing
residential use pattern, having the lot locations located within the interior of the project site,
preserving open space that would benefit properties within the immediately vicinity, and preserving
views from surrounding properties. Moving the lot as proposed is obviously driven by economic
realization and erodes the objectives of the original PUD approval.

5. The requested amendments do not conform to other requirements associated with a PUD per
Section 8.3, particularly when viewed through the lens of the intent behind the original approval and
prior amendments, as the proposed amendment negatively impacts aspects of the PUD that were the
basis for those approvals. The basis for this PUD being approved included housing sites that
complemented existing residential use patterns, interior lot locations, preserving open space to
benefit neighboring properties, and preserving views from surrounding properties. Amendment 5
would definitely negatively impact each of those aspects.

Please apply the same standards and approach to Amendment Number 5 that you applied to
Amendment Number 4. Please defer to and respect the balances struck by the original

approval. The correct approach is to look at the changes the amendment would make as compared
to the approved PUD, and apply the section 8.1.3(1)(b) substantial improvement standard when
approving the amendment would result in some erosion in the improvements to property in the
immediate vicinity or to the community as a whole which were stated in the existing SUP findings of
fact as a reason for the original approval. If those stated improvements are not negatively affected,
there is no need to apply the substantial improvement standard. That way, the substantial
improvement standard gets applied when it is relevant, but is ignored when it would prevent minor
amendments from being approved.

Please have your decision be grounded in the original PUD approval. Please respect the balance
that was struck in the original PUD. Please follow the approach taken with Amendment Number
4. Please deny Amendment Number 5.

Thanks for your time and consideration.
Sincerely,

Joe Dierkes



Jennifer Cram

From: Megan Haddox <mlhaddox@mac.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 12:51 AM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; Iwdloski@gmail.com;

jualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram
Subject: Peninsula Shores amendment

Dear Planning Commission Members,

I am an owner of the residence in Smokey Hollow Estates at 4150 Trevor Road. I’'m writing to express my
grave concerns regarding the Peninsula Shores Proposed Amendment.

The Township passed the Peninsula Shores Development only after much controversy and by a very narrow
margin. It was able to pass because the proposed development provided lot locations within the interior of the
project to preserve viewsheds, the preservation of the open space benefited the neighboring properties, and

it preserved the views of the surrounding properties.

Now that enough time has passed since the controversial vote, it appears the original reasons for allowing the
development to be approved have been forgotten. The second house by our property would further erode our
view, and moving the current house even closer to our cottage will definitely be a detriment to our property and
quality of life. Please respect the Ordinance and the original findings of fact!

The draft master plan contains a survey indicating the things residents liked most about living on the Peninsula
are the rural, quiet feeling of the peninsula and the scenic views it provides. Our family also enjoyed that
environment from 1949 up until the Peninsula Shores development arrived. When asked where the Township
could do more, the survey indicated that the strongest support went to keeping as much of the rural character
and historic landscape as possible. The draft master plan states “The Peninsula Township community has long
recognized and valued the quiet, rural, and scenic character of the Old Mission Peninsula and the critical need to
protect these defining values.” Why put out a survey and have a master plan if you’re going to ignore them and
allow an amendment that is going to significantly hinder scenic views and diminish the rural character of the
neighboring properties?

Approval of this amendment will directly and adversely affect the quality of life for our family and the other
residents of Smokey Hollow Estates. Please defer to the original findings of fact, apply all sections of the
Ordinance as written, and deny this amendment!

Thank you for your time,

Megan Haddox

Sent from my iPad



Jennifer Cram

e
From: tgdurham@verizon.net
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 9:49 PM
To: Jennifer Cram
Subject: Proposed Peninsula Shores Ammendment

Dear PC members:
| cannot be at the public hearing but wanted to express my concerns about this amendment.

My family owns property on Trevor Road in Smokey Hollow Estates, just north of Peninsula Shores and surrounding
property. We have social gatherings at the cul-de-sac that borders the Peninsula Shores property and enjoy the
rural environment that lends itself to our development. The original approved plan for the Peninsula Shores
property was to have open space in the area that abuts the open space owned by Smokey Hollow Estates residents
at the end of our cul-de-sac. We were initially satisfied with the original plan. We were extremely disappointed
when the Peninsula Shores developer sought (and received) approval to build a house near our cul-de-sac in an area
originally approved for open space. Now they are asking approval for a second house even closer to our property.

The use of the Smokey Hollow Estates open space that abuts the Peninsula Shores development is very important to
us, and we greatly appreciate the quiet rural nature of, and views from, this outdoor space. However, adding yet
another house in what was to be open space will significantly diminish the rural character and views of our open
space at the top of our cul-de-sac. | can think of only one reason why the developers are adding an additional house
- additional profit! | am pleading with the Peninsula Township Planning Commission to put the brakes on this latest
effort that can only be labeled corporate greed. How would you react to a similar situation if a developer was
building homes next to your property and after the disappointment of the developer receiving approval for one
additional home, they came back to seek approval for a second home, both adjacent to your property?

The open space by our properties was one of the reasons why the Township found the initial development met the
ordinance standards. The clustering of houses in the interior of the development was another. The preservation of
our views was a third reason. Please honor that initial determination, give deference to that initial determination,
and retain the open space and views by our properties that were a basis for the original approval of this
development.

Thank you for your review of this.

Tom Durham
4126 Trevor Rd.



Jennifer Cram

From: Jill Lewis <jilesoh@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 5:32 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com;

jualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram
Subject: Peninsula Shores Proposed Amendment

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Please do not approve the proposed amendment.

Our property by Peninsula Shores is a rural property and is within a rural zoning category. We highly
value that rural character. The township highly valued our rural character when it noted that clustering
the houses in the middle of the development, preserving open space for the benefit of our property, and
preserving our views were all factors in approving this PUD. Please defer to that determination and do
not let the rural character of our property be degraded by this amendment.

This amendment would move the existing house much closer to our screened-in porch on the south side
of our house. This porch is a favorite gathering place for my family and our neighbors, and we spend
hours out there. If the allowed Peninsula Shores house by our property is moved closer to our house, the
noise from it would be that much worse on our porch. Adding a second house on the north end of the
property would also increase that noise. We value quiet as highly as other township residents and as a
part of the rural character of our property, and ask that you do also.

The existing trees between our porch and these two houses are not evergreen, and we will see these
houses when the leaves are off the trees instead of the rural scenic view that is now there. Moving one
house closer to our porch and adding a second house will degrade those views.

Adding the second house will also diminish the rural character of our outdoor space and our use and
enjoyment of it. We and our neighbors use that space for get togethers, games, a play area for
grandchildren, star gazing, etc. The second house will cut off our view, increase traffic, and produce
noise and light that will be disturbing.



The tree buffer for the previously approved lot provides some screening from the existing lot and might
someday grow enough so that we cannot see this house. We will still hear the noise from this

house. The lights from this house will still adversely affect our star gazing. Preserving that open space
and our views were reasons set forth by the township for its original approval. We appreciate the
township providing the tree buffer, but that buffer and the house that will go behind it are a significant
downgrade from the open space and rural views that the township listed as reasons to grant the PUD to
begin with. Adding a second house, even with a tree buffer, will be a further downgrade and contrary to
the township’s original findings of fact.

The Township’s master plan puts preserving the rural character of the Peninsula as an extremely high
priority. The Township’s original findings of fact also noted our views and the open space next to our
property as reasons for approval, and those items protect and preserve the rural character of our
property. There is little in the way of practical improvements in this amendment, and there is certainly no
improvements for neighboring properties. Please further the goal of the master plan to protect urban
character, defer to and respect the original PUD findings of fact, and deny this amendment.

Thanks for your time.

Jill Lewis, 4150 Trevor Road



Jennifer Cram

From: Laurie Wilson <lww920@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 5:22 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com;

jualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram
Subject: Peninsula Shores Proposed Amendment

Dear Township Board,

We are full-time residents of OMP and are writing to express our concerns regarding the Peninsula
Shores Proposed Amendment. As | think we all agree, open space in the township is very valuable to
our community. Didn't the developer previously commit that the area along the north of the
development where he now wants to move another unit would be open space? It seems very unfair
and very detrimental to the property owners to the north and west of Peninsula Shores to have both
the open space and the view taken away from them, especially when that wasn't the original
agreement with the developer.

Don't we all want to protect the views on OMP? There is currently a view from Smokey Hollow Road
to where the additional house would be located, but adding that house will negatively affect this

view. Why would the Township approve something that gives lots on top of the development a better
view at the expense of a view that the community and neighboring properties now enjoy? That does
not sound fair. Those houses on top of the hill already have great bay views; opening up one lot
below them really adds little if anything to those views.

Lastly, adding another lot along the northern part of the development will certainly change the rural
character of the properties to the north and west. As Peninsula residents, we cherish the rural
character of OMP, and, like many others, we would like that maintained wherever possible.

We are asking that the township consider the opinions of the residents of OMP who value our views
and wish to maintain the rural character of the peninsula, and deny the amendment.

Thank you for your consideration of our thoughts.

Craig and Laurie Wilson
12456 Bluff Road



Jennifer Cram

——
From: Jim Durham <jimdurham56@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 4:38 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com;

Jjualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram

Cc: Craig Haddox; Megan Haddox

Subject: New Peninsula Shores PUD Amendment Application

I'm a property owner in Smokey Hollow Estates to the north of Peninsula Shores. | object to this
amendment because it is detrimental to Smokey Hollow Estates and contrary to the initial approval of
this SUP.

Our properties are rural in character. A tight grouping of two houses by our development is not
consistent with rural property. Three houses along our north boundary is not consistent with rural
property.

The survey of residents in the proposed master plan show residents most liked the rural, quiet
atmosphere and the scenic views. We agree completely. Adding another house by Smokey Hollow
Estates will reduce the rural quiet atmosphere and scenic views of our properties. We hope you will
reflect the views of the community and view the reduction in our rural quiet atmosphere and scenic
views as a significant detriment to our properties. We certainly do.

The addition of a tree buffer by the previously approved lot is a small consolation. It is certainly better
than no trees. However, the house will still be visible for a long time, and the trees will not eliminate
the noise or nighttime light that comes from it. Further, a very nice rural view from our properties has
been taken away and replaced by a line of trees with a house behind it.

When the Township approved the Peninsula Shores development, it found that the applicant
designed the housing sites to complement the existing residential use pattern. It found that the lot
locations were located within the interior of the project to preserve viewsheds. It found that the
preservation of the open space benefited the neighboring properties. It found that the proposed
development provided a desirable living environment with respect to the preservation of views from
surrounding properties without significantly hindering viewsheds. The initial approval was clearly
based on where the proposed houses were to be located and the impact their proposed locations
would have on neighboring properties. These conclusions should be respected and deferred to
now. We find it very disappointing that some think that it doesn’'t matter where the developer moves
houses so long as he doesn’t add more and maintains the open space. That approach is clearly
contrary to the approach and the analysis that the Township took in initially approving this project.



Please deny the proposed amendment. Thanks.

Jim Durham

4126 Trevor Road



Re: Peninsula Shores PUD 123
Application for Amendment

Dear Planning Commission Members,

We are residents in Smokey Hollow Estates at 4114 Trevor Road. We attended many of
the hearings and meetings connected with the contentious initial approval of this SUP
by the Township.

The Township was very concerned about the impact of this project on the other
properties nearby. They approved the project based upon it not negatively impacting
adjacent neighbors. They approved the project based upon it complimenting the
existing residential use pattern. They approved the project based upon the lot locations
being sufficiently within the interior of the project site to sufficiently preserve

views. They approved this project based upon the proposed open space being a
substantial improvement over the non-PUD development rights which benefits
properties within the immediate vicinity. They approved the project because it provided
for desirable living environment with respect to views and the preservation of the same
from surrounding properties. All of these items are set forth in the original findings of
fact. In other words, the Township was highly cognizant of the impact the project would
have on neighboring properties and approved the project only because that impact was
minimized as stated in the findings of fact.

Thus we are very puzzled by some who now seem to want to ignore the impact on
neighboring properties in determining whether to approve the proposed amendment,
and ignore the reasons why this project was approved in the first place.

We often walk up to the Trevor Road cul de sac with our dog. Our grandchildren play
up there when they come to visit. We attend gatherings of family and friends up
there. We enjoy the quiet and rural character of this area. Allowing another house on
the north end of Peninsula Shores will detract from that quiet and that rural character,
plus create more noise that we will hear from our residence.

Further, the proposed benefits from this amendment are small. The open space is
legally increased slightly, but the number and sizes of the houses to be built will not
change, so this change is of little benefit (and of no benefit to neighbors or the
Peninsula Township community). Opening a viewshed at the intersection for those who
already have panoramic bay views by negatively impacting the viewshed of neighboring
properties is not an improvement. We don'’t understand how opening up a view for
others can be a positive, but closing a view by moving a house to the north end open
space is not a negative for the neighboring properties and the community members
traveling on Smokey Hollow Road. The improvement to traffic is marginal given where
the houses are being built and the existing lines of site.

Please look at the protections and benefits to neighboring properties that were among
the reasons why this project was approved. Please evaluate whether this application



and the proposed changes meet the requirements of section 8.1.3(1)(b) of our zoning
ordinance. It seems obvious to us that it does not. The proposed amendment is
disturbing to the use of properties in the area. The proposed amendment is a significant
negative for properties in the vicinity rather than being a substantial improvement. The
proposed amendment is contrary to the original findings of fact. The Township was very
aware of the need to minimize the impact of this development on the neighboring
properties when it approved the project. You should take the same approach, respect
the original findings of fact, follow the Ordinance requirements, and deny this
application.

Thanks for your time and efforts.

Thomas and Susan McMahon
4114 Trevor Road



Jennifer Cram

From: Bill Lewis <blewis.wordsmith@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 2:02 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; Iwdloski@gmail.com;

jualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram
Subject: Proposed amendment at next meeting

Dear Planning Commission,

I’'m writing to ask that you please deny the proposed amendment that | understand would
move a lot to the northern part of the development. The application refers to this as
“substantial improvements” (section 8.1.3(1)(b)). At best, they are minimal.

Does the open space technically increase? Again, minimally. But the lot adjustments do
not result on any less building on the property. The same number of houses will be built
with no reduction to the size of any of those houses. Converting what is now space in
yards that will not be built on to open space adds nothing of practical benefit. And it
certainly doesn’t provide improvements to the properties in the immediate vicinity of the
development.

Ditto the change to the viewshed. No substantial improvement to property in the
immediate vicinity or the community as a whole. Not building on the lot by the intersection
will add litile to the views at the top of the hill which already have wide bay

views. However, the addition of a house at the north of the property will adversely affect
the viewshed of the long-established neighbors to the north and the west, and to those
travelling along Smokey Hollow Road.

Ditto again to the stated improvement to traffic and line of sight. That is also

negligible. The intersection already complies with Township requirements, and the
Township Engineer approved it based upon the 30’ setbacks. There is a 30’ setback at the
front of each lot going north on Waters Edge Drive, but on each of those lots where a
house has been built the house is set back approximately seventy feet or more from the
road. In addition, there is a 30’ setback on current lot 11 along Shoreline Court which
further increases visibility at this intersection. There is already tremendous line of site for
traffic at this intersection, and the additional proposed line of sight provides little additional
value.

The ordinance requires “substantial improvements.” The items listed by the developer as
satisfying section 8.1.3(1)(b) don’t meet that requirement. In addition, the changes made
at the north end of the development are a substantial detriment to the properties north and
west of the development and are contrary to the findings of fact behind the original
approval of the SUP. Please defer to and uphold the original factors which led the

Township to approve this development to begin with. Deny this amendment.
1



Thank you for listening to my concerns.

Bill Lewis
4150 Trevor Road

Bill Lewis

Wordsmith-at-Large

770-757-4150

"A word is worth a thousand pictures.
www. wordsmith-at-large.com

"



Jennifer Cram

== ]
From: jrdinmn@aol.com
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 1:14 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com;

Jjualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com; Jennifer Cram

Cc: Craig Haddox; kadinmn@gmail.com; JOSEPH DIERKES

Subject: Peninsula Shores Proposed Amendment Number 5

Planning Commission Members,

My name is Kathryn Lewis Dierkes, and my husband, Joe, and | are part owners of the residence and property at 4150
Trevor Road, which directly abuts the Peninsula Shores development. Our property is adjacent to the proposed newest
lot that the developer wishes to establish. We previously wrote to you in 2020 and 2022, when Peninsula Shores sought
to change the development plan in a somewhat similar manner to what they are trying now. The previous amendment
resulted in a building lot being established adjacent to the cul-de-sac on our property, and now they are seeking to add a
second lot, which appears to bring their newest proposed building about 60 to 70 feet closer to our cottage. Once again
we are adamantly opposed to this amendment.

As noted in our prior submissions, we relied on the developer's original plan that clearly limited the proximity of new
residences to our property. Now, for the second time, the developer wants to change the original plan in a manner that
would place a second building lot adjacent to our property, and placing structures significantly closer to our

residence. The original PUD/SUP plan represented that the proposed new lot would remain open space with some trees
on it. Clearly, this is a major change. '

As to the application of the specific ordinance sections that apply to this requested amendment, we would ask that you
refer to the submission by my Brother-in-law, Craig Haddox, which sets out in detail the legal basis for opposing the
amendment. We are in full agreement with his argument that the proposed amendment would pose a significant
detriment to our property interests.

Unlike at the time of the previous amendment, we now have access to the legal opinion issued by attorney Meihn in
2022. That opinion appears to argue that moving lots around inside of a PUD/SUP is perfectly acceptable, as long as no
additional units are proposed. If that is correct, then what is the point of having an original plan if the developer is free
to move lots to whatever part of the property he chooses. Under that rationale, if the developer so chooses, he could
claim the right to move all the lots to the perimeter of his property and abut the property of all neighboring landowners,
thereby nullifying the representations made at the time of the original approval. As the track record of the developer
has shown in this case, he has continually sought to move lots, and we have every reason to believe that he will continue
to submit new amendments to place lots in locations detrimental to the neighboring landowners. As we noted in our
prior submissions, we request that the Planning Commission protect the integrity of the application process and reject
this change. Enough is enough!

We ask that you require the developer to stick with his original plan for the property, and not let him increase the
intrusiveness of the development. There is ample legal authority to require this rejection. As clearly described in Craig
Haddox’s email, the proposed amendment violates the Township zoning ordinance. There can be no doubt that placing
the new lot in what is currently zoned as open space next to our property would be a substantial detriment

to our property rather than a substantial improvement. The repeated efforts by Peninsula Shores to plant houses on the
edge of our property has been a source of repeated expense and aggravation for my family. Back in 2022 we submitted

1



that the time had come to give the developer a final denial of what had become an abuse of the planning and
development process. The fact that we are once again having to battle to oppose further amendments of this type only
proves the accuracy of our prior request for a denial.

We respectfully request that you deny the proposed amendment to the Special Use Permit.

Sincerely,

Kathryn Lewis Dierkes

612-325-4114



Jennifer Cram

From: Wendy Brickman <mcmomm@aol.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2024 1:13 PM

To: Jennifer Cram

Subject: Expansion of Peninsula shores

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Planning Commission,

It has come to my attention that The O’Grady's are at it again. | am totally against any more building lots
(ie. 11 and 12) in Peninsula Shores. Where is the promised green space? It’s shrinking! They are already
expanding our quiet, natural farmland into suburbia. Please, don’tlet them go any farther.

Wendy Brickman
4948 Forest Ave
Old Mission



Jennifer Cram

From: chaddox75@gmail.com
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 1:31 PM
To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com;

jualexanptpc@gmail.com; duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com;
armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com

Cc: Jennifer Cram

Subject: Peninsula Shores Amendment

Dear Planning Commission Members:
Thank you for your thoughtful comments at the meeting last night.

First, | hope we can all agree that adding another house on the northern end of the development is detrimental to the
neighbors to the north and west of the development. We may disagree on the extent of that detriment, but it is clearly
a detriment when compared to the current open space and views.

SUP’s are to be a win-win-win for the developer, the neighboring property owners, and the community as a whole.
Under Section 6.1.5, the Ordinance makes it clear that SUP’s require special consideration in relation to the welfare of
adjacent properties and to the community as a whole. The other two categories under Section 6.1.5 (uses permitted by
right and uses permitted under special conditions) do not contain such a requirement. Further, the SUP sections of the
Ordinance state that the effect on neighboring properties is a key criteria for SUP’s. Section 8.8.1 states that the SUP
sections of the Ordinance are to protect the health, safety, convenience, and general welfare of Township inhabitants.
The Ordinance does not contain such criteria for developments governed by the residential zoning districts — if the
developer meets the requirements of those zoning districts, he can develop his property accordingly regardless of its
impact on neighboring properties. That is not the case under the SUP sections of the Ordinance, which contain a much
higher standard.

| was disappointed by the lack of focus on the impact of the proposed change on the neighboring properties and
application of the ordinance provisions that address neighboring properties. Some asked what is the standard to be
applied? One standard is Section 8.1.3(1)(b), which requires that each proposed use be a substantial improvement to
property in the immediate vicinity and to the community as a whole.

That standard was applied when the original SUP was approved. The findings of fact for that original approval stated
that the preservation of the open space was a substantial improvement over non-PUD development rights which
benefitted properties within the immediate vicinity. The original findings of fact also indicated that the development
provides for a desirable living environment with respect to views and the preservation of the same from surrounding
properties without significantly hindering viewsheds. Now the developer wants to eliminate even more of the open
space and views that benefits neighboring properties and that he used to get the SUP approved in the first place. If you
take the approach that a developer can amend an SUP to adversely affect neighboring property owners so long as the
detriment is not that severe, then you are essentially gutting the sections of the ordinance that protect neighboring
properties. A developer will be able to put in an initial SUP application open space buffers, retention of views, and other
benefits for neighboring properties as needed to get it approved, but then later eliminate those benefits under your
significantly lower amendment standard.

The proposed master plan states that the rural atmosphere of the Peninsula is to be valued and retained. The original

PUD approval had one lot next to our property, which was consistent with our rural zoning classification and rural

atmosphere. Then an amendment was approved adding a second house next to our property on a finding that the

benefit to the neighbors at the south end of the development justified its approval. The proposed amendment would

add a third lot adjacent to our rural property. It would place two lots together in a compact fashion that definitely is not
1



rural at the most prominent spot next to our property. A third house will add even more construction noise, traffic, and
light. It will adversely affect the use and enjoyment of our property, particularly the use and enjoyment of our open
space and views.

We are not asking you to reject this amendment because of emotion. We are asking you to reject this amendment
because it does not meet the requirements of the ordinance, and approving it under a lower standard than is set forth in
the ordinance will enable developers to later eliminate the benefits for neighboring properties that they provided to get
SUPs approved to begin with. The rural character of the Peninsula seems to be continually diminishing one property at a
time. Please apply the zoning ordinance requirements as written, maintain the SUP protections it contains as to
neighboring properties, deny the proposed amendment, and keep the rural character of our property from being further
diminished.

Thank you for your consideration.

Craig Haddox — 614-361-5196



Jennifer Cram

=
From: chaddox75@gmail.com
Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 4:17 PM
To: Jennifer Cram
Subject: FW: Proposed SUP Amendment for Peninsula Shores

Jenn, | emailed the below but got a response that it did not go through to you. Could you confirm that you received
it? Thanks - Craig

From: chaddox75@gmail.com <chaddox75@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:38 PM

To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com; jualexanptpc@gmail.com;
duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com; armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com

Cc: planner@peninsulatownship.com.

Subject: Proposed SUP Amendment for Peninsula Shores

Dear Planning Commission Members:

There seems to be a view by some that moving a house within the development is permitted as a right under
the ordinance. We wonder if this is based on the March 10, 2022 legal opinion from Gregory Meihn.

The opinion’s essence is that once a residential SUP is approved, the owner can come back and move houses
anywhere within the property so long as there is no increase in units, change in utilities or roads, reduction of
open space, “or other modification that changes the very nature of the prior approval”.

The initial approval of the SUP evaluated the location of the proposed houses, and the findings approved by
the Township indicate that the proposed locations were a significant factor in approving the SUP. The
Township found that (1) the development of the proposed PUD should not negatively impact adjacent
neighbors, (2) the applicant designed the housing sites to complement the existing residential use pattern,

(3) the lot locations were located within the interior of the project to preserve views, (4) the preservation of
the open space benefited the neighboring properties, and (5) the proposed development provided a desirable
living environment with respect to the preservation of views from surrounding properties without significantly
hindering viewsheds.

Do the proposed relocations of houses in a manner that is contrary to the original findings set forth above
“change the very nature of the prior approval”? We believe it does, as it goes against several of the original
findings of fact that were the basis of the original approval. Therefore, you should deny the amendment
based on this legal opinion. The opinion sets forth in several places the need to honor and defer to the
original decision.

If not, then the opinion is nonsense. The opinion would then be saying the Township could base its initial
approval on the location of the lots and how that affects neighboring properties, but those findings and the
impact on neighboring properties should be ignored if the owner later requests amendments to move the
lots. Essentially that would result in the original reasons for the approval being cast aside, and the owner



being able to relocate his lots at will despite what the original findings of fact were. That would be contrary to
the opinion’s admonition that the original approval be honored and deferred to.

So how should the Section 8.1.3(1)(b) be applied to SUP amendments? Some have suggested it should not
apply to any amendment as it would prevent some simple amendments from being approved. That is not a
good reason for never applying it to any amendment. Perhaps this section should not apply to an amendment
that does not affect any of the original findings of fact that found the original project was an improvement for
property in the immediate vicinity or for the community as a whole or found that the original project was not
hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity. However, it seems very clear to
me that this section should be applied when the amendment proposes changes that would eliminate or
diminish the improvements for neighboring properties or the community as a whole that the Township found
were reasons to grant the initial approval or changes that negatively impact adjacent neighbors. That is the
case with the proposed amendment.

It seems clear to us that, based upon the legal opinion and the original SUP approval, this amendment should
be denied due to its negative impacts on neighboring properties which are contrary to the original finding of
facts and due to its dearth of any other real practical benefits.

Thanks for your consideration.
Craig Haddox

4150 Trevor



Jennifer Cram

From: chaddox75@gmail.com

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 4:29 PM
To: Jennifer Cram .
Subject: FW: Peninsula Shores Amendment

Jenn, could you also include the below in the packet for the public hearing? Thanks - Craig

From: chaddox75@gmail.com <chaddox75@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 1:31 PM

To: rand.plancom@gmail.com; shipman.parks@gmail.com; lwdloski@gmail.com; jualexanptpc@gmail.com;
duneclimber55@yahoo.com; dsh_44@yahoo.com; armen.peninsulatrustee@gmail.com

Cc: 'Jennifer Cram' <planner@peninsulatownship.com>

Subject: Peninsula Shores Amendment

Dear Planning Commission Members:
Thank you for your thoughtful comments at the meeting last night.

First, | hope we can all agree that adding another house on the northern end of the development is detrimental to the
neighbors to the north and west of the development. We may disagree on the extent of that detriment, but it is clearly
a detriment when compared to the current open space and views.

SUP’s are to be a win-win-win for the developer, the neighboring property owners, and the community as a whole.
Under Section 6.1.5, the Ordinance makes it clear that SUP’s require special consideration in relation to the welfare of
adjacent properties and to the community as a whole. The other two categories under Section 6.1.5 (uses permitted by
right and uses permitted under special conditions) do not contain such a requirement. Further, the SUP sections of the
Ordinance state that the effect an neighboring properties is a key criteria for SUP’s. Section 8.8.1 states that the SUP
sections of the Ordinance are to protect the health, safety, convenience, and general welfare of Township inhabitants.
The Ordinance does not contain such criteria for developments governed by the residential zoning districts — if the
developer meets the requirements of those zoning districts, he can develop his property accordingly regardless of its
impact on neighboring properties. That is not the case under the SUP sections of the Ordinance, which contain a much
higher standard.

| was disappointed by the lack of focus on the impact of the proposed change on the neighboring propetrties and
application of the ordinance provisions that address neighboring properties. Some asked what is the standard to be
applied? One standard is Section 8.1.3(1)(b), which requires that each proposed use be a substantial improvement to
property in the immediate vicinity and to the community as a whole.

That standard was applied when the original SUP was approved. The findings of fact for that original approval stated
that the preservation of the open space was a substantial improvement over non-PUD development rights which
benefitted properties within the immediate vicinity. The original findings of fact also indicated that the development
provides for a desirable living environment with respect to views and the preservation of the same from surrounding
properties without significantly hindering viewsheds. Now the developer wants to eliminate even more of the open
space and views that benefits neighboring properties and that he used to get the SUP approved in the first place. If you
take the approach that a developer can amend an SUP to adversely affect neighboring property owners so long as the
detriment is not that severe, then you are essentially gutting the sections of the ordinance that protect neighboring
properties. A developer will be able to put in an initial SUP application open space buffers, retention of views, and other
1




benefits for neighboring properties as needed to get it approved, but then later eliminate those benefits under your
significantly lower amendment standard.

The proposed master plan states that the rural atmosphere of the Peninsula is to be valued and retained. The original
PUD approval had one lot next to our property, which was consistent with our rural zoning classification and rural
atmosphere. Then an amendment was approved adding a second house next to our property on a finding that the
benefit to the neighbors at the south end of the development justified its approval. The proposed amendment would
add a third lot adjacent to our rural property. It would place two lots together in a compact fashion that definitely is not
rural at the most prominent spot next to our property. A third house will add even more construction noise, traffic, and
light. It will adversely affect the use and enjoyment of our property, particularly the use and enjoyment of our open
space and views.

We are not asking you to reject this amendment because of emotion. We are asking you to reject this amendment
because it does not meet the requirements of the ordinance, and approving it under a lower standard than is set forth in
the ordinance will enable developers to later eliminate the benefits for neighboring properties that they provided to get
SUPs approved to begin with. The rural character of the Peninsula seems to be continually diminishing one property at a
time. Please apply the zoning ordinance requirements as written, maintain the SUP protections it contains as to
neighboring properties, deny the proposed amendment, and keep the rural character of our property from being further
diminished.

Thank you for your consideration.

Craig Haddox — 614-361-5196



DRAFT Master Plan



GRAND
LRSSV RIS S
LAy

.'- 7l | } !
' W -
e 16 — y Il

Existing Land Use Map o e &

Beckett & Raeder, inc.
Sources: Michigan Open Data Portal, Peninsula Township

Agriculture B Land with Conservation Easement
B Commercial || Agricultural Protection Zone
. Suburban Residential Public

Rural Residential



GRAND
TRAVERSE

Existing Land Use Map North = e >

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.
Sources: Michigan Open Data Portal, Peninsula Township

Agriculture B Land with Conservation Easement
B Commercial D Agricultural Protection Zone

Suburban Residential Public

Rural Residential




-

Existing Lahd Use Map South e @

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.
Sources: Michigan Open Data Portal, Peninsuta Township
Agriculture B Land with Conservation Easement
B Commercial || Agricultural Protection Zone
Suburban Residential Public

Rural Residential




\ h.
1 {
e ]

l’li.\’lXS[,'I..\

Stewardship of a Special Place

Peninsula Township
MASTER PLAN

Stewardship of a Special Place

DRAFT DECEMBER 2021



Insert Resolution



Acknowledgements

Board of Trustees

Rob Manigold, Supervisor
Becky Chown, Clerk
Brad Bickle, Treasurer

Margaret A. Achorn, Trustee
David K. Sanger, Trustee
Warren L. Wahl, Trustee

Isaiah S. Wunsch, Trustee

Planning Commission Master Plan Steering Committee

Susan Shipman, Chair Susan Shipman, Chair
Randy Hall, Vice Chair Jennifer Bramer
Lawrence Dloski, Secretary Lawrence Dloski
Al Couture Chad Hartley
Julie Alexander Mary Beth Milliken
Donna Hornberger Dave Murphy
Isaiah Wunsch David Sanger
Andy Valdmanis
Todd Wilson

Isaiah Wunch




This page intentionally left blank.



Table of Contents

Prologue

1. Introduction
. Community Overview

3. Community Attitudes & Insights
. Trends

4
5. Legacy, Challenges, & Vision
6. Land Use

7. Mobility

8. Plases Facilities, & Governance

9. Implementation Summary

Appendix




This page intentionally left blank.

6 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Prologue

April 2, 2024

The most recent update of the Master Plan

was finalized and distributed to neighboring
jurisdictions for their review and feedback in
December of 2021. The Planning Commission,
however, for a variety of reasons, did not act to
adopt the plan in the intervening years. In January
of 2024 the Planning Commission renewed the
effort to adopt the plan. The Commission, realizing
that the plan needed to be brought current,

held several sub-committee and regular session
discussions to edit and update the document. The
timeline below reflects several initiatives anticipated
in the 2021 plan that were finalized or have
progressed significantly since then.

January 6, 2021 - The Non-motorized Study
Group started meeting and developed a vision
statement and goals. As of April 2024, the study
group is actively applying for grants to obtain
funding to support the development of a non-
motorized plan for the peninsula that connects
recreational opportunities in the region.

December 2, 2021 — The Citizens Agricultural
Advisory Committee started meeting. The
committee met to provide input on the policy
direction for zoning ordinance amendments related
to wineries, farm processing facilities, roadside
stands and other value-added agricultural uses.

February 2022 — The Peninsula Township Parks
Funding Feasibility Report was approved.

July 12, 2022 - The Purchase of Development
Rights (PDR) Ordinance #23, Amendment #3 was
adopted. This amendment clarified and streamlined
the scoring process and added points for matching
funds from state and federal programs.

August 2, 2022 - Voters approved the PDR millage
for the third time.

December 13, 2022 - Amendment #201 to

the Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance was
adopted. This amendment to the zoning ordinance
repealed sections related to winery chateaus and
revised regulations for wholesale and retail farm
processing facilities as well as remote tasting
rooms.

January 24, 2023 - Peninsula Township 5-Year
Parks and Recreation Plan adopted.

April 11, 2023 - Parks Ordinance #57 was
adopted. This ordinance repealed previous parks
ordinances.

April 19, 2023 - Floodplain Ordinance #53,
Amendment #1 related to floodplains was adopted.

May 9, 2023 — Amendment #203 to the Peninsula
Township Zoning Ordinance was adopted. This
amendment to the zoning ordinance renamed
roadside stands to farm stands and updated
regulations to be consistent with the Michigan
Right to Farm Act.

November 15, 2023 — Cemetery Ordinance #58
was adopted.

January 29, 2024 - Shoreline Regulation Study
Group started meeting. The study group was
formed to provide diverse input on the policy
direction for zoning ordinance amendments related
to the number of docks and hoists and land uses
on the shoreline.

March 12, 2024 — Amendment #204 to the
Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance was
adopted. This amendment to the zoning ordinance
revised how building height is measured. The
Meeker Addition acquisition to the Pelizzari Natural
Area expansion was also approved.

Prologue | 7



This page intentionally left blank.

8 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



1. Introduction

q}-

". . .I S r‘ " "l" ."',::1 ':’ . ’ :
3 yit l' .Aﬂ ' L A, * l\f = 4
Oy ook rvmz

L I - &-f—.

Introduction | 9



Peninsula Township, Michigan

Peninsula Township (Old Mission Peninsula)
has some of the most impressive scenery in

all of Michigan, with rolling hills, 42
miles of Great Lakes' shoreline, stunning views
of Lake Michigan bays, &rgl farms, orchards,
vineyards, and wineries. Thousands of tourists
visit the area annually to enjoy the beauty of
the Old Mission Peninsula, and more than
6,000 people are fortunate enough to call this
area home. Residents and community leaders
have long recognized the spectacular beauty
of the peninsula and have consistently taken
innovative steps to be good stewards of this
special place. One such step is to have a current
master plan that defines an achievable yet
inspirational vision for the future.

WHAT IS A MASTER PLAN?

A master plan is a document that describes a long-
term and comprehensive perspective of the future
of a community. It offers an educational element to
frame community issues along with an aspirational
and goal-oriented view of the future. Master

plans often begin with a description of existing
conditions, trends, and current attitudes, then look
forward to define long-term community visions and
goals.

The need for a master plan has been recognized

perhaps as long as there have been townships and
municipalities that grow and change. The places in
which we live and work are constantly changing —

they grow, shrink, age, develop, and redevelop over
time. Sometimes, physical change is subtle and
nearly imperceptible. Other times, physical change
can be dramatic as large private developments

or public infrastructure projects are completed.
Beyond the pace of community change is the larger

‘question of whether the direction of change is

taking a community forward toward a more livable,
economically stable, and attractive place.

The fuel that drives community change is decision
making. The community we see today is the
product of past decisions both large and small past
desisions made by individuals and public or private
organizations. Local leaders make decisions about
how to regulate land use, what public buildings
and infrastructure to build and maintain, and
what services to provide. The private sector makes
decisions about how to respond to commercial
needs and market demands. Together, these
decisions produce community change. Thus, the
need for a sense of direction and overall vision

is apparent. The purpose of a master plan is to
provide such vision, articulating the way forward
based on community attitudes and preferences.
Driven by such vision, master plans describe the
necessary steps required to achieve goals.

The value of master plans is often measured by

the extent to which they fully and completely
reflect the desires of residents and stakeholders
Effective master plans typically offer a high level of
community engagement at the foundation of their
recommendations. They speak authoritatively about
what residents desire and clearly describe the kind
of community they wish to call home in the future.

10 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Legal Context

Apart from helping to satisfy the basic desire to shape the future
and provide a direction for community change, there is a legal
dimension to master plans. More than a dozen states actually
require a local master plan (also called a comprehensive plan), and
others encourage it in various ways. In Michigan, the controlling
statute is the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MPEA) of 2008.
This act consolidated older, related planning statutes and defined
basic requirements and procedures for developing a master plan
in Michigan communities. One significant legal aspect of the
MPEA relates to the connection between the master plan and
zoning. The MPEA requires steps to reconcile proposed land-

use categories in the master plan with existing zoning districts
found in the zoning ordinance. Additionally, the Michigan Zoning
Enabling Act of 2006 (Section 125.3203) similarly connects to the
master plan by specifically stating that a zoning ordinance shall
be based on a plan designed to promote the public health, safety,
and general welfare.

Recent Planning History

Peninsula Township recently began steps to update the township‘s zoning
ordinance (adopted in 1972). Many zoning amendments have been made
to this document over the years, but work to update this particular version
NPl began in 2016 and focused primarily on updating format and structure;
.- — adding illustrative graphics, organization, definitional elements, and maps;
_M"S‘er Plan confarming with state law, removing conflicting sections, and clarifying
' & procedures. This work is nearing completion in late 2021 and is intended
to provide a foundation for future zoning updates that will be more
substantiative in nature.

Penlnsala Township
Graa Trevaese Coeety, MicSigna.

The 2019 formation of the Peninsula Township Master Plan Steering
Committee was another major milestone. This committee included members
of both the planning commission and township board along with several
knowledgeable residents. Committee accomplishments included developing
and implementing a new community survey, designing and launching the
Participate Old Mission online community engagement platform (see Chapter
3), and developing this document. It is hoped this committee will continue to
function and leverage institutional knowledge and insight gained during the
planning process to maintain momentum toward future master plan updates.

Introduction | 11



A SPECIAL PLACE

Peninsula Township was established in 1853 as part of Grand Traverse County. Townships are a
common form of local government in Michigan, but Peninsula Township is unlike other townships in

Michigan for at least six important reasons as presented below.

1. Size and Shape

Michigan has 1,240 townships. Most are
rectangular in shape and about 36 square miles, or
23,040 acres, in size. Peninsula Township is smaller
than most townships with only about 28 square
miles, or ++755-17,858 acres. However, despite

its smaller size, it is uniguely shaped as a long and
narrow peninsula extending about 16 miles into
Lake Michigan’s Grand Traverse Bay. This long,
narrow shape never more than three and a half
miles wide at any point creates nearly 42 miles of
precious Great Lakes shoreline. At the same time,
this unique shape creates transportation challenges.
A single point of primary access to the Traverse City
urban area occurs at the south end of the peninsula
where Peninsula Drive and M-37 converge.

This single point of traffic convergence creates

a significant traffic chokepoint (see page 25).
Additionally, because the township is a peninsula,
there is almost no potential for shared public safety
services with adjacent jurisdictions. Peninsula
Township has just built a third fire station so that all
residents can receive reasonable and equal fire and
EMS response times.

2. Property Values

The natural beauty of the area helps make
Peninsula Township a highly desirable place to live.
To that end, raw land prices are significantly higher
in the township than in surrounding areas. Highly
desirable waterfront lots and interior parcels with
spectacular views justify high land values and the
construction of expensive homes.

According to MLive (posted Feb. 04, 2020),
Peninsula Township was 15th among all cities and
townships in the state of Michigan in terms of
median home values at just under $400,000. The
most recent tax assessment records point to the
fact that the total assessed value of property in
Peninsula Township recently passed the $1 billion
mark.

12 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

3. Natural Beauty

Peninsula Township is one of the most scenic in
Michigan and the nation as a whole. In 2013,
USA Today identified M-37 as among the 10 most
beautiful coastal drives across North America. Old
Mission Peninsula was also designated as one

of six Scenic Byways in Michigan. Elements that
contribute to this natural beauty include striking
views of East and West Grand Traverse bays, rolling
topography, and extensive fields of fruit trees

and vineyards. Clear water, sandy beaches, and
protected bays also contribute to an incredible
natural environment that draws tourists from
around the world.

4. Microclimate

Because Peninsula Township is a narrow finger of
land extending into Grand Traverse Bay, it has a
special microclimate that helps support agriculture
in the form of fruit trees and vineyards. The deep,
cool waters of Lake Michigan and Grand Traverse
Bay along with prevailing westerly winds and
moderate temperatures help increase frost-free
days in both the spring and fall. In cherry trees, for
example, cool spring temperatures slow fruit and
bud development, which minimizes the danger

of damage due to freezes. Similarly, this unique
microclimate contributed to the approval of a
petition to designate Peninsula Township as a
viticultural area

known as Old Mission Peninsula (see Federal
Register Vol. 52, No 109, Monday, June 8, 1987).
This designation was granted by the federal
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms and was
the fourth American viticultural area established
in Michigan. An approved viticultural area is
associated with an appellation of origin on wine
labels and in wine advertisements.

5. Tourism

The natural beauty of the peninsula together with
the wineries, Mission Point Lighthouse, and the



overall popularity of the Traverse City region make
Peninsula Township a popular tourist destination.
The city of Traverse City reports that more than
3.3 million people visit the area each year (2012
statistics). That's about 35 times

the total population of Grand Traverse County.
Within this region, Peninsula Township is an
oft-visited place. More than 50,000 people a

year make the trip to the far northern tip of the
peninsula and sign the guest book at Mission
Point Lighthouse. Many more visit who don’t sign
the guest book. They come from all 50 states

and many other countries. Additionally, the link
to local tourism is so strong that one television
advertisement for the tremendously successful Pure
Michigan ad campaign featured images of the Old
Mission General Store.

6. Parks And Recreation

Old Mission Peninsula is a magnet for recreational
activities due to a combination of parkland, scenic
vistas, shoreline roads, and Grand Traverse Bay.
The township owns or manages 833 acres of
publically accessible lands. The Grand Traverse

TOTAL ACRES
IN PENINSULA
TOWNSHIP: -

Regional Land Conservancy protects another 159
available acres at Pyatt Lake Natural Area: The Bill
Carls Nature Preserve. Power Island’s 200 acres are
county managed and within township boundaries.
The DNR manages two boat launches, and the
township will manage a third at Kelley Park. The
shoreline roads attract countless cyclists, runners,
and walkers. Nearby schools send athletes to train
on our shoreline roads and in our parks. Cycling
and track groups promote peninsula rides and
runs, and nationally publicized races are hosted
here as well. Residents and visitors use the bays
for boating, water skiing, fishing, sailing, and
exercise via kayaking, paddle boarding, and
swimming. When the bay freezes, here come the
ice fishermen, skiers, and ice sailing boats. For
residents and visitors alike, recreation is undeniably
a sacrosanct feature of this peninsula.

Relative to its size, Peninsula Township enjoys an
extraordinary number of acres of parkland. Seven
acres out of every one hundred are set aside in
some way for park and open space uses and
owned by a unit of government or the Grand
Traverse Regional Land Conservancy

Regional Land Cons.: 159 acres (13%)

Peninsula Township: 167 acres (14%)

Parkland Grand Traverse Co: 201 acres (17%)

1,192
acres

State of Michigan: 666 acres (56%)
(Peninsula Township Managed

Introduction | 13



Archie Park

Kelley Park

14 | Peninsula Township Master Plan




Bowers Harbor Park

Introduction | 15



This page intentionally left blank.

16 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Z‘F'.'-ﬁ

.

. . - — ! :
- 4 | T . 29 Teze

2 Commumty Overv1ew

Community Overview | 17



Overview

The jurisdictional boundaries of Peninsula Township
extend approximately 16 miles into Grand Traverse
Bay, covering ++75517 858 acres and roughly

42 miles of shoreline. Adjacent to the township’s
southern boundary lie the city limits of Traverse
City. Access to the township is limited, given the
single state highway, M-37, which leads from #4
115-31 to the very tip of the peninsula.

History

Old Mission Peninsula has a rich history. Extensive
descriptions of archaeological resources, native
residents, early European settlements, and
historic events can be found in books and
resources provided by organizations such as the
Old Mission Peninsula Historical Society and the
Peter Dougherty Society. Peninsula Township

also gratefully acknowledges Karen Rieser, who

18 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



prepared the following summary of local history
based on her research and knowledge.

As part of the Great Lakes ecosystem, the glacially
created Old Mission Peninsula has provided a
home for many peoples and cultures. Historians
are unclear as to who the “first people” were and
can only define residents by what was left behind.
As a result, it is believed that the first people to
the Grand Traverse area were the mound builders
of the Hopewellian era. A group of people living
throughout the eastern and central parts of the
U.S. and Canada who worked with iron and
copper, the Hopewell people were here between
10-400 BC. The Anishinabek came sometime later,
the peninsula providing a home for the members
of the Odawa and Ojibwa tribes. Before settling
on the peninsula, the Anishinabek had made their
home on the southern shores of Lake Superior. In
1740, when the soil in the Mackinac area began
to fail, the tribes moved south, some choosing to
settle on the resource-rich peninsula extending into
Grand Traverse Bay.

The Anishinabek lived peacefully in the area

as successful farmers, fishers, and hunters.
Contemporary visitors to the area would have
observed numerous birchbark wigwams, Three
Sisters gardens containing corn, beans, and
squash, a shore lined with fishing nets, canoes
venturing into the bay to harvest fish, and racks
of fish drying in the sun. On occasion, hunting
parties would search the heavily timbered forests
seeking game such as rabbit, squirrel, deer, and
turkey. A variety of social interactions would also
have been observed: grandmothers working with
the very young, adults teaching boys and girls
necessary skills, and others working to maintain the
emotional and physical health of the tribe.

By the mid 1800s, Michigan had become the
26th state, European settlers were occupying the
land running along its southern border, and the
state government possessed a variety of signed
treaties that increased the land available for white
settlement.

One such treaty, the Treaty of Washington signed in
1836, ceded 14 million acres of land to the federal
government and made the entire Old Mission
Peninsula a reservation. The local tribe lived on the
property, received cash payments over time, and
was promised a mission and school.

= L :f,‘g;__'_‘*.}

- - 2 »
” = = =
TS e s o — s = e

Mission Point Lighthouse

Community Overview | 19



In 1838, the Native Americans on Old Mission first
encountered Europeans, including Reverend Peter
Dougherty, a missionary sent by the Presbyterian
Board of Foreign Missions to create the promised
mission and school. The board’s objective was to
"civilize,” Christianize, and Europeanize the Native
American population.

Over the 13 years Reverend Dougherty lived on the
peninsula, he built a school, a framed home for

his family, a church, and a community of converts.
In 1852, with rumors flying that Native Americans
east of the Mississippi would be relocated per the
Indian Removal Act of 1830, a portion of the tribe,
now citizens and permitted to purchase land due to
their conversion to Christianity, moved across West
Bay to the Leelanau Peninsula (the remainder of the
tribe migrated to Canada). Dougherty accompanied
his converts across the bay, helped them purchase
non- reservation land, and created a new mission.

The peninsula was now vacant but for a few
squatters waiting to earn legal rights to the land
from the federal government, but the government
was unclear as to who owned the reservation. At
the end of the Civil War, the government finally
concluded that it owned the reservation and began
to sell or disperse it to Civil War heroes and soldiers
in lieu of payment for services.

By now, the area formerly used for Dougherty’s
mission was now casually referred to as Old
Mission. The name officially changed when Traverse
City postmaster George Hebben renamed the
peninsula’s post office the Old Mission Post Office.

Over the years, the peninsula became home to
more European settlers. Log cabins appeared, soon
replaced by clapboard farmhouses. Agriculture and
tourism became big business. A variety of produce
was grown, including potatoes, apples, cherries,
hops, hemp, grapes, blueberries, lavender, and
Christmas trees. Livestock such as mink, cattle,
whitefish, and trout were raised or harvested from
the bay.

Successful farming produced more than peninsula
residents and the large number of tourists who
flocked to enjoy the beauty of the area consumed.
The need to move these products quickly led to the
development of a maritime shipping industry. The
deep waters of Bowers and Old Mission harbors
became prominent ports. Each provided a massive
dock, storage sheds, and office space.

20 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

In 1909, schooners such as the Boyce left Bowers
Harbor headed for Chicago loaded with up to
8,000 pounds of potatoes. Later, steam-driven
ships transported goods up and down Michigan’s
west coast, along the eastern coast of Wisconsin
and lllinois, and to the large city port of Chicago
Eventually, water transportation was replaced by
train and truck transport, still the method of choice
today.

In 1870, the increase in maritime activity prompted
the construction of a lighthouse station at the tip
of the peninsula to warn sailors of the shoal that
surrounds the point. The #etrepetis= cargo ship
Metropolis was just one of the vessels captured by
the shoal; its wreckage can be seen just yards off
Haserot Beach.

S Tearer a7 0lo #ission oJoch. crrea /900



Tourists also arrived by schooner, steamship,
train, and auto and stayed in a variety of lodging
destinations, some still in business today. One
might choose to stay at Hedden Hall, also known
as The Porter House and today the Old Mission
Inn. The Pines and the Neahtawanta Inn were
also available to summer visitors. The Stonewall
Inn, Bowers Harbor Inn, and Rushmore Inn, once
popular destinations, are no longer available for
lodging.

Over the years, commercial enterprises were
established on the peninsula, several of which are
still in business today. In 1853, the popular H. K.
Brinkman Boots and Shoe Shop was located on
Woodland Road. Grocery stores came and went,
among them Lardies, now the General Store;

the Bowers Harbor Store, now the Boathouse
Restaurant; and Watson's Grocery, located across
from what is now the Peninsula Market. John
Emory, the great-grandson of Captain Emory, a
maritime sailor, developed the Big Jon Company
that designed and produced downriggers and other
fishing equipment of such high quality they are
now sold nationally.

Descendants of the Ojibwa, Odawa, and early
pioneers still reside in the area; their devotion to
the land runs deep. Land preservation, continued
agricultural growth, and walking a respectful path
into the future is of great importance to protect
the past and enhance the future of this beloved
peninsula.

The current presence of Native Americans in the
area is also apparent with the Grand Traverse Band
of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians. Tribal offices

are located in Peshawbestown, Michigan, about
20 miles north of Traverse City in Leelanau County
(or about six miles west of the tip of Peninsula
TJownship across the west arm of Grand Traverse
Bay). The Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and
Chippewa Indians is a federally recognized Native
American tribe with a reservation extending into
portions of six counties as well as Grand Traverse
Bay, the eastern shore of Lake Michigan, Lake
Leelanau, and Elk Lake. In addition, the tribe owns
and operates the Turtle Creek Casino & Hotel,
Grand Traverse Resort and Spa, and Leelanau Sands
Casino & Lodge;and-GrandTraverse-Resort-and-
Spa.

With these historic roots, the Old Mission Peninsula
remains a thriving agricultural area and continues

to host tourists from all over the world. Visitors and
residents alike enjoy breathtaking landscapes, clear
waters, sandy beaches, a variety of events, multiple
restaurants, award-winning wineries, and fabulous
historical sites.

Fortunately, several of the peninsula’s more
prominent historical resources are designated

as such at the state and federal levels, including
the National Register of Historic Places, which is
the official list of our country’s historic buildings,
districts, sites, structures, and objects worthy of
preservation.

The National Register was established as part of
the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 and
is overseen by the National Park Service. Three
properties in Peninsula Township are included on
the National Register:

» Hedden Hall (also known as the Old Mission Inn
and the Porter Hotel);

» Stickney Summer House and Bowers Harbor Inn
(where Mission Table and the Jolly Pumpkin are
now located); and

» Dougherty Mission House.

The state of Michigan also identifies historic sites
that may or may not also be on the national
register. Current state of Michigan listings include:

» Hedden Hall (also known as the Old Mission Inn
and the Porter Hotel);

» Joseph Hessler Log House;

» Mission Point Lighthouse Park:

» Mission Point Lighthouse;

» 0Old Mission Congregational Church; and
» Dougherty Mission House.

Soils

According to the U.S. Soil Conservation Service,
there are six general soil associations in Grand
Traverse County. One of these soils associations
is the Emmet Leelanau association on the Old
Mission Peninsula north of Traverse City and in
the northeastern and north-central portion of the
county. This soil association is described as being
well-drained, slightly acid to neutral sandy loams
and loamy sands occurring on gently to steeply
sloping areas.

Community Overview | 21



Steep Slopes Map

Legend

= US / State Highway SLOPE %
- Local Road L 1218
[ LakemRiver [ 1825
[ traverse aity B 25-45

22 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Topography

Glacial topography on the peninsula consists of
rolling hills, valleys, and wetlands. Some bluffs

rise dramatically from the shores of the bays to
more than 200 feet ir—etevation above lake level,
affording spectacular views of East and West
Grand Traverse bays. The slope and aspect of the
hillsides provide excellent locations for orchards and
vineyards. An illustration of areas with steep slopes
is shown on the map on page 20. Most steep
slopes are found toward the south.

Climate

Climate combines with topography and soil types
to make Peninsula Township a uniquely ideal area
for agriculture, particularly fruit crops. Classified as
a humid continental maritime climate, peninsula
weather is moderated by the presence of the two
bays. The microclimate, tempered by the insulating
quality of the bays, protects vulnerable buds from
early- and late-season frosts and results in a longer-
than-usual growing period. The frost-free season
on the peninsula ranges from 140 to more than
150 days compared to fewer than 100 days inland
near Fife Lake. Annual snowfall averages 120
inches in the southwest portion of Grand Traverse
County compared to fewer than 90 inches on the
peninsula.

Agriculture

Native Americans were the original farmers in the
region, and agriculture has played an important
role in the lives of subsequent township residents
for many generations. In the 1800s, a group of
settlers hired a state geologist to survey the area
and prepare a report. The findings indicated that
the climate and soils were favorably suited for fruit
production.

Shortly after the report was published, George
Parmalee planted cherry trees. Other pioneers
followed Mr. Parmalee’s example, concentrating on
developing orchard agriculture on the peninsula.
By 1904, the census indicated that 1,369 acres of
apples and 202 acres of cherries had been planted.
In recent decades, a number of landowners have
planted grapes for wine production, which now
represents an important industry on the peninsula.
Other industries that support agriculture have

also developed. While there has have traditionally
been litte few heavy ireustry-industrial uses on

the peninsula, the township is currently home to
many agriculturally-based businesses such as fruit
processing plants.

Historical Context of Agriculture and
Agribusiness

The first township master plan was adopted in
1968, and farmland protection was among the
goals identified. Subsequently, a zoning ordinance
was adopted in 1972 that defined an A1
agricultural A% zoning boundary that is essentially
the same today as it was then. Chateau Grand
Traverse was arriond the first commercial vineyard
and winery operations to appear in the 1970s at

a time when cherries and other tree fruits were

the major agricultural activities on the peninsula.
The grape/winery industry continued to grow
throughout the late 1970s and early ‘80s with most
growers selling to processors in Peninsula Township
and Leelanau County.

The combination of increases in land values and a
growing trend of prime farmland being converted
into subdivisions created a concern among farmers
and homeowners about the future of Old Mission
Peninsula agriculture.

George McManus, county extension agent and
later state senator, wrote an article for the Soil
Conservation Service newsletter in 1973 asking
a profound question: In the future, would there
be cherries on Old Mission Peninsula? This
article crystalized the concern about farming
versus development in the minds of farmers and

Community Overview | 23



homeowners alike. The farmers were concerned
about non-farm persens residences in close
proximity to preducing-farmiand active farm
operations and their complaints about the dust,
noise, and odors of normal farming practices.
Hemeowners-were-concerned-about-thetossof-

. .
cha Iaete of the |E5”. i e eese[d rvera l

TBxXesT

In the late 1980s, these trends prompted a
review of the township’s master plan and zoning
ordinance. The resulting master plan and zoning
rules were based on the carrying capacity of roads
and utilities. Recoghizing-the-unigue-geography-
: pe ey

called-forareductionin-the-sewerand-water

i€ i —At the same time, increased
flexibility for home occupations and employees
in residences was proposed as a way to add
economic opportunity. It also increased value-
added opportunities for farming operations while
keeping non-farm persons from close proximity to
production activities. Further, a study by township
staff showed that residential development did not
always pay for the full cost of public services it used
while farmland and open space required fewer
services while paying a comparatively high level of
taxes.

With the prospect of growth pressure and
expectation of the loss of unique agricultural

land in sharper focus, a purchase of development
rights (PDR) program was created and supported
by residents. In 1994, the voters in Peninsula
Township approved a tax increase of one and a
quarter mills for 10 years to preserve in perpetuity
the agricultural and open space character of the
township. This program was among the first of its
kind in the nation. In 2002, voters again confirmed
the plan by approving a second millage vote of two
mills for 20 years. The second millage vote, while
for an increased amount over a longer period, was
approved by 60 percent of the votes cast. Today,
the money generated from past millage votes has
largely been spent, and the PDR citizen committee
is beginning to explore residents’ interest in once
again renewing the PDR millage. According to

the 2019 citizen survey (see Chapter 3), residents
are aware of the PDR, program and a majority are
interested in renewing the millage.

Past planning efforts in Peninsula Township led

24 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

to the definition of the Agricultural Preservation
Area (APA). This map closely aligns with the A-1
agricultural zoning district and depicts all high
quality agricultural land that is technically eligible
to participate in the PDR program if a voluntary
application is completed by the property owner.
As shown, the APA covers a significant portion of
Peninsula Township.

Part of the basis for determining the boundaries
of the APA also included the Red Tart Cherry Site
Inventory for Grand Traverse County Michigan
prepared by the U.S. Department of Agriculture,
Soil Conservation Service. This 1971 report
evaluated parcels of land according to their
ability to consistently produce cherry crops.
Considerations included soil conditions as well

as physiographic and microclimatic factors.
Color-coded maps were generated that depicted
desirable locations for cherry production as well
as areas associated with moderate or severe
limitations that influence cherry production yields.
Relevant maps from this report are included in the
appendix.

After many years of planning and implementation,
the map to the right shows the total amount of
protected land in the township. The PDR program,
together with other forms of land protection, now
protects more than 6,000 acres, or 34 percent of
the township.

Considering only the agricultural preservation area,
which is nearly 9,900 acres, the total amount of




PENINSULA
TOWNSHIP

AGRICULTURAL
PRESERVATION
AREA (APA)

PARCELS i

O ara

Craate Date: February 11, 2020

Community Overview | 25



PENINSULA TWP. PROTECTED LANDS 2020

YW GTRLC.ORG

LEGEND

Protected Land, Open to the Public

Protected Land, Privately Owned (Including Farmland)

Agricultural Preservation Zone

Unprotected Land within Agricultural
Preservation Zone

COEE

PENINSULA TOWNSHIP PROTECTED LANDS

Total Size of Peninsula Township: 17,755ac
Total Area of Land Under Protection: 6,042 ac
Percent of Peninsula Township Protected 34%

AGRICULTURAL PROTECTION ZONE (APZ)

Size of Agricultural Protection Zone: 9,861 ac
Protected Private Land in APZ: 4,501 ac
Protected Public Land in APZ: 659ac

Total Protected Land in APZ: 5,160 ac

Percent of APZ Protected: 52%

26 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



protected land covers about 53 percent of the total
acres.

Transportation

Elements of the transportation system we see today
are deeply rooted in the past. As a result of the
sinking of a large ship on a rocky-shoal extending
out into the bay in the 1800s, the lighthouse

we see today at the tip of the peninsula was
constructed in 1870 just south of the 45th parallel.
The first public road in Grand Traverse County, built
in 1853 by volunteers, stretched from Traverse City
to the village of Old Mission. Other local roadways
followed Native American trails and later became
familar roads such as Peninsula Drive and East
Shore Road.

The peninsula’s main thoroughfare, Center

Road or M-37, provides the primary means of
transportation north and south through the
township. Center Road is managed by the state of
Michigan’s Department of Transportation (MDOT)
and provides the connections to the state and
federal highway system. As described later, M-37 is
also a Scenic Heritage Route. A map showing the
existing vehicular transportation system is provided
on page 26.

Within a few miles of the base of the peninsula,
residents of the township have access to three state
highways that serve as major east-west and north-
south corridors as well as provide access to Cherry
Capital Airport. However, accessing Peninsula
Township is a key planning issue that universally

impacts almost all others. With only one primary
road on and off the peninsula, the capacity of that
road and related intersections restricts traffic flow
significantly. For this reason, significant residential
growth and the potential for additional tourist

Community Overview | 27



Transportation Map

Legend
= US / State Highway [ Lake/River
—— Local Road [ traverse city

[ Parcels_2019

28 | Peninsula Township Master Plan




PENINSULA
TOWNSHIP

PRIME SCENIC VIEWS
o HIGHWAYS
LOCAL ROADS i

PARCELS

] viewskeo

Create Date April 17, 2020

Community Overview | 29



traffic is often viewed in the context of the limited
capacity of these intersections and the potential for
increased traffic congestion.

Views

The amazing views from public roads provided

by Peninsula Township’s unique geography and
proximity to Lake Michigan have been specifically
identified for planning purposes. Recently, the

map illustrating major viewsheds was updated and
is provided on page 27. This map was originally
produced and subsequently updated to support the
priority system established within the PDR program.
As such, it is oriented toward views associated with

the agricultural preservation area shown on page
24,

In addition to the views identified on page 27, the
views associated with shoreline roads (and from
the water) are similarly outstanding. East Shore
Road, Bluff Road, and Peninsula Drive all offer
spectacular sietsis views of water and shoreline
landscapes along East and West Grand Traverse
bays. It is noteworthy that, despite the fact that
shoreline views are as attractive as interior views (as
shown espage2+ bhelow), the township does not
newe currently have an inventory of shoreline areas

30 | Peninsula Township Master Plan




depicting waterfront viewsheds, existing trees and
vegetation cover, and other natural features. Such
an inventory may enhance future planning, as well
as land use and infrastructure decision making.

Pure Michigan Byways

Pure Michigan Byways are state trunkline routes
with special significance. They are designated
according to an eight-step procedure and fall into
categories based upon intrinsic qualities such as
scenery, history, and recreation.

DRIVING GUIDE

SCENIC EERITAEE ROUTE

Qld Mission Peniula

faring cul s Lo MIhigan's Grand Traverse #3v M7 i the pevionnds’s muan foute, monag
2 A liwwely « o ivow DEW_ Lin e sl s nery fiz o ek Sute, Wovard s ¢ A d oo L R

Tre Ton uekk # i ke off ""’_",‘;,m"‘.!"‘"f“"}r
dlkpem e, ol ensatl . ol pebare e, Cnots
et G, v Perm Gavghenty edwes ¥ ARy L
mhx%:n:uwm m&m eyt g o S
Lowtywa ety vohadrer, 13y, s cr‘- oy it Sertaart ol the DIS MerionPenialy,
wretdbom T Gy tate h (o podria te ,;.':‘. :&iﬁn} whhaciessto Crand Fawacse by,
Inge AR M1 son Nidepeans discav mdr oo grrraeasinthevir o Futiee naiiviton anmd o e
cdd}ﬁs*[ruy-lhm my:wm.mrw y«ummm_:mh
i\a.np;_;mmdmm!wnd Temwdaans by ihr
-ngsg'uqmmmuu wmummnum ::rjf" “‘TNM'M"
Rovwer .lw
(i Usgshlmsumm : a0
Takpa bty ol Punkinds croational rese hae e
i e St Sl L] na-manw. vy oL e
and seorat heones o dustscedrest mh(lwamhﬁ
dictlal deslommicta Tnm mfea romlls  ppie ifedroem, intoonratiriind

e‘rmafsmmw«w

Perdncta trive eito comarvminy’s

M&Mvmmﬁ!hlﬁnﬂhﬂy

u:oi!:!mm.ﬁwﬁu:

it
mlmﬁmk.nbﬂﬂdui Mu.h oAV
‘“mw“” - Sl nnont e Mg, The yritie

ravelbitn. Thase afe roach 3 oddus of 2k & 2haen formare thanaso e

:-:Ilhrw mummmw
:;A:‘m.-sms,wm mmunmww
trmbachs, mndare skl fee bhary, uwum, s eadipeihs
sty atadsoovdioe s Yhikors are thaiy rumuﬂ;d&umv}emﬁ
1oencauter wvea brdsprres T forest. With ks rologiod and
hmmumsum kmsuthl“nhnw

B e iemme,

Community Overview | 31




The Old Mission Peninsula Scenic Heritage Route
(M- 37) was designated in 2008 and keeps company
with a few other scenic byways and heritage routes
in the area such as the Leelanau Scenic Heritage
Route, M-22, and M-119 (Tunnel of Trees).

Public Water System

Construction of the Peninsula Township water
distribution system began in the late 1980s out of
the need for reliable potable water for domestic
demand and fire protection. Through the years,
population growth and construction in select
commercial and residential locations has generated
the need to expand the system. The sole water
source is supplied by the city of Traverse City
through a bulk water agreement regulated by

the two governmental entities. Several mutual
connection points between the city and township
systems are monitored utilizing master meters that
are recorded monthly by the Grand Traverse County
Department of Public Works (GTCDPW) for tracking
and billing purposes. Presently, the entire system
operates under two centralized service districts,

the Peninsula Drive District and the Huron Hills
District; both provide both domestic and fire flows.
The limits of each service district are defined by the
primary infrastructure that supplies the users.

About one-third of all residents are served by a
public water system. It is important that water
pressure in a consumer’s residence or place of
business be neither too high nor too low. The
normal operating pressure range for water
distribution systems is 40 to 90 psi and a minimum
of 20 psi during fire flow (emergency) conditions.

Water is distributed to users located within the
two service districts by infrastructure owned,
operated, and maintained by the township. This
infrastructure is comprised of one booster station,
one water storage tank, seven reducing valve
stations, and approximately 15 miles of distribution
piping. Booster stations pump water to outlying
districts at higher elevations, and water is fed back
down towards the city of Traverse City to some
extent through pressure reducing valves (PRVSs).
The operating pressures for each service district are
dictated by gravity (ground or elevated) storage.

A 500,000 gallon ground storage tank exists on
Center Road near Cherrywood Commons just off
of Mathison Road.

As an owner of a public water and sewer system,
Peninsula Township is responsible for ensuring
compliance with both the Safe Drinking Water

Act (Act 399) and the Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act (Act 451) as enforced
by the Michigan Department of Environment Great
Lakes and Energy (EGLE). Part of the role of the
township engineer (Gourdie-Fraser & Associates)

is to ensure the township’s system complies with
these requirements. This includes performing
ongoing evaluation of the existing system to ensure
adequate capacity to accommodate existing and
future growth demands, maintaining inventory and
condition of all assets, coordinating with the DPW
for maintenance of infrastructure, and defining

a capital improvement plan for each system. The
following two maps illustrate the extent of the
public water system in Peninsula Township and

the location of proposed capital improvement

Capital Improvements

Project | Status | Cost
Water Main Upgrades (1 to 5 Year) None $233,584.00 Increase Fire Flow
Water Main Extensions (1 to 5 Year) None $632,905.00 Expand Service Area
Emergency Booster Station None $260,000.00 Increacs:plziligbility/
Water Main Extensions (10 to 20 Year) None $3,091,790.00 Expand Service Area
Special Assessment District Improvements None $2,332,967.00 Expand Service
Water Storage Tank Inspection & Cleaning Last Completed in 2010 $2,200.00 Needz\;[gnt/)% |:)>Iggfrosrmed

32 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



gi'l Gourdie-Fraser

Peninsula Township Water System

E
E
]

e ier Pign DekorLigard lon S b ol e

- ——,

i e

- .l.._?rl__l- e
WALNUT RIDGE [
dé@é’e
§ Peninauta Twp,
e

o Covwter Oy

Peninsuta Township
Firehall Extension

Eest Grang Traverse gy

Community Overview | 33

=
AT U MCRY LA E AL Ahisd 2 (250 (21 70220 0 AG b 475



5 & 20 Year Capitol Improvements Infrastructure Map

fﬁlﬂiuﬂn

Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County, Michigan
[ Townatip Weter Servoa Disid
| Sky Lane
/ LTy - LR Esstheach
/ i L Condominiums
" | -
@ - LY
-]
£
£
/ INSTALL
5’ f NEW PRy
4 .’I
§ | s
E il
1201
P ia
£ Exton
Ve
f
P
o
INSTALL NEW BACKUP "
BOOSTERSTATION P 7
(EMERGENCYOM.V),-J.’f TR
P T
| =2
I
.
..',.'I-,
i
r __:
- 2
1
. " "~ UPGRADE
TO8' DL -
| 36 i 7~
A, g KA o
" ' X == -
n I—«*\ = ,. -.. : ,-,-.I .Io-'-'”.I
The locations of ol
— | pipinghardware
. N wpproximute and shal not
[ Srmineals T o0 b uecd r ncatin
5 I i
T A
LECEND
W @ E s s TARIRCRADES
‘mmwnes 70 YEAR UPGRADES
I @2 ensTRCuTIRAN
B osTHCYAYE
i e
(\hhhpbu&iwlq-tdfwﬂthlvisﬂm]

34 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



projects recommended for the next 20 years. These
improvements also appear in the table below.

Areas not served by the public water system rely
on private wellls regulated by the Grand Traverse
County Health Department.

Public Sewer System

Construction on the Peninsula Township sewer
system began in the 1970s and has expanded
through the years with the township’s population
growth. Wastewater treatment for the township is
accomplished through a contract with the Traverse
City Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility. The
sole treatment source is provided by the city of
Traverse City through a bulk sewer agreement
regulated by the two governmental entities. Several
mutual connection points between the city and
township systems are monitored monthly by the
Grand Traverse County Department of Public

Works, which utilizes master meters for tracking
and billing purposes.

About three in 10 residents are connected to the
peninsula’s public sewer system. The system is
comprised of three major sewer system districts via
infrastructure owned, operated, and maintained
by the township. This infrastructure is comprised
of three pumping stations, 2,500 linear feet (0.5
miles) of force main, and approximately 8.6 miles
(45,500 linear feet) of gravity (collection) piping.

The map on page 34 illustrates the extent of the
public sewer system in Peninsula Township. Areas
not served by public sewer refy utilize on on-site
septic systems as regulated by the Grand Traverse
County Health Department. Because Peninsula
Township relies heavily upon on-site septic systems,
maintenance and performance are important
topics in the context of protecting water quality. As
discussed later, this subject is extremely important

Community Overview | 35



Peninsula Township Sanitary Sewer System  da GourdieFraser

Master Meter #1

Rovied : 02252020

36 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



to residents. Nearby Long Lake Township is one for many decades and continues to represent
example of a community that requires private septic ~ about six percent of Grand Traverse County. In
system inspections when property transfers to new the coming decades, however, as developable

ownership. This process helps identify problem land becomes scarcer, it is expected that Peninsula
areas that may contribute to pollution and brings Township will likely represent a decreasing amount
about corrective action before a property is sold or of the total population of Grand Traverse County.
transferred.

Demographics

Resident Profiles
Peninsula Township’s population has grown steadily

Peninsula
Change | Change (E (elgle! Change | Change | Township

Peninsula 2 : 4 ?
from Prior | from Prior | Traverse | from Prior | from Prior | as a % of

Township | ‘necade | Decade | County | Decade | Decade | Grand

G o aiton (Num.) (Percent) |Population] {Num.) (Percent) | Traverse
_ Co.
1930 1,107 20,011 55
1940 1,146 39 35 22,702 2,691 13.4 5
1950 1,531 385 33.6 27,826 5,124 22.6 5.5
1960 2,013 482 31.5 32,687 4,861 17.5 6.2
1970 2,642 629 31.2 38,169 5,482 16.8 6.9 -
1980 3,883 1,241 47 54,899 | 16,730 43.8 7.1
1990 4,340 457 11.8 64,273 9,374 17.1 6.8
2000 5,265 925 21.3 77,654 13,381 20.8 6.8
2010 5,433 168 3.2 86,986 9,332 12 6.2
2020 6,068 635 11.7 95,238 8,252 9.5 6.4

Source: U.S. Census Bureau

Community Overview | 37



One way communities are unique is in terms of the
characteristics of residents. These characteristics
are important because the lens by which a livable
community is defined align with attributes such as
age, family size, income, educational levels, etc. For
example, the quality of a local school district and
employment opportunities are far more important
to young families than to retired or elderly
households.

According to Census Bureau QuickFacts data, a
Peninsula Township resident is:

» More likely to be of retirement age. About a
third of all Peninsula Township residents are 65
years old or older (compared with 17.2 percent
statewide).

» More likely to live in an owner-occupied home.
More than nine out of 10 housing units in the
township are owner-occupied (compared with
71 percent statewide).

» More likely to have lived in the same home
one year ago. More than 91 percent of
residents lived in the same home one year ago
(compared with 85.8 percent statewide).

» More likely to live in a household with fewer
people. The average household size in
Peninsula Township is 2.21 (compared with
2.49 statewide).

» More likely to be 18 years old or older. Only
17.3 percent of Peninsula Township residents
are under 18 years old (compared with 21.7
percent statewide).

» More likely to have a computer at home with
broadband internet. More than 96 percent of
Peninsula Township residents have a computer
and nearly 92 percent have broadband internet
(compared with 88 percent with a computer
and 79 percent with broadband internet
statewide).

» More likely to live in a household with a
substantially larger household income. The
median household income in Peninsula
Township (2018 dollars) was $100,949
(compared with nearly half ($54,938)
statewide).

» Far less likely to live in poverty. The census
bureau reports only 3.3 percent of people living
in poverty in Peninsula Township (compared
with 14.1 percent statewide).

38 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

The Current Moment in Time

Planning is naturally forward looking, but it also
takes place through a lens that reflects past and
current viewpoints. In 2021, Peninsula Township
finds itself looking forward from a perspective of
recent accomplishments and future challenges.
Some recent accomplishments (in no order of
importance) include:

Old Mission Peninsula School

In October 2015, Traverse City Area Public Schools
(TCAPS) announced it would close three elementary

Citizens within Grand Traverse County may
select which educational institution their
children attend. Residents of Peninsula
Township have the option to send their children
to any of the existing public or private schools
within the region. Old Mission Peninsula School
offers K-5 education and is located centrally

on the peninsula. Higher education is available
and located at the southern boundary of the
peninsula. The Northwestern Michigan College
{(NMC) campus is open to the public and

located in Traverse City.




schools, including Old Mission Elementary School.
Thanks to extraordinary community efforts over
many months driven by the recognition of the
importance of preserving a sense of community on
Old Mission Peninsula, a foundation was formed by
local residents and 1.1 million dollars were raised
to purchase the school building and continue the
education legacy on the peninsula. In September of
2018, Old Mission Peninsula School opened to the
public.

Peninsula Community Library

Given the changes occurring with TCAPS and the
local elementary school, in 2016, the leadership of
Peninsula Community Library mounted a campaign
to raise funds to build a new library and move

the former library out of the elementary school.
More than 2.5 million dollars were raised, and our
beautiful new 5,600-square-foot facility opened in
September of 2019.

Continved Implementation Of The
Purchase Of Development Rights (PDR)
Program

Peninsula Township is well known for creating

one of the first publicly funded PDR programs in
the United States and the first in the Midwest. In
1994, voters agreed to tax themselves to fund a
voluntary program to purchase development rights
from agricultural landowners. Outside funding from
the State of Michigan, American Farmland Trust,
the Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy
(GTRLC), and the federal Farm and Ranch Lands
Protection Program subsequently added to this
effort. In the years that followed (between 1996
and 2009), the PDR program protected more than
2,800 acres from development. Today, more than
110 agreements covering 3,347 acres are subject
to PDR restrictions held by Peninsula Township.
When combined with GTRLC-held conservation
easements and other public land, roughly 6,500
acres have been permanently protected in Peninsula

Township, or 36 percent of the total land area.
The recent community survey suggests continued
support for this program.

Community Overview | 39



40 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

Expanding Local Wine Industry

The beginnings of the local wine industry can

be traced back to the early 1990s with the
establishment of entities such as Chateau Grand
Traverse and Chateau Chantel. Today, 11 wineries
support local agricultural products and preserve
farmland. The success of the wineries supports and
promotes the popularity of Old Mission Peninsula
viticulture.

Park Expansions

In late 2015, using funds from private donations, a
Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund grant, and
the Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy,
Peninsula Township acquired nearly 60 acres of land
to expand Bowers Harbor Park. A development
plan that includes an extensive walking trail system,
parking, pavilions, and toilets was prepared. This
major project supplements prior recent efforts to
establish Mission Point Lighthouse Park at the tip
of the peninsula, the 60.64-acre Pelizzari Natural
Area at the base of the peninsula, and Kelley Park
in Old Mission. Altogether, the total amount of
parkland available to residents and guests is now
nearly 1,200 acres, of which the township owns or
manages 833 acres. For more information on local
public lands, see page 9.

Fire Protection & Emergency Response

Fire Station No. 3, completed in early 2021, offers
improved emergency response times for those
living in the northern part of Peninsula Township.
This significant milestone is accompanied by
related steps to increase staff, place automatic
external defibrillators (AED) in businesses, and
place working smoke detectors in every home.
This milestone is in addition to increased staffing
levels (now about 13 full-time and 13 part-time
employees) and recent certification for Advanced
Life Support (ALS), which gives paramedics

the ability to offer advanced medical care in

the field, including intubation, IV fluids, pain

and cardiovascular medications, and vital heart
monitoring and stabilization. All these steps

add up to increased resident safety and lowered
Insurance Service Offices (ISO) ratings, which lower
homeowner insurance costs.



[ AN A 1)
A r\-{w i 'w‘ -1 i

§LETAT

3. Community Attitudes &
Insights

Community Attitudes & Insights | 41




GENERAL COMMUNITY
ATTITUDES AND INSIGHTS

Master plans are fundamentally about choices
regarding the future, guided by resident
preferences and wishes. Understanding resident
preferences and wants often includes some form
of community engagement, which can occur

in different forms and at different times during

a planning process. For this master plan, initial
community engagement included steps to conduct
a new community survey. Past community surveys
were done in 1990 and again in 2006. Information
from these past surveys provided useful historical
background data but offered little to support an
understanding of current attitudes.

In the summer of 2019, Peninsula Township hired
EPIC MRA to assist staff with a new resident survey.
From September 26 through September 30, 2019,
live operator telephone interviews with 200 adult
residents of Peninsula Township were conducted.
This phone survey was performed so that a set of
results would be provided from a random sample
of residents. Soon after the phone survey, the
township offered an online version of the survey

to residents and other stakeholders to provide an
avenue for all who wished to participate. However,
while it was expected that the online version would
likely generate more responses, the results might
be less random for a variety of reasons. Therefore,
having survey results from two methods would help
paint a more accurate picture of local attitudes.

The online survey was based on unigue residential
addresses in the county that appeared on the
secretary of state’s qualified voter file. This list

was augmented with addresses supplied by the
township assessor’s office to include individuals

not otherwise found on the secretary of state file.
Once the augmented list was compiled, postcards
were sent via first class mail to approximately 3,800
addresses. These postcards, bearing the Peninsula
Township logo, informed the recipient household of
the reason for the communication and instructions
regarding how to access the questionnaire online.
The postcard contained a four-digit code required
to complete the survey. The online survey was open
for participation from October 18, 2019, through
November 6, 2019. A total of 980 usable responses
were collected from this portion of the project.

42 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

IMPORTANT SURVEY
TAKEAWAYS

The new survey results validated common
perceptions about what residents value. They
also revealed some unexpected results. While
a full reporting of survey data is available in
the appendix, some key takeaways include the
following:

» Among all attributes, residents say they
like living in Peninsula Township mostly
because of the rural, quiet atmosphere
followed closely by scenic views and the
quality of the environment. Looked at from
the opposite angle, growth/overdevelopment
and traffic/congestion topped the list of open-
ended responses offered by respondents who
believe the quality of life in the township has
“gotten worse” in the past few years.

» Looked at another way, when residents were
asked to identify areas where the township
could do more, strongest support went to the
statement urging the township to keep as
much of the rural character and historic
landscape as possible.

» One area where there is unequivocal support
for a new initiative is in the development
of a non- motorized transportation plan.
More than three- quarters of respondents from
both methodologies support this initiative,
and two-thirds of that total support is strong
support. Fleshing out the specifics of such
a plan will, of course, be a comprehensive
process, but the survey data clearly indicates
support for pedestrian safety features such as
signals, pavement markings, and signage along
with attention to walking trails and bike paths.

» A practical, albeit less direct, expression of
residents’ preference for a rural setting is
manifested in the responses to the series of
guestions concerning the township’s Purchase
of Development Rights (PDR) program. Well
over half of all respondents in both survey
methods report awareness that Peninsula
Township currently has a taxpayer-funded
PDR program, and well over half purport
to have at least some familiarity with its
provisions. Perhaps most importantly,
survey results indicate that had a PDR
renewal vote been held at that time, it
would have passed by a significant margin.



»

»

W

ro

However, it should also be noted that these
results were generated just a few months
before the outbreak of COVID-19 and

the period of economic uncertainty that
followed.

Finally, in keeping with residents’ environmental
awareness tempered with a desire for viewshed
preservation, there is receptivity to the

idea of some form of wind and/or solar
energy sourcing on the peninsula. Again,
the survey only briefly touched on the issue,
but the greatest receptivity is for small-scale
systems serving a single property followed by
systems capable of serving a limited collection
of properties or a small neighborhood.

In sum, township residents are, by and
large, content with the status quo. To the
extent there is an expression of openness to
change, it reveals itself in policies directed at
addressing growth, traffic congestion, and
preservation of viewsheds.

In addition to these details, the following charts
illustrate some findings on key issues.

Respondents were asked if, overall, they believe
Peninsula Township is headed in the right direction
or is going down the wrong track:

Skipped,23%

Phone Results

Online Results

Respondents were informed of the growth in the
number of wineries in the township over the past
couple of decades and asked if they supported or
opposed the continued development and growth
of these types of establishments:

Undecided 9%

Online Results

Respondents were apprised of the township’s policy
prohibiting short-term rentals (if not at a bed and
breakfast establishment or winery-chateau) and
were asked if they were satisfied or dissatisfied with
that policy:

Undegided 1

Phone Results

Undeqig%‘j 3%

Dissatisfied 30%

Online Results

Community Attitudes & Insights | 43



After being presented with a statement noting
the regular presence of runners, bicyclists, and
pedestrians on township thoroughfares, the
comparatively narrow width of many area roads,
and the adoption of non-motorized transportation
policies in nearby jurisdictions, respondents

were asked if they would support or oppose the
township initiating the process of developing its
own non-motorized transportation plan:

Undecided 7%

i

Support 76%

Phone Results

Undecided 3%
Oppose 18%

Support 79%

Online Results

44 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

PARTICIPATE OLD MISSION

Along with the 2019 community survey, Peninsula
Township launched a new online community
engagement platform called Participate Old Mission
(www.participateoldmission.com). Participate Old
Mission 5 was a virtual space where residents ca#
could ask questions, share ideas, discuss important
topics, and provide feedback. It also sHews allowed
residents to contribute thoughts and ideas to
projects and issues, including this master plan
update. By late August, 2021, Participate Old
Mission had more than 2,100 site visits and more
than 350 site registrations.

{ PexinsuLa )

Sil?wardsh!pmf a Spociai Place



Trends | 45




TRENDS IMPACTING THE
TOWNSHIP

Trends can and often do change, but the following
material provides a brief description of clear and
relevant trends Peninsula Township should be
mindful of as it looks ahead.

Home Sale Prices Have Doubled

In 2010, the median value of homes that sold in
Peninsula Township was about $217,500. By 2020,
the median value was $446,300. In other words,
median home values in Peninsula Township have
doubled in the last 10 years. As recently noted,
due in part to this steadily increasing trend in
home values, the total assessed value of property
in Peninsula Township recently crossed the $1
billon mark. Comparable and final information is
not yet available for the state or nation, but this
rapid increase in local home values is believed to be
significant.

Aging Population

As noted earlier, Peninsula Township residents are
generally likely to be 65 years old and older (see
page 33). Perhaps just as important, the national
trend also points to a growing elderly population.
Longer life spans and other demographic factors
support the U.S. Census Bureau’s projection that,
by the year 2034, for the first time in history, the
number of adults 65 and older in the U.S. will
exceed the number of children under 18. Given
this projection, it is reasonable to assume that older
residents will represent an ever larger segment of
the local population, and the pianning implications
are important.

The American Association of Retired Persons
(AARP) has been active in providing research into
what older residents desire from the communities
in which they live, including rural communities.
Key findings from a report titled 2018 Home

and Community Preferences Survey: A National
Survey of Adults Age 18 — Plus a Look at Rural
Communities (June 2019) include these takeaways:

» Nearly three-quarters of rural adults say they
want to remain in their communities and
homes as they age.

» Almost half of rural adults report they will
stay in their current homes and never move
compared to only a third or fewer of urban and

46 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

suburban adults who say they will never move
from their current homes.

» About three-quarters of rural adults own their
own homes; nearly two in five report that major
modifications to their homes will be needed to
accommodate their needs as they age.

» The presence of accessory dwelling units is low
among rural adults, but eight in 10 say they
would consider building one for a loved one
who needs care.

» The large majority of rural adults (89
percent) drive themselves to get around their
communities.

» Other popular modes of transportation include
walking and having someone else drive them.

» Well-maintained streets and easy-to-read traffic
signs are very important to aging rural adults.

REMOTE WORKING

Thanks to COVID-19, more companies are offering
hybrid or remote working arrangements, and
increasing numbers of people feel less inclined to
live close to where they work. It has been reported
that about one in four Americans (26.7 percent)
will work remotely in 2021 (Forbes, March 19,
2021). This means that more people will be less
tied to a specific area and more able to choose
where to live based on amenities and the quality of
life. If this trend is sustained into the future, it will
continue to represent an important factor in local
growth.




Health And Non-Motorized Transportation

Decades ago, health experts began documenting
the health benefits of physical activity. Obesity rates
have increased dramatically over the last 30 years,
and obesity is now considered to be an epidemic

in the United States. Diabetes is also responsible
for huge health- care costs, and the incidence

of diabetes is expected to continue frereasing to

Increase

At the same time, there is a growing recognition
that the transportation infrastructure built in
recent decades typically accommodates only
vehicular traffic. This realization has led all levels of
government to shift toward an increased emphasis
on developing safe places to walk, bike, and
engage in physical activity. Myriad programs and
design strategies such as complete streets, traffic
calming, context-sensitive design, safe routes to
schools, and others are all aimed at increasing
transportation options beyond vehicle travel to
encourage non-motorized travel and physical
activity.

LINKS TO COMPLETE STREETS
RESOURCES

L e e T / e, oY PN | WP | | 4
WA ATTA IS DO A M O MG QAR IS St RITE STt

Aarmorlladha aflynedby
uuw DU A U5

https://smartgrowthamerica.org/program/
national-complete-streets-coalition/

http://micompletestreets.org/

Al I\ IRVARTA svraeal b @t adts  [EA M
UUWWHWUWW

Brooaort . SIXAYEYRES) 57 m\ AR

U'HWUL‘I’EP)I/\JP)\BHI ofMAUE]
https://www.ite.org/technical-resources/topics/
complete-streets/

https://www.cdc.gov/transportation/
recommendation.htm

Trends | 47



This page intentionally left blank.

48 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



5. Legacy, Challenges, &

Legacy, Challenges, & Vision | 49



PLANNING LEGACY

For many decades, Peninsula Township's rolling
hills, miles of Great Lakes shoreline, and stunning
views of bays, farms, orchards, and vineyards
have drawn people to live and visit here. Nearly
50 years ago, community leaders saw mounting
development forces and recognized the threat to
farmland, environmental values, and quality of
life. This realization led the township to develop

a master plan in 1968 and, then, a zoning
ordinance in 1972 that established a basic order
to development patterns, notably a large interior
agricultural district, coastal residential districts, and
limited commercial districts as well as minimum
lot sizes and setbacks in each district. Many of the
zoning provisions enacted in 1972 continue to
guide development patterns today.

In subsequent decades, as planning efforts in

the township continued, recognition grew that
strong growth pressures would continue to fuel
construction activity and increases in population.
Early projections suggested that Peninsula Township
could reach 30,000 people or more if fully built
out unless other measures were taken. Residents
and township leadership viewed this level of
development with alarm, as it would inevitably
reduce the viability of agriculture, diminish scenic
views, add huge additional infrastructure costs
(i.e., water, sewer, and roads), and contribute to
an overall decline in environmental quality. Such
a large population would also create major traffic
issues in Traverse City as previously discussed (see
page 26).

Peninsula Township demonstrated bold and
proactive leadership and a core commitment

to land preservation by creating one of the first
publicly funded township Purchase of Development
Rights (PDR) programs in the United States and the
first in the Midwest. On August 2, 1994, voters
agreed to tax themselves to the tune of six million
dollars to purchase the development rights from
willing farmers who wanted to keep their land

in farming forever. Gutsigde- Additional funding
from the State of Michigan, American Farmland
Trust, Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy
(GTRLQ), and the federal Farm and Ranch Lands
Protection Program subsequently augmented

this effort (see page 24). This bold and proactive
leadership came not only from elected and
appointed officials but concerned residents such as

50 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

John Wunsch and many others.

Between 1995 and 2009, more than 2,800 acres
in Peninsula Township were protected from
development. The PDR program was so successful,
with more farmers interested in selling their
development rights than money to buy them, that
voters approved a second PDR millage renewal and
increase in 2001 for 20 years, a period that is now
ending.

Today, more than 110 parcels totaling 3,347 acres
are subject to PDR restrictions held by Peninsula
Township. When combined with GTRLC-held
conservation easements and other public lands,
roughly 6,000 acres have been permanently
protected in Peninsula Township, or 34 percent

of the total land area. Considering only the
agricultural preservation area (APA), the total
amount of protected land covers about 53 percent
of the total acres identified in the APA (see maps
on page 24).

This is a great start, but as was the case in 2001,
we have willing farmers who wish to sell their
development rights and preserve their farms with
insufficient funding available to accomplish these
goals.

Given the program’s success to date, the maximum
population of the peninsula if fully built out would
be approximately 12,000 people, a far cry from the
original projection of 30,000 had action not been
taken but nearly double what it is today.

NEW CHALLENGES

As previously described, Peninsula Township has a
newly established public charter school, a newly
constructed library, and recent park expansions.

The township also has 18 wine manufacturers

(as licensed by the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission); 11 wine tasting rooms; a market
and gas station; three restaurants; five churches;
many farm markets, nurseries, and farm stands;
historical buildings; and governmental services,
including township offices, three fire stations with
fulltime fire and emergency medical services, and
a full-time community police officer to supplement
law enforcement services provided by the Grand
Traverse €& County Sheriff's Dept.

The Peninsula Township community has long
recognized and valued the quiet, rural, and



scenic character of the Old Mission Peninsula

and the critical need to protect these defining
values. Recent planning efforts such as the

2019 community survey and the launch of the
online engagement tool called Participate Old
Mission provide a more current understanding

of resident preferences, values, and desires. As
the population has grown and residential and
winery development has increased, the desire to
protect the township’s scenic views and quiet rural
character has amplified. Protection measures have
been highlighted in township planning documents
since the early 1980s, with each plan reiterating
and building upon this concept. According to the

Navaall hann
DALY

(CSTEVVATEHTGRUTSISPESa o rd CEgif ayvcIata]

el JRCRRS.

2019 survey, the majority of residents believe the
township is “headed in the right direction” and
that the quality of life “has remained the same.”
At the same time, there is growing evidence that
the local story of stewarding this special place may
be at a pivotal juncture. As a case in point, we now
see the following:

The local wineries filed suit against the
township in late 2020 over limits on
allowed commercial activity;

Record-high water levels in 2020 damaged
vast segments of shoreline, causing severe
erosion, millions in property damage, and
the closure of a section of Bluff Road;

A potential renewal of the PDR program will
require continued support from residents at
the ballot box;

Growing recognition of the need for better
traffic control and accommodation for non-
motorized travel;

The recent determination that the Michigan
Department of Transportation (MDOT)

will continue to control and maintain

M-37 (Center Rd.); recently, MDOT had
considered relinquishing control and
responsibility to the Grand Traverse County
Road Commission;

Growing questions about whether our
township form of government is best for

the long herd tamm);

Lingering questions over state and local
responses to the demand for short-term
rentals and other dimensions of the
hospitality market;

Development pressures that continue to
remain strong along with property and
home values that Gomriimus %o Sramaiaiy
The remaining effects of COVID-19 that

hamper community engagement efforts;
and

Greater focus toward Peninsula Township
parks, which have been impacted
significantly by behavioral and utilization
changes related to COVID-19. This usage
has prompted a new effort to define
needs, operating and capital improvement
budgets, and funding sources to better
develop and maintain park facilities. This
work is being undertaken by the Peninsula
Township Parks Committee in conjunction
with LIAA (Land Information Access
Association), with whom it is working under
a contract.

VISION

Peninsula Township’s leaders recognize that the
Old Mission Peninsula is a special place for all the
reasons described in Chapter 1. They also recognize
that the current issues facing the township mean
that careful and deliberate planning has never
been more important than it is now if the township
is to retain its current amenities and reach its

full potential as the best possible gift to future
generations. These challenges align with the 12
following vision elerents statements that can also
be thought of as organizing planning principles for
Peninsula Township.

These vision targets surfaced from 2019 survey
results, results from Participate Old Mission,
and deliberations during master plan steering
committee meetings.

The following chart is a summary of vision ehsierts
statements for Peninsula Township organized into
three distinct categories: “Land Use,” “Mobility,”
and “#Maces-Character, Facilities and Governance.”

Legacy, Challenges, & Vision | 51



In the following chapters, more in-depth

descriptions of issues and future action steps

are provided for each of these three categories.
Chapter 9 addresses the subject of implemention
and provides a summary of future initiatives and

action steps.

These challenges align with the 12 following

vision Gleinchns SERSMAENTS that can also be

thought of as organizing planning principles for
Peninsula Township.

Summary of 12 Vision Elements Statements

Recognize an “island- like
geography.”

Land Use

The ability to maintain the quality of life in the township will
be highly influenced by the reality that the peninsula is more or
less an “island” with a single “bridge” that carries residents to
and from Traverse City and beyond. This "bridge” is a two-lane
street that has a finite carrying capacity and few options fer

i felening to increase that capacity. Shoreline routes
such as East Shore Road and Peninsula Drive are not desirable
options as routes because they serve neighborhoods with
strong recreational and aesthetic value. Detailed vehicle traffic
counts and studies are needed annually to help monitor change
over time and to help guide township development policies.
Recognizing the need to limit growth and associated traffic
generation is a major underpinning and foundation for nearly all
other vision efements statements and planning policies.

Continue to implement &y

and-allsteps policies that

reduce build-out potential.

Land Use

Looking ahead to this new decade and beyond, we see
thousands of acres of agricultural land that could still be
developed into homes. Demand for homes on the Old Mission
Peninsula is strong and likely to grow stronger given existing
trends. At the same time, residents clearly want to preserve and
maintain a rural atmosphere.

Renewing The renewal of the PDR program that-expires-expired-

=1 is crucial to completing the task of land preservation that
began in the early 1990s. Protecting the remaining 4,680 acres
of agricultural land identified in the agricultural preservation area
(APA) is an essential step toward limiting population growth and
additional traffic congestion.

Ensure that future
development is constructed
in ways that thoughtfully
balance all land- use needs.

Land Use

Even with petertiaty new PDR activity resulting from a third

tewy millage, some level of development can be expected as
some property owners choose to develop their land within the
constraints of the zoning ordinance. In the past, the township
has explored the concept of a transfer of development rights
(TDR) program as a way to concentrate new development by
“transferring” permitted density to a more carefully planned
area. The TDR program, coupled with the potential for mixed
use development in the commercial zones to include first floor
retail/ commercial with second floor residential, could help create
local businesses that serve residents. Properly designed and
constructed commercial uses could help reduce the need for
residents to travel to Traverse City for goods and services, thereby
potentially helping to reduce traffic.

52 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Constructively and
collaboratively work
toward the goal of adding
eammererl value to local
agricultural products

The township supports local agriculture and efforts to retain
rural character while drawing a distinction between production
agriculture (i.e., growing things) on the one hand and non-
production, or value-added activities such as processing and
selling products on site, on the other. This latter category

wthott € EE.E B a— tand tse of activities leans in a more light industrial and commercial
: - ’ direction, generating issues related to traffic and noise that
traffic-congestion while d ;

g . etract from rural ambiance and character. More efforts are
m't'gatm% negatlved needed to balance production agriculture with non-production or
'[quf)ﬁfts W ———— value-added and commerical activities.

Protect the shorelme.and The last several years of high water levels on the Great Lakes
wetlands tq the maximum have had a profound impact on coastal communities throughout
extent possuble throigh Michigan. Coastal erosion and flooding have impacted residents
BotH rggulatlon and with substantial costs and damages. Predicting lake levels in
educatlpn centereq on the future is all but impossible, but it is prudent to improve
vegetation pmt?ci['_o_,n gnd Land Use regulations and education efforts regarding vegetation removal
enhancement. Ansas-fike so that future high water levels are less damaging and water
Liry I:al - Eul'i "lEE quality is protected from erosion. Similarly, it is important to
| I continue to educate residents on the value of all wetlands and
> . shoreline vegetation cover as a means of reducing both flooding
AT e . o and pollution.
pollutiorand-floeding:
Peninsula Township‘s geography presents challenges for
. . delivering public utilities to property owners. An electric grid,
Contlnu.e i commen in other areas to ensure uninterrupted energy, is not
al'.cernatwe energy (solar/. Land Use practical for the peninsula. Alternative energy sources will be
wmd) as hgvmg a potent.lal required. The township will continue to implement policies
role in Peninsula Township. to aftew regulate solar energy generation while protecting
viewsheds.
There is a role for a local hospitality industry in Peninsula
Township in three major categories: wineries (with guest rooms),
Balance demand for a local bed and breakfasts (independent of wineries), and possibly
hospitality industry against Land Use small, quaint “boutique” hotels. The balance between additional
the need to control growth hospitality functions and added traffic is a critical one related
and manage traffic. to numbers of available rooms and specific locations. The
connection between offering accommodations in a rural B&B
and supporting agricultural viability is also recognized.
Residents and visitors alike deeply appreciate all that Peninsula
Township has to offer pedestrians and bicyclists. However,
planning for and implementing even modest local projects to
Make pedestrian and bike support non-motqrizeq trgvel lhavg been nonexistent. Evidence of
raval afer shd rmore Mobility support for steps in this direction is abundantly clear from recent

convenient

survey results. There also seems to be increasing recognition that
it is time for ramped-up non-motorized transportation planning,
even among those who are not inclined to bike or walk, simply
from the standpoint of safety and impacts on vehicular traffic
flow.

Legacy, Challenges, & Vision | 53



S

Make vehicular travel safer
and more convenient

Mobility

Associated with the desire to make pedestrian and bike travel
safer and more convenient is the need to control vehicular
speeds and improve safety.

Operate under the

best possible form of
government, with suitable
and essential public
facilities.

Plaeses—Character,
Facilities, and
Governance

As unique and special as Peninsula Township is, it shares one
key attribute with most other townships in Michigan: its form
of government. Increasingly, people are asking if a general
township is the optimal form of government for the residents
of the Old Mission Peninsula. State laws provide options for
changing-the different structures of local government, which
could improve service delivery and local control.

Continue developing an
outstanding park system
throughout the township
with “hubs” at Mission
Point Lighthouse Park,
Bowers Harbor Park, and
Pelizzari Natural Area.

EhaJdse
Character,
Facilities, and
Governance

The township maintains three large parks strategically located

at the north, middle, and south latitudes of the township along
with several additional smaller parks. The township will continue
to improve these parks through upgrades and expansions
consistent with the needs of each area. Additionally, the
township is now poised to move forward with a new boat launch
at Kelley Park.

Continue preserving,
enhancing, and celebrating
local history and culture.

Piaces—Character,
Facilities, and
Governance

People enjoy living in an area with a sense of place, and an
important attribute of our identity is local history and culture.
There are four primary historical sites in the township: the replica
Log Church and Peter Dougherty Home in Old Mission and

the Hessler Log Cabin and Mission Point Lighthouse at the tip

of the peninsula. Two historic businesses also survive, the Old
Mission Inn and the Old Mission General Store, along with three
remaining historic private resort associations, Hlini, Leffingwell,
and Neahtawanta. Much of the story of nineteenth- and
twentieth-century local history arcs through and across these
places. More can and should be done to strengthen and support
these offerings.

54 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



0. Land Use

~Hrull . 3= )
i

Land Use | 55




INTRODUCTION

Peninsula Township encompasses approximately
1876 17,858 acres of land. Wise land-use
decisions made over time are often at the heart of
why some places are more livable, attractive, and
appealing than others. Fundamental private and
public decisions about how land on the Old Mission
Peninsula is used are central to a sense of careful
stewardship of Peninsula Township.

Land-Use Background

Existing Land-Use Patterns
Existing Zoning

Land-Use Issues
This chapter begins with a description of existing
land- use patterns followed by a brief description of » PDR Program

existing zoning, which regulates how land can be Shoreline Protection
used, along with associated development standards

and review procedures. Following this background Alternative Energy

material is a description of important land-use Mixed Commercial Area/TDR
issues facing Peninsula Township and a future land- » Agricultural Viability/\Wineries/Other Agri-
H3E FidPe business
EXISTING LAND-USE PATTERNS Lodging and Short-Term Rentals
. . - Special Land-Use Permits
A map illustrating existing land uses appears on ,
the following page. Reflecting data provided by General Review of Uses/Development
the Peninsula Township assessor and generalized Standards

to some degree in terms of residential density
(dwelling units per acre), the map provides a
platform for developing the future land-use map
provided later in this chapter. It also provides a
means to track and monitor land-use changes over Future Land Use
time. The table below categorizes and quantifies
existing land uses shown in the map on page 61.

Capital Improvements

Relcfed

Rural Agricultural (1 housing unit for

each 5 acres or more) 1,231 12,698.90 71.1%
Rural Residential (1 housing unit for

between 1 and 5 acres) 991 R1-A 1,881.90 10.5%
Suburban Residential (between 1 and 4

housing units per acre) 1,511 R1-B, R1-C 922.85 5.2%
Urban Residential (4 or more housing 60 R-1D 15.72 01%
units per acre)

Commercial 56 C-1 19.96 0.1%
Public/Semi Public/Private Open Space 137 Varies 1,910.27 10.7%
Unclassified/Other 488 Varies 418.00 2.3%
Total 4,474 17,858 100.0%

56 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Peninsula Township 2021
Existing Land Use

Panirula Township
Grand Traverse County, Michigan

LEGEND
Land Use

- Rural Agriculturel (1 housing unit for each 5 acres or more)
[ 1 Rural Residential (1 housing unit for between { and 5 acres)

| Suburban Residential (B 1 and 4 housing units per acre)

Q Urban Residential (4 or more housing units per acre)

- Commerdat

I Fubiic/ Semi Public ! Private Open Space

| Unclassified / Other
Basa Map Sourca: MOGI, Grand Trawerse County GIS
; Peninsula Toamship
2028 Paroy! Boundaries
N May 2021

Land Use | 57



EXISTING ZONING

For about five decades, land use in Peninsula
Township has been guided by regulations contained
in the Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance.
Although the zoning ordinance has been amended
many times to address specific issues, the general
framework remains unchanged in terms of zoning
districts, allowed land uses, and basic development
requirements such as minimum lot sizes and
building setbacks.

In the summer of 2021, a comprehensive update
of the zoning ordinance was under consideration.
It was passed by the planning commission in May
2021 after several years of effort and is moving on
to the township board for final approval.

This update is aimed at issues such as organization,
improved graphics, added definitions, improved
cross-referencing conformance with other

laws, and regulatory clarification. In large part,
substantive changes to regulations were set aside
until after this master plan is complete.

Six primary zoning districts apply to all parcels in
the township. Generally, the interior portions of
the township are zoned agricultural (A-1), and

the waterfront areas are zoned residential (R-1A,
R-1B, R-1C and R1-D). There are also several small
areas zoned commercial (C-1). Descriptions of each
zoning district, acreages related to each, and a
map showing the location of zoning districts follow
below.

A-1 Agricultural
District

5 acres

Existing Zoning Structure

Zoning District Minimum Lot mi

The agricultural district is intended to recognize the unique ecological
character of the peninsula and to preserve, enhance, and stabilize
existing areas within the township that are presently being used
predominately for farming purposes while recognizing there are lands
within the district that are not suited to agriculture; therefore, the
district allows ather limited uses that are deemed to be compatible with
agricultural and open space uses.

R-1A Districts: Rural
and Hillside Residential
District

1 acre

The R-1A rural and hillside residential district sets standards for the
continued development of: (1) rural areas suited to very low-density
residential development; (2) fragile hillside areas; and (3) interface areas
between more intensive residential uses and agricultural land uses. This
district includes existing low density residential developments as well as
areas within which such development appears both likely and desirable.

R-1B District: Coastal
Zone Residential
District

25,000 sq.ft.

The R-1B coastal zone residential district sets standards for the
development of residential properties of a semi-rural character along
lakeshore drives and in areas of high scenic value where more intensive
development would deteriorate the peninsula‘s environment and

less intensive development is essential to maintain the established
environment.

R-1C Districts:
Suburban Residential
Development District

20,000 sq.ft

The R-1C suburban residential district encourages medium density
residential development associated with proximate areas of Traverse
City. Such development shall fall within the logical service pattern of
the Regional Wastewater Treatment System, whether or not serviced by
that system.

R-1D Districts:
Community Residential
District

15,000 sq.ft.

The R-1D community residential district encourages moderately high
density development where community services such as fire protection,
schools, commercial development, community parks, and services are
available.

58 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Zoning District Minimum Lot .

The C-1 commercial district allows for convenience-type shopping

for township residents and for limited marina and transient lodging
facilities. It is the purpose of this district regulation to avoid undue
25,000 sq.ft. | congestion on major highways and to promote smooth and safe traffic
flow along highway routes. Commercial activities within this district are
those that primarily offer goods and services that are generally required
by a family at intervals of a week or less.

C-1 Commercial
District

The PUD zoning designation can be applied to another zoning district
to allow for more creative and imaginative land development and a
more desirable living environment by preserving the natural character
of open fields, stands of trees, and steep slopes as well as brooks,
Varies ponds, lakeshore, hills, and similar natural assets. PUDs concentrate
density to areas of the site with the fewest environmental constraints
and preserve sensitive areas in common open space. PUDs require
additional plan review steps. When approved, PUD developments
include the PUD notation with the zoning district.

PUD Planned Unit
Development

Land Use | 59



Unofficial Zoning Map

LEGEND
RIA N A1 AGRICULTURML
I c-1 coMMERC:AL
~Ra8 R-1ARURALAND # 4t §.3F REBDENTIAL
R-16 COASTAL ZONE RESIDENTIAL
aa | ROICSUBLRIBAN RESDENTIAL DEVELOPHENT
T R0 COMMUNITY RESDENTIA
{7771 ~mpont overAY ZonE

60 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



LAND-USE ISSUES

A number of primary land-use issues surfaced
from results frem of the 2019 community survey,
information gained from Participate Old Mission,
and discussions among the master plan steering
committee. These issues are described below and
are associated wtih specific initiatives and action
steps.

PDR Program

As described in Chapter 2, the PDR program has
had a tremendous impact on land use in Peninsula
Township, and, along with the zoning ordinance,
has been the most impactful land-use policy the
township has adopted. To date, this program,
along with other forms of land protection, has
protected about 34 percent of the township from
development. The PDR program was originally put
in place to protect valuable and unigue farmland
and to limit the build-out potential of Peninsula
Township. “Build out” is a largely theoretical term
that gauges what happens if development trends
continue under existing regulations and other
constraints; it refers to the state at which Peninsula
Township would not have any available parcels for
development given current zoning restrictions. The
desire to limit build out is associated with the need
to protect farmland and rural character and reduce
the number of vehicles on the roads as well as
congestion at the base of the peninsula.

The PDR program is largely viewed as a
tremendous success. To date, the funds from

the two prior tax levies (in 1994 and again in
2002) have been expended, and a new millage is
being contemplated in the near future. An oft-
overlooked element is the fact that PDR programs
require attention well beyond the time devoted
to acquiring the PDR easement. In other words,
Peninsula Township has an ongoing obligation to
monitor program compliance and to ensure that
land-use and construction activity are compliant
with easement terms. Additionally, when all or
part of an agricultural parcel is encumbered by a
PDR easement, the relationship between the PDR
easement and the zoning ordinance can become
more complicated.

Inifiatives and Action Steps
PDR Renewal

Renewal of a PDR levy is an essential step if
Peninsula Township is to complete the job of
preserving agricultural land and limiting growth.
The importance of renewing the PDR program
cannot be overstated in terms of expanding upon
the local legacy of

land stewardship and resource protection. It is also
critically important in terms of reducing future
traffic congestion. The 2019 community survey
provides clear evidence that overdevelopment and
traffic congestion are among the top reasons given
by residents who perceive a declining quality of life
on the peninsula. Renewing the PDR program is
one direct way to address this concern. In simplistic
terms, for every 100 acres of land that might be
included in a PDR easement funded by a future
levy, the number of new homes potentially drops
by as many as 20 and the corresponding vehicle
trips drop by as many as 200. See calculations
below:

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF PDR ON
FUTURE TRAFFIC

The A-1 zoning district allows one home to be
constructed on a five-acre parcel.

A 100-acre parcel theoretically yields 15-20
homes (assuming lot frontage and related
requirements are met).

According to the Institute of Transportation
Engineers (ITE) and its published Trip
Generation Manual, the number of vehicle trips
associated with a single-family home is about
9.57 trips per day (it actually can range from
4.3 to more than 21 trips per day).

Therefore, it might be said that for every 100
acres of new PDR land, future potential traffic
traveling on Peninsula Township roads is
reduced by between 140 and 200 vehicles per
day.

Land Use | 61



Shoreline Protection

The shoreline and water quality are precious to
residents. According to the 2019 survey, protecting
the water quality of the bays should be a top
priority for the township. At the same time,
current high lake levels have produced erosion and
obvious concerns. According to the Army Corps of
Engineers in its October 2020 Great Lakes Water
Level Summary, the mean level of 581.53 feet was
31 inches above the long-term average and just 10
inches below the record high. This recent report
actually indicates a drop in lake levels from similar
reports earlier in 2020.

Record lake levels combined with storm events
produced well-documented and severe erosion
problems that are very evident on Bluff Road,
where the magnitude of erosion led to the road’s
recent closure. Similar problems are familiar to
residents who live along the shoreline elsewhere in
the township and in the greater region.

Many shoreline areas also include roadways that
provide access to waterfront residences. These
include principally Bluff Road, East Shore Road,

and Peninsula Drive. The relationship between
roadway maintenance and shoreline management
has been challenging. In most areas, pavement and
shoulder drainage improvements have not included
sufficient measures to prevent erosion, and, in
some areas, conditions have been made worse by
tree and vegetation removal. The classic example

of this occurs along Bluff Road, where a variety

of factors contributed to the recent road closure,
creating substantial tension between area residents,
the Grand Traverse County Road Commission, and
Peninsula Township. Going forward, more efforts
to utilize “green infrastructure” in road projects

is needed to help slow and purify runoff draining
into the bays. An excellent resource for roadway-
related green infrastructure technigues is found in
the Great Lakes Green Streets Guidebook produced
by the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments
(SEMCOG).

In response to high water problems, a common
approach is to “armor” the shoreline with seawalls,
boulders, or structures. While these efforts can
provide short-term relief, experts warn that such
structures can actually worsen erosion elsewhere,
and the issue of what seawalls will look like when
water levels recede also becomes relevant. Fewer
than 10 years ago, Lake Michigan water levels

62 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

were at very low levels. More “natural” solutions
are often promoted by professionals to help
prevent erosion. These include establishing and/or
protecting existing natural deep- rooted vegetation,
which can hold soil in place, and requiring buildings
and structures to be set back further from the
shoreline so that the natural shoreline can be more
“elastic” and adjust to changing lake levels over
time.

The Peninsula Township Zoning Ordinance has
related requirements in place to help ensure
vegetated cover along the shoreline. Most
significantly, tree cutting along a strip paralleling
the shoreline and extending 35 feet inland from

all points along the normal high-water mark of
the shoreline is limited to 30 percent. In other
words, at least 70 percent of this strip must remain
vegetated.

In large part, these requirements need attention
and updates to clarify and better articulate
requirements that benefit both landowners

and zoning enforcement. Additional measures

to consider include potential limitations on
construction of specific types of shoreline armoring.

Great Lakes
Green Streets
Guidebook

http://www.watershedcouncil.org/uploads/7/2/5/1/7251350/
greatlakesgreenstreetsguidebookseptember2013 1_.pdf



Initiatives and Action Steps
Update Shoreline Regulations

A complete review and update of the shoreline
regulations are needed to better align with best
practices. Definitions and explanations of best
management practices are available from national
resources as well as state and local sources.

Much more clarity is needed to more specifically
and completely define requirements that limit
vegetation removal along with a strong and
reliable enforcement mechanism. A detailed survey
of coastal characteristics may also be needed to
support the development of new regulations.
This study could identify wetlands, unique coastal
features, and relationships between local permitting
and state and federal regulatory measures. The
2011 master plan identified the potential for
overlay zoning districts to address environmental
issues. There are other options as well that should
be explored. The goal is to achieve a high level of
clarity in terms of what shoreline vegetation may
be removed along with an effective enforcement
mechanism.

Additonally, as described on page 28, an inventory
of shoreline areas depicting waterfront viewsheds,
existing trees and vegetation, and other natural
features is needed.

Encourage Shoreline Protection Education

Past efforts and events aimed at educating
residents about shoreline protection have been
well received. In November of 2019, township
resident Monnie Peters organized a workshop for
township residents who own shoreline property to
help educate property owners on how to be good
stewards of the shoreline they own and how they
might go beyond basic regulatory compliance.
Experts who spoke at this workshop included
Baykeeper Heather Smith of the Grand Traverse
Bay Watershed Center and Mark Breederland from
Michigan Sea Grant. Copies of the recently updated
booklet published by the Watershed Center, “Up
North Shoreline: Stewardship Guide for Living on
Grand Traverse Bay,” was were given to residents
who attended the workshop. The township should
continue to support and encourage the education
of shoreline property owners.

| S
| -

. Y

Alternative Energy

The subject of alternative energy (both wind and
solar designed to serve on-site energy demands)
and larger community systems has become more
relevant in recent years for both environmental
and economic reasons. In Peninsula Township,
the issues are complex, given the desire to
protect significant views and maintain valued
rural atmosphere. To some, alternative energy
equipment and fixtures diminish scenic views and
rural character.

Roof-mounted solar panels have been allowed in
Peninsula Township for some time. More recently,
zoning amendments were enacted to allow

free- standing solar panels of various sizes. In all
scenarios, free-standing solar panel installations are
related to a net metering agreement; this means
that the power generated is roughly equivalent to
the power needs of the site. In this way, energy
generated on site simply offsets demand for power
from the grid. In other words, there is no net
production of electricity beyond the need of the
property upon which the solar panel equipment is
located.

There have been no discussions about larger-scale
solar energy systems that would connect directly to
the electric grid and serve off-site customers. Such
a project in Peninsula Township might resemble a
#wo solar project in Elmwood Township on M-72
\W. This project was approved in the spring of

2021 after Acme Township amended its zoning
ordinance in 2018 to allow solar energy farms as a
special use.

Land Use | 63



Wind energy is also a component of the alternative
energy discussion. Existing zoning regulations
permit wind energy conversions systems (WECS) as
a special use in all zoning districts. These provisions
require attention to address shortcomings. As
examples, existing WECS provisions do not
reference a “net metering” agreement as recent
solar amendments do, and they allow for heights
of up to 100 feet in all districts.

Initiatives and Action Steps

Update alternative energy provisions in zoning
ordinance with more public input.

The 2019 community survey provided some
evidence of support for alternative energy
equipment, particularly as it relates to equipment
generating power for on-site needs (i.e., as part
of a net metering agreement). However, support
seems to decline with the potential for larger
equipment and facilities. More public opinion
research is needed to explore this issue further as
wind and solar are lumped together under the
heading of “alternative energy.” It is not clear if an
alternative energy facility similar to what is being
constructed in Aeme-or Elmwood Township would
be acceptable anywhere in Peninsula Township.
Setting that question aside, it is clear that the
existing WECS provisions require attention and
updating so that they better align with the recent
solar amendments.

Mixed-Use Commercial Area/Transfer of
Development Rights (TDR)

In the 1990s, considerable effort went into
studying a village center concept in Peninsula
Township. One past effort considered the Mapleton
area as a potential location for a town/village

64 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

concept. More recently, the 2011 Peninsula
Township Master Plan recommended reconsidering
this conceptual development idea. Conversations at
that time occurred along with the notion of a new
PDR program.

At the present time, a commercial area concept
has no identified details, potential sites, or specific
parcels. Generally, the concept consists of a

small mixed-use area with small-format buildings
providing consumer service establishments as well
as limited retail, housing, and offices. A range of
potential uses could include establishments such
as bakeries, small restaurants, specialty markets,
art studios, barber/ beauty shops, etc. Offices and/
or housing in upper floors could also be part of the
land-use mix. The appeal of the concept includes
the potential to offer greater local housing choices
and opportunities to provide limited goods and
services while showcasing local culture, art, food,
agricultural products, and community identity.
Providing some services on Old Mission Peninsula
might help reduce the need for residents to travel
to Traverse City (and thereby potentially reduce
traffic congestion at the base of the peninsula).

An important underpinning of the 1997
“Preservation Village Concept Planning Report”
was the idea of transferring development density
from the agricultural preservation area to a new
village development area. A program called
Transfer of Development Rights (which exists
elsewhere across the country) was proposed in
which landowners could sell the right to develop
houses on properties they own in a “Transfer
Sending Area” to someone wishing to develop
land in a “Transfer Receiving Area.” In this way,
the transfer of development rights would help
maintain rural areas by redirecting development
toward a specific area, in this case, a mixed-use



village development. Housing units could continue
to be scattered across the landscape on five-acre
lots or could be concentrated in a more mixed-use
setting with a greater variety of housing formats
supported by a limited number of commercial/retail
facilities. An overarching goal was for the outcome
to remain “density neutral,” meaning the amount
of potential development activity would remain
unchanged with or without a TDR program/ village
center concept.

If, after more community dialogue and study,

a TDR program/village center concept receives
more attention, the focus should also include
investigating a form-based code as a means to
control and design the development of a village
center so that future building mass, lot placement,
and other site design elements correctly relate to
the site.

Initiatives and Action Steps

Continue to study and investigate the concept
of TDR and a commerical center.

The 2019 survey asked one question about the
village center concept without mentioning the
connection to “density neutral aspects” of a TDR
program. Only a minority of residents favored this
concept, but it is complex, and a more complete
explanation may be necessary. Developing a TDR
program/commerical center should only be pursued
if and when there is evidence such a concept aligns
with community goals. More research, community
dialogue, and study are needed to fully define,
assess, and consider the TDR and commerical
center concept. This work should include
identifying best practices and success stories from
elsewhere.

Agri-Tourism and Agricultural Viability

Peninsula Township has made major strides toward
preserving agricultural land. Working in partnership
with the Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy
(GTRLC) since the early 1990s, the township has
now permanently preserved about 34 percent

of the township’s agricultural areas. Existing
easements with restrictions on future development
guarantee that this land will be used solely for
agricultural purposes. As important as these strides
are, most people agree that since residential
development pressures remain high, more effort is
needed to continue protecting agricultural land to
preserve the township’s rural character.

Preserving agricultural land inevitably invites
discussions about the continued viability of
agricultural operations. Between fluctuating
commodity prices, weather-related issues,
operational costs, and the like, the profitability of
farming often comes into question, driving the
conversation toward finding the delicate balance
between allowing additional activities that make
the land more profitable and maintaining rural
character. Possible additional activities might
include those that add value to agricultural
products grown on site. Of course, if the property is
subject to a purchase of development rights (PDR)
easement, all options are subject to the restrictions
contained in the easement.

Existing township zoning sets boundaries
concerning the extent to which agricultural land
can be used for activities that begin to approach
the realm of commercial activity. For the most
part, these restrictions have been in place for
many years. For example, roadside stands selling
fresh or processed farm produce are allowed. On

Land Use | 65



the other side of the spectrum, larger uses such
as food processing plants, winery-chateaus, and

greenkouses nurseries are potentially permitted
only by special use permit.

Wineries

The development of wineries has become an area of
concern in recent years. Existing zoning regulations
were put in place years ago to carefully allow
owners of large tracts of agricultural land to develop
wineries that offer tastings and some level of guest
activities. An important objective was the desire to
support production agriculture by linking products
sold in wine-related operations to producing grapes
grown on the peninsula. Peninsula Township
became designated as a viticultural area known as
Old Mission Peninsula (a viticultural area is associated
with an appellation of origin on wine labels and in
advertisements). Over time, the number of wineries
expanded substantially, and many now seek to
develop business models with a greater variety of
events and activities to draw customers. Interest in
establishing new wineries also continues.

In late 2019, work began on updating the winery
regulations to clarify and simplify the requirements.
Ultimately, winery owners filed a lawsuit against the
township, and the matter is currently being litigated
over constitutional issues at the time this master plan
is being updated. In the meantime, concerns remain
regarding traffic, noise, and other off-site impacts.

If existing wineries continue to expand activities

(and new wineries come into play), traffic naturally
increases. Winery patrons are principally tourists who
must travel through the “chokepoint” at the base of
the peninsula (see page 25).

Going forward, continued consideration should

be given to updating the regulatory approach to
wineries. All wineries are zoned agricultural and fall
into one of two categories, either farm processing
facilities or winery-chateaus. Wineries in the farm
processing facility category must consist of at least
40 acres. They are allowed “as-ef+igh a by nght” in
the agricultural zoning district with restrictions on
building size, allowed activities, sales, and limitations
on sources of produce. Winery-chateaus are also
allowed in the agricultural district but as a special
use that requires a special use permit (SUP). This is
because winery-chateaus allow more intensive uses
that ean may include guest rooms, guest activities,
and single-family residences. In addition, winery-
chateaus st were required to consist of at least

66 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

50 acres, with at least 75 percent of the site used
for producing crops that can be used for wine
production. Essentially, the farm processing winery is
oriented more toward agricultural production while
the winery-chateau potentially includes more non-
production or “commercial” activities.

Updating winery regulations in the future should
occur in the context of distinguishing between
agricultural production and non-production or
“commercial” activities that may accompany a
farming operation. There is broad consensus that
normal agricultural production activities should
be allowed in the agricultural district with few
restrictions. This is generally the case with existing
farm processing regulations. Here, non-production
activities are quite limited given requirements
concerning size (several clarifications to existing
regulations are needed).

History of Winery-Related
Zoning Amendments

Winery regulations have been amended
multiple times in past decades. Specifically:

Amendment 95, Section 6.7.2 (8), April 14,
1992, removed the ability to sell alcohol at
roadside stands.

Amendment 100, Parts A, B, and C, August 10,
1993, added winery-chateau use.

1994 PDR vote approved 1.25 mills.

Amendment 120, May 12, 1998, added remote
wine tasting.

2002 PDR vote approved 2.0 mills.

Amendment 139, July 9, 2002, added farm
processing facilities.

Amendment 146, Dec. 10, 2002, allowed
residences in farm processing buildings.

Amendment 141, August 10, 2004, added
guest activity uses for non-registered guests.

Amendment 181, August 11, 2009, added
sales of wine by the glass.

Amendment 197, Jan. 8, 2019, increases farm
processing facility building sizes.




On the other hand, when winery-chateaus wish

to include non- production or “commercial”
activities, additional restrictions and limitations and
review processes are needed to address concerns
over traffic, safety, and noise along with concerns
over loss of rural character and surrounding
neighborhood stability. When property is zoned
agricultural, the principal use of the property
should be production agriculture.

Given this framework, future updates to winery
regulations also allow for the opportunity to shift
toward more of a site capacity and neighborhood
context focus when addressing the commercial
dimensions. This might mean less emphasis on
defining allowed and prohibited activities and
events by types and categories and more emphasis
on limiting capacity in terms of measurable
thresholds such as maximum numbers of customers
allowed (indoor and outdoor) based on attributes
such as the size of the site itself (larger sites

= more capacity), surrounding neighborhood
features, and other physical and natural landscape
considerations. Capacity issues also relate to
water/wastewater (most areas are on wells and
septic systems), road capacity and characteristics,
proximity of neighboring homes, potential noise,
etc. In terms of road capacity, it makes sense that
any new wineries should be located on M-37 to
help reduce traffic on local roads.

Capacity is also important from the larger
perspective of the township as a whole. As such,
overall context is needed in terms of considering an
increasing number of wineries compared with the
capacity of the area to support more traffic flow
through the “choke point” at M-37 in Traverse
City (discussed on page 25). As noted, winery
customers are typically tourists who enter and
exit the area via M-37. While tourist buses reduce
the number of private vehicles, traffic demands
increase incrementally with each new winery.

Continued careful study of these options is needed
to achieve reasonable flexibility while maintaining
rural character.

Other Agri-Business

Apart from wineries, other agricultural operations
add value to agricultural produce and sell products
on site. However, it is generally felt that the zoning
ordinance does not provide adequate flexibility for
a more complete range of potential agri-business

uses. The township has many farm stands, but farm
stands are limited to 150 square feet in size. Farm
processing facilities (including wineries as discussed
above) are allowed in the agricultural zoning district
as a permitted use (use by right), but 40 acres are
needed. Food processing plants are allowed in

A-1 but only as a special use. Greenhouses and
nurseries are also special uses in A-1. In essence,
there are limited opportunities for owners of
agricultural land to grow or raise products, add
value to these products, and sell them on the same
site.

Carefully relaxing certain requirements is
considered to be a logical step toward enhancing
and supporting local agri-business. The associated
challenge is to do so in a manner that does not
diminish rural character by allowing an excessive
amount of commercial activity in more rural areas,
in viewsheds, and in other sensitive locations.

As with wineries, it makes sense that larger agri-
businesses should be located on M-37 to help
reduce traffic on local roads.

As discussed above, there is a need to seek a
balance been between agricultural production and
non- production or “cemmercial” value added
activities. Like wineries, limited non-production

or “commmerctat” value added activities should be
allowed “as &f a use by right,” while higher levels
of non-production, value-added, or “commercial”
activities that are associated with traffic generation
should be subject to a special layer of development
standards and operational thresholds applicable in
the SBP Special Use Permit approval process.

Inifiatives and Action Steps

Pursue development of updated zoning to
address winery issues and add more flexibility
to other agri-businesses.

As described above, steps are needed to update
the winery regulations and add flexibility for other
forms of agri-businesses. In terms of refinements
to winery regulations (apart from the need to

wait for a resolution to the lawsuit), the planning
commission has developed a working document
and framework that can be revisited and further
refined. Similarly, updates are needed to provide
greater flexibility to allow for the strategic blending
of agricultural production and non-production agri-
business to occur under the proper circumstances.
This process will likely include updating special use

Land Use | 67



and use-by-right requirements within the existing
zoning ordinance structure. Finally, consideration
can be given to allowing shared remote sales and/
or remote processing facilities. New buildings of
modest size could be built (or existing underutilized
buildings could be repurposed) on M-37 to increase
opportunities for shared processing and sales of
local agricultural products. This concept aligns with
the desire to keep commercial activity off local
roads and on M-37, which has the capacity to
support higher traffic volumes in the safest manner
possible.

It should also be noted that the context within
which this discussion of agricultural uses takes
place includes the fact that residents of Peninsula
Township have essentially paid for PDR easements
in the agricultural preservation areas and have a
vested interest in such land-use issues as they relate
to maintaining a rural atmosphere with lower levels
of traffic and noise.

Lodging and Short- Term Rentals

Under current ordinances, lodging options include
bed and breakfasts (B&Bs), approved guest rooms
in winery chateaus, and hotels (hotels are only
allowed under a special use permit [SUP] within the
26 acres of land zoned C-1 in Peninsula Township).
Apart from guest rooms at winery chateaus and a
few rooms at B&Bs, there are few lodging options
in Peninsula Township.

The 2019 survey results suggest a majority of
residents do not support short-term rentals (STRs)
in Peninsula Township. Additionally, Peninsula
Township officially opposes STRs (see Resolution
2021-05-11, passed on May 11, 2021). However,
a proposed bill in the Michigan legislature seeks
to limit local governments' ability to regulate

STRs by ekanging amending the MickhigarZoning-
Enabling-Act MZEA. A similar bill introduced in
past legislative sessions received considerable
attention. Peninsula Township adamantly opposes
such legislation. It is interesting to note that the
impacts of STRs are not felt evenly across the state.
According to a recent Record-Eagle article (May

9, 2021), the Grand Traverse region is home to
only three percent of the state’s population but
has 25 percent of the short-term rental units in all
of Michigan. Nationally, a similar trend towards
more short-term rentals exists. In highly desirable
vacation/tourist areas, it is not uncommon for

68 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

single family homes to be purchased by out-of-
town investors who buy properties for the sole
purpose of using them exclusively as STRs. This
drives up housing prices and erodes the notion
that people know their neighbors and are part of a
familiar neighborhood.

Public opinion supports the current position/policy
of the prohibition on STRs. Regarding other forms
of local lodging, there is support for investigating
options to improve policies with respect to B&Bs,
guest rooms at winery chateaus, and hotels and to
perhaps create a new category of “country inns.”
The exact definition of a “country inn” needs to
be developed further and should be distinguished
from existing B&Bs or winery- chateaus with guest
rooms. Conceptually, a country inn is a building
with unique character, food offerings, and guest
rooms on a large rural tract of land. There is

also the potential to connect lodging with an
offering of a deeper agricultural experience and
appreciation that includes opportunities to learn
about agricultural practices, methods, challenges,
and food processing.

The subject of hotels should also be addressed.
Presently, a hotel is permitted on the limited
amount of C-1 zoned land as a special use. A
five-acre parcel size is also required. This minimum
parcel size should be reviewed, as it might have
unintended consequences such as nudging
developers toward larger facilities than would likely
be desired. Given a five-acre site and the existing
maximum lot coverage of 35 percent, a building
footprint could be more than 75,000 square feet.
A building this size would likely be way out of scale
with the surrounding rural area. For this reason, a
revision is needed.

Initiatives and Action Steps

Develop updated regulations for B&Bs and/
or create a new category of lodging called
“country inns.”

A review of allowed numbers of guest rooms given
the size of a site and allowed guest activities is
particularly relevant. Often, a related issue is the
topic of allowed events such as weddings and
other gatherings for small groups, which should

be clearly addressed and limited. As mentioned
previously, residents of Peninsula Township have
paid for PDR easements and have a right to express
a strong preference regarding land-use issues as



they relate to maintaining a rural atmosphere with
lower levels of traffic and noise.

Special Use Permits

The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MZEA) of 2006
establishes parameters under which a local zoning
ordinance can be created and administered. A
component of these parameters is the authority
to define special land uses and activities that

may be approved subject to special standards

and requirements. The Peninsula Township

Zoning Ordinance relies heavily on special land-
use approvals to address sensitive issues such as
wineries and related commercial activities. Since
the zoning ordinance was first adopted 50 years
ago, nearly 140 special use permits (SUPs) have
been approved. Public hearings are conducted
and notices are sent to adjoining property owners
before an official statement of findings and
conclusions is produced; this document specifies
the basis for the decision and any conditions
imposed.

One area of concern is the need for minor
amendments to previously approved SUPs. Typically,
SUP approval requires at least four months in order
to allow two public hearings and approval by both
the planning commission and township board. This
process can be onerous, especially when a change
or modification is small and inconsequential. The
MZEA seems to allow for such procedural flexibility.

Special Use Permits in
Peninsula Township

Zoning ordinances typically divide communities
into different zoning districts that include the
distinct land uses allowed in each one and

the development standards that must be met.
Uses listed in each zoning district include those
permitted “as-of- right” or by right and those
that are “special uses,” which are also known
as SUPs. ("SUP" literally stands for “special

use permit.”) Uses permitted "as-of-right”

or by right can be approved administratively
when the applicant demonstrates that the
proposed project meets all zoning requirements
(minimum ot sizes, setbacks, height
restrictions, lot coverage, etc.). Generally, these
uses include construction projects such as

single-family homes, home additions, garages,
decks, sheds, sea walls, etc. SUPs, on the other
hand, are more intense and potentially more
impactful and include uses such as winery-
chateaus and churches. Potential impacts from
these uses in terms of traffic and noise justify
an additional review process, requirements,
and examination. The town board can approve
projects with specific conditions and safeguards
put in place to address potential impacts.

The process to approve an SUP (or a planned
unit development, or PUD) takes several
months. The first requirement is for the
Jandowner to file an application with the
township’s planning commission. The planning
commission then considers the application at
one or more scheduled meetings, a key part of
which is a legally advertised public hearing. The
advertisement for the public hearing is placed
in the Record-Eagle, and people within 300 feet
of the project are required by law to receive a
written notice in the mail. Ideally, before the
public hearing, interested residents take the
time to learn what is being proposed. Township
staff welcome questions about proposed
projects, and residents can also seek answers
from the comfort of their own homes by asking
guestions at www.participateoldmisssion.

The planning commission considers the
testimony provided at the public hearing and
works with staff and outside assistance from
engineering and legal ReSeuiRess @oumsal to
produce a document that describes how the
proposed project does or does not meet the
requirements of the zoning ordinance; this
document also defines any specific approval
conditions that are necessary to address
concerns GF mitigeka After
the planning commission reaches consensus on
an actionable document and votes to approve
it, the matter moves to the township board.
Similarly, the township boardholds a public
hearing and considers the findings ef fiagt of
the planning commission before taking final
action. The process, while time consuming, is
designed to provide ample opportunities for
public comment and deliberation by appointed
and elected officials. At the conclusion of

the process, the township may act to deny,
approve, or approve a project with conditions.

Land Use | 69



Initiatives and Action Steps

Review and update procedures for SUP
approvals and amendments.

The zoning ordinance should be amended to
provide for an abbreviated process to consider
minor amendments to SUPs. The choices could
include only staff approval or just planning
commission/township board action. Again, the
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act of 2006 allows for
options to be considered in terms of how SUPs are
reviewed and acted on.

General Review of Uses and
Development Standards in All Zoning
Districts

The list of uses permitted as-of-right and by SUP
has been largely unchanged for many years. Land
uses exist today that did not exist in 1972 when the
ordinance was adopted.

Initiafives and Action Steps

Review and update lists of permitted and
special uses and development Some particular
focus areas include the following:

1. The MZEA generally states that a zoning
ordinance shall not have the effect of totally
prohibiting the establishment of a land use
within a local unit of government in the
presence of a demonstrated need for that
land use. Given this requirement, a review
of permitted and special uses should be
conducted. Few (if any) land uses have been
added to the zoning ordinance since its
adoption nearly 50 years ago.

2. The C-1 zoning district does not include any
permitted uses. Uses are only allowed as an
SUP, and land-use descriptions are very broad.
For example, the term “retail sales” is used, but
that term potentially includes everything from
a small market to a big box superstore. Only a
small amount of land is zoned C-1 in Peninsula
Township, and no areas are appropriate for
large-format commercial activity. C-1 should be
clearly defined in the context of “neighborhood
scale” establishments that include retail sales
and consumer services (barber/beauty shops,
dryeleaner, satons; photo studio, computer
repair, etc.). To address concerns over building
mass and scale, development standards such as

70 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

maximum building size should be considered.
Developing a form-based code should also

be investigated and considered. According to
the Form-Based Code Institute, this regulation
is adopted as an alternative to conventional
zoning regulation. It provides more predictable
build results and a high- quality public realm
by using physical form rather than separation
of uses as its organizing principle. This tool
could prove to be useful in the future to more
clearly and specifically define the form, mass,
and placement of new buildings in C-1 zoning
districts.

. Existing provisions related to “dark sky” issues

should be addressed. Peninsula Township
demonstrated leadership many years ago with
regulations aimed at curbing light pollution.
Existing provisions in Peninsula Township’s
Zoning Ordinance could be improved, however,
by utilizing material found in a model ordinance
produced by the International Dark Sky
Association and the Illuminating Engineering
Society of North America.

. Parking standards should be reviewed and

updated. The cost of building and maintaining
parking areas plus environmental issues related
to impervious surfaces and the volume and
velocity of runoff that washes chemicals into
water sources are strong reasons to ensure that
minimum parking standards do not require
larger parking lots than necessary. Parking
standards in the Peninsula Township Zoning
Ordinance have been in place for several
decades, and better research now exists to
consider updated standards for Peninsula
Township such as including bike bicycle parking
equipment and areas and delineating non-
motorized use space in parking lots (see Parking
Standards, American Planning Association,

PAS Report 510/511). Bike Bicycle parking
requirements can be based on the amount of
floor area or as a fraction of vehicular parking
requirements. Requiring bike bicycle parking is
another way to promote non-motorized travel
in Peninsula Township.

. Efforts are needed to examine existing zoning

requirements in places like Neahtawanta.
Areas such as these were platted long before
local zoning was enacted and include many
non-conforming lots. The Neahtawanta area
is zoned R-1B, which requires 100 feet of



frontage and 25,000 square feet of lot area
in order to comply with the minimum lot size
in that zoning district necessary for home
construction.

6. Improvements to regulations concerning the
number of docks and hoists that are permitted
in shared waterfront access are needed,
particularly as they relate to new developments
located on or near the bays. The updated
zoning ordinance clarifies existing requirements
for docks and hoists for individual properties,
but the larger issue of shared waterfront access
and allowable docks and hoists still needs
attention.

FUTURE LAND USE

A future land-use map has been prepared that
largely reflects existing land-use patterns in
Peninsula Township. Future land uses throughout
large portions of Peninsula Township are likely to be
unchanged in the future for several reasons. First,
township PDR easements restricting development
were created to run with the land in perpetuity.
Second, much of the land along the shorelines has
been built upon, and few vacant sites remain. e

tabte-betow-tustratestand-use-categoriesand-their
associated-acreages:

It is important to note that this master plan does
not propose potential large-scale rezoning of land
in order to achieve the future land-use pattern
illustrated in the map on page 76. The differences
between the existing land-use map provided earlier
and this future land-use map largely reflect some
degree of “build out” that will naturally occur
within the confines and parameters of existing
Zoning requirements. It should also be noted that
the designated rural agricultural areas are not to
be regarded as “undeveloped” properties awaiting
development plans. Land designed as rural/
agricultural is land that is intentionally designated
for agricultural use now and into the future.

This master plan does, however, recognize that
some “small scale” rezonings (i.e., involving only a
few acres) may prove to be necessary in the future
in two specific ways. First, minor adjustments to
zoning district boundaries might be needed in
instances where odd- shaped parcels are involved
and impacted. Second, more than 1,100 acres of
property in Peninsula Township are “dual zoned,”
which means a zoning district boundary divides a

given parcel. That said, dual-zoned properties are
generally avoided with good planning and zoning
practices that reduce ambiguity and confusion over
requirements.

It should be clear that the designated rural
agricultural areas are not to be regarded as
“undeveloped” properties awaiting development
plans. Land designated as rural agricultural is land
intentionally planned for primarily agricultural use
now and into the future.

Land Use | 71



Peninsula Township 2021
Future Land Use

Poninsula Township
Grand Traverva Courty, Mictigan

72 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

LEGEND

D APA Boundary

Land Use

- Rurat Agricultural (1 housing unit for each § acres or mare)
[:l Rural Residential (1 housing unit for between 1 and 5 acres)
r—] Suburban R ial (B 1 and 4 housing units per acre)
E] Urban Residential (4 or more housing units per acre)

I commercia

I Fubiic 7 Semi Public  Private Open Space

Baze Map Source: MCGY, Grand Traverss Counly GIS

Dl Soures: Panintula Twnship

2021 Parcel Boundaries

N May 2021




7. Mobility

Mobility | 73



According to the Michigan Planning Enabling
Act, a master plan addresses land-use and
infrastructure issues and shows the planning
commission‘s recommendations for physical
development. It also includes all components of
a transportation system and interconnectivity
between streets, bridges, public transit, bicycle

facilities, pedestrian ways, freight facilities, port
facilities, railroad facilities, and airports with the
aim of providing safe and efficient movement
of people and goods for the community now
and in the future. Mobility issues fall into
several groups in terms of both vehicular and
non-motorized travel. Vehicular Mobility

VEHICULAR MOBILITY
M-37 - Center Road

M-37 is Peninsula Township’s primary throughfare.
It provides the most efficient route from north to
south and sees by far the heaviest traffic volumes.
To the south, just past the intersection with
Peninsula Drive, the annual average daily traffic
(AADT) is 11,817 (2020) according to MDQOT.
Toward the north a few miles, south of McKinley
Road, AADT drops to 6,081 (2020). Further north
(but south of Wilson Road), AADT is the same at
6,081 (2020). Just south of Gray Road, AADT drops
to 4,364 (2020) (It is worth noting that the 2020
counts are substantially lower than 2019 counts,
which might be attributed to COVID-19-related
travel impacts.)

Clearly, M-37 acts as a funnel, moving greater and
greater numbers of vehicles closer to Traverse City
and M-72/Front Street. The largest jump in traffic
counts occurs south of McKinley Road as adjacent
subdivisions add traffic generation. As described
previously, the intersection of M-37 with the road
network in Traverse City is a major chokepoint with
busy intersections and a finite capacity to move
traffic.

One attribute of M-37 is #s that it slopes and
curves, particularly toward the southern end of
the township. Horizontal and vertical curves add
considerable visual interest, revealing spectacular
views of both

East and West Grand Traverse bays and
breathtaking agricultural landscapes. This same
attribute, however, impacts vehicular travel,

74 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

as it limits opportunities for passing zones and
sight distances associated with driveways and
intersecting streets.

As noted on page 29, M-37 was designated as a
Pure Michigan Byway in 2008. A corresponding
Old Mission Peninsula Scenic Heritage Route
Management Plan was developed to provide an
understanding of the designated route, what
makes it special, and why it should be preserved.
This plan includes:

» A map and photographic inventory displaying
the location of intrinsic qualities;

» Maps displaying land use along the corridor;

Source: MDOT www.michigan.gov/mdot/



» Maps of road use and crash data;

» Inventory of the natural, historical, cultural, and
recreational resources;

» A list of potential threats or challenges affecting
the character of the corridor;

» Goals and objectives that offer insight into the
issues with recommendations for attaining the
goals; and

» Recommendations and strategies for making
future management decisions with a prioritized
project list.

The current master plan calls for maintaining M-37
as a free-flowing major road unrestricted by stop
signs or signals. This objective relates not only to
the convenience of residents and visitors but also
reflects the belief that the agricultural nature of
the area depends on supporting the movement of
agricultural trucks and equipment on and off the
peninsula.

Strategy

Peninsula Township has identified the need for

a corridor study of M-37 for several years. Most
recently, this issue stalled during discussions about
whether or not the Grand Traverse County Road
Commission would take over control of this road.
Now that MDOT has declared that it will retain
control of M-37, some of the answers/results
sought from such a study include the following
(some issues overlap with recommendations in
the Old Mission Peninsula Scenic Heritage Route
Management Plan):

1. What can be done to improve safety at the
scenic turnout near Chateau Grand Traverse?

Increasing numbers of vehicles park there,
taking in the views and watching sunsets,
particularly during peak tourist seasons.

. What should be done to improve intersecting

roads with M-37 that are not at 90-degree
intersections, a circumstance that inhibits safe
sight distances and creates safety issues? Some
examples include Seven Hills, Smokey Hollow,
and Bluff roads.

. What opportunities exist to construct turn

lanes, passing lanes, or similar improvements
to help support traffic flow that can be
encompassed in future planning and
development review activities?

. How can we address issues related to the

parking needs associated with the DNR boat
launch near the East Shore Road intersection?
Seasonal demand for boat launch access
regularly results in spillover on-street parking
on M-37, leading to safety issues as turning
movements (often involving vehicles towing
boats) are restricted and congested roadway
conditions inhibit sight distances.

. How can we clearly identify where sight

distances are optimum for future driveways and
new private roads?

. Can we consider the need for an overlay

zoning district along M-37? An overlay zoning
district can define uniform setbacks from the
right-of-way. A-1 is a common zoning district
along M-37, and it requires only a 35-foot front
setback. An overlay zoning district could require
a larger setback along the corridor regardless
of the requirements of the various underlaying
zoning districts. Other augmented development
standards might also make sense.

Mobility | 75



Additional $tudy of Local Roads

The general discussion about mobility in Peninsula
Township has highlighted the need for a township-
wide traffic study. This study could occur with,

or apart from, the M-37 corridor plan mentioned
above. There are unique issues with the shoreline
roads and the east/west connectors that relate to
both vehicular and non-motorized mobility. This
work should be aimed at determining how best
to handle vehicular traffic while identifying which
right-of-ways could support non-motorized traffic
with designated travel areas. Identified right-
of-way widths throughout the township would
make it possible to determine which roads might
support non-motorized transportation outside the
motorized lane (i.e., separate walks and/ or cycle
tracks).

Another aspect of this study should consider the
desirability of one-way vehicular traffic on roads
such as East Shore. A single one-way travel lane
would allow space for non-motorized travel within
the existing paved surface, eliminating the need
to widen the road and take down trees along the
shoreline to accommodate non-motorized travel.
Such an evaluation should also take into account
any potential impacts on emergency vehicle
response times.

Bicyclists on Blue Water Road heading toward
Center Road

76 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

Strategy

As part of the corridor planning related to M-37,
additional attention should be placed on local
roads as described above. If local roads are studied
as part of an M-37 corridor plan, overall costs will
likely be reduced. For this reason, local roads should
be included in any M-37 corridor plan.

Initiafives and Action Steps

Pursue development of a corridor plan and a
study of local roads focused on the identified
strategy elements.

NON-MOTORIZED MOBILITY

In the 2019 community survey, residents spoke
convincingly about the need to plan for more non-
motorized transportation opportunities in Peninsula
Township. In fact, the 2019 survey results suggest
that nearly eight in 10 respondents support the
concept of more planning for bike and pedestrian
travel. Related to this level of support is the fact
that the larger Traverse City region continues to
offer an expanding non-motorized transportation
system in response to an increasing interest in
biking, walking, fitness, and generally healthy
living. Simultaneously, we see complaints surfacing
from visitors to the peninsula who experience
dangerous circumstances they attribute to a lack of
accommodation for non-motorized travel. Recently,
an experience was so significant that a visitor took
the time to write a letter stating he’d been run

off the road several times while biking; he made it
clear he will not return to to the peninsula unless
improvements are made to protect cyclists.

Non-motorized travel is not just about casual
recreational cyclists or walkers. The base of the
township serves as training grounds for local sports
teams (football, basketball, hockey, and of course
track and cross country). The Bayshore Marathon
has been identified as one of the nation’s most
scenic races and is considered an ideal qualifying
race for the Boston Marathon. Other races are
similarly popular, and the local road system draws
visitors from all over the nation, especially the
Midwest. People visit with the intention of enjoying
the roads and scenery but find conditions that raise
important safety issues.

These long-standing circumstances present an
opportunity to update the master plan and provide



a compelling and exciting opportunity to begin

a significant dialogue about the future of non-
motorized mobility. Recent conversations during
the planning process about non-motorized travel
include a wide range of projects from minor
pavement markings to dedicated trails extending
throughout the peninsula with connections to
parks and community facilities such as the library
and school.

These early conversations have been supported
with input from local organizations such as
TART, Cherry Capital Cycling Club, and Norte.
In April 2021, Peninsula Township specifically
reached out to these three organizations for
assistance and input. All three attended a master
plan steering committee meeting in early May,
2021. Conversations were fruitful but led to
the acknowledgement that there are significant
guestions to be addressed if we are to move
forward. These include the subjects of:

» Creating an overall vision for non-motorized
travel on the Old Mission Peninsula;

» Identifying additional information to support
informed conversations about viable options
and alternatives, some of which is engineering
related;

» Determining if non-motorized trails are
permitted on agricultural land included in an
existing PDR easement;

» Identifying issues that are related and ancillary
to non-motorized travel (these include existing
speed limits, existing passing zones, general
roadway safety, and related matters);

» Identifying potential construction and non-
construction projects that support the vision
of non- motorized travel (non-construction
projects might include printed materials,
information campaigns, signage, websites,
organizational partnerships, etc., and potential
projects include those related to the Safe
Routes to School program);

» Prioritizing projects and possible timetables and
comparing short-term/low-cost projects with
longer-term/high-cost projects; and

» Funding (federal, state, local, and private).
Strategy

The complexity of the above issues suggests it
is not possible to instantly develop a complete

plan and aggressive timetable for constructing
projects that immediately result in better bike
bicycle and pedestrian mobility for Peninsula
Township. Rather, what lies ahead is the need

for a working group of planning commission
members, master plan committee members, and
park committee members to collaborate with TART,
Cherry Capital Cycling Club, and Norte with the
goal of responding to the seven issues identified
above. Ultimately, this work should include

more community engagement so that the vision,
projects, and implementation steps enjoy as much
support as possible as well as the insights residents
have about how to make Peninsula Township more
healthy, livable, and sustainable.

Once complete, a non-motorized transportation
plan should appear as an amendment to the master
plan for two primary reasons:

» If private development is proposed adjacent
to a planned non-motorized improvement,
potential connections should be considered:;
and

» If funding is sought for a major project, the fact
that the project is part of the master plan helps
to identify its validity and importance.

As starting points for further study and planning
for non-motorized travel in Peninsula Township, the
following ideas should be explored:

» Paving roadway shoulders in the high-use
Bowers Harbor area that connect the boat
launch, Bowers Harbor Park, the Mapleton
Area, and the Seven Hills and Devils Dive areas;

» Adding segments of paved shoulders in areas
where there are steep hills and/or poor sight
distances or low visibility;

» Utilizing one-way roads where low vehicular
speeds and low traffic volumes exist, a change
that would potentially allow for one vehicular
travel lane and one lane for non-motorized
travel;

» Implementing better bike-bicycle/pedestrian
crossings at Gray Road and Center, Seven Hills
and Center, and Smokey Hollow and Center;

» Collaborating with Old Mission Peninsula
School and Norte as well as Eastern Elementary
School and Traverse City Central High School at
the base of the peninsula to explore options for
Safe Routes to School projects and associated

Mobility | 77



funding (Norte administers Safe Routes to Initiatives and Action Steps

School programs in the Traverse City area as . ) ) )
well as in Northport and Elk Rapids); and Forming a working group to begin developing
a non-motorized transportation plan to

represent an amendment to this master
plan. This plan includes exploring options for
Safe Routes to School funding and zoning
amendments to require bike bicycle parking
improvements related to new construction.

» Developing a specific recommendation for 1)
updating the township zoning ordinance to
require bicycle parking improvements (racks
and/or bike-bicycle parking areas) in much the
same way that off- street automobile parking
spaces are required now for non-residential
developments and 2) requiring pavement
markings to designate pedestrian/bike-bicycle
areas in new parking lots.

78 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



8 %a@@@ @hafa@ib@r
Facﬂltles & Gov_ernance

u S ey e RGP ol

fFraces Character, Facilities, & Governance | 79




PEACES CHARACTER,
FACILITIES, AND GOVERNANCE

Apart from land use and mobility, various places,
public facilities, and aspects of governance in
Peninsula Township collectively help support

the attachment people feel to this special place.
Historic landmarks and old farm buildings that dot
the landscape remind people of what came before.

Architectural themes related to coastal homes,
beach houses, and farmsteads are common.
Finally, public facilities such as the school, library,
town hall, and fire stations help anchor residents
to a sense of community. In addition, our local
form of government has much to do with how
people relate to their community and the sense of
empowerment they feel about shaping the future.

HISTORY AND CULTURE

There are four primary historical sites on the Old
Mission Peninsula

STl

Hliry
Leffingwell-and-

»

Much of the story of nineteenth- and twentieth-
century America arcs through and across these
places.

To present the peninsula’s diverse history at easily
accessible sites that best consolidate private and
public funds, on-going strategic planning should
be aimed toward centralizing the history of Old
Mission Peninsula at the Dougherty House and
Mission Point Lighthouse sites.

80 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

Dougherty House

The Dougherty property is the appropriate place
with the necessary acreage to eventually house
the lengthy story of the Old Mission Peninsula.
This story ought to include the lives of the Native
Americans and the story of agriculture, starting
with the Anishinabek, including the many changes
brought by Dougherty and subsequent settlers,
and acknowledging Old Mission Peninsula’s vital
importance today as a unique, world-class fruit-
growing zone. This story should also highlight

the conservation movement on the peninsula via

a facility on the Dougherty grounds that shares
the innovative PDR and land conservation efforts
undertaken by local leaders. Finally, it ought to
include the dynamic nature of Lake Michigan,
including changes in water levels, changes in the
ecosystem (including the effect of invasive species),
and ongoing efforts to protect the lake from
manmade

Mission Point Lighthouse

The lighthouse restoration is complete and tells the
local story of light service, lifesaving, and maritime
history. Regular cultural events, a popular keeper
program, successful fundraisers, and a planned
Michigan lighthouse program should continue.

A tour of the lighthouse grounds presents the
opportunity to showcase our unique maritime
history.

Strategies

Although there has been historically strong
grassroots support and funding for separate local
historic pursuits, the idea of merging the Peter
Dougherty Society and the Old Mission Peninsula
Historical Society has been suggested as a means
to improve strategic planning, branding, and the
pursuit of project funding. This idea has not been
accepted or pursued, and there is no consensus
about whether this step would be wholly beneficial.
The organizations themselves are best equipped
to evaluate how to enhance the presentation of
local history at our historical sites. The township
encourages them to explore this idea and also to
develop a mechanism by which Native American
history continues to be recognized and elevated.

Initiatives and Action Steps

» Centralize the history of the Old Mission
Peninsula at the Dougherty House/replica Log



Church and Mission Point Lighthouse.

» Create a single website to act as a portal to all
things historical and cultural on Old Mission
Peninsula.

» Create and maintain seasonal displays at
Peninsula Community Library to encourage an
interest in the preservation movement among
younger residents.

» |dentify and implement sustainable ways to
maintain, operate, and improve the township’s
most valuable historic sites and parks.

» Continue to draw increasing attention to Native
» American history.

» Review the zoning ordinance and consider new
ways to support historic preservation.

» Study best practices in terms of how to
accommodate visitor parking and increased
traffic without increasing paved surfaces at the
lighthouse.

PUBLIC FACILITIES

Public facilities support the needs of residents

and visitors in various ways and generally include
the public library, town hall/office building, and

fire stations. The pubilic library is new and wiill

serve community needs for many years to come.
However, looking forward into the coming decades,
decisions are likely to be needed with respect to
the town hall/office building and fire stations.
Specifically, the town hall/office building may need
to be expanded to accommodate new government
functions and to reach higher levels of accessibility
for those with mobility impairments. In terms of the
fire stations, three facilities now serve the township.
The recent addition of the third station in the
spring of 2021 dramatically improved emergency
response times for residents at the northern end

of the peninsula. However, the two fire stations
located to the south are older facilities that will
soon need to be upgraded. Additionally, apart from
the town hall (which has ADA compliance issues),
the township lacks a public space that can be used
for training purposes and larger events/ meetings.

Strategy

Upgrades/changes to the two southernmost fire
stations will be needed in the future. Similarly, it
is not unrealistic to expect that more township
office space will be needed. Both issues would be

tremendously impacted by any future steps taken
toward pursuing another form of government to
better meet the needs of residents. Although it will
always be possible to contract out services, local
space and facility needs would likely still increase.

Along with providing procedural and content-
related requirements for master plans, the
Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MEPA) defines
requirements for capital improvement plans (CIPs).
CapitatimprovementsCIPs typically refer to major
expenditures on things such as land, buildings,
public infrastructure, and equipment. CIPs provide
a description of proposed capital improvement
projects that are prioritized and scheduled with

a cost estimate and identified funding source.
CIPs consist of a working document that looks
forward six years and is updated annually to reflect
changing priorities and funding opportunities.
The CIP should also reference water and sewer
infrastructure needs (as described previously in
Chapter 2) and potential capital projects at the
parks as described below.

Peninsula Township (like many townships) does not
now have a CIP. However, steps in this direction
should be taken. The MPEA indicates that the
planning commission is responsible for creating

a CIP, but such an undertaking requires close
coordination with the township board and staff.
The process to develop a CIP generally includes
project identification, ranking/prioritization, public
input, plan development, and adoption. Note: CIPs
do not include maintenance items.

Initiatives and Action Steps

» Launch an effort to formally develop and adopt
a CIP for Peninsula Township.

PARKS

Peninsula Township has a well-established park
system that has developed and expanded over
many years. In Michigan, park and recreation
planning is typically done within the context of the
five-year Community Park, Recreation, Open Space,
and Greenway plans required by the Michigan
Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). MDNR
offers grant programs that represent major
funding sources for both parkland acquisition and
parkland development. Projects proposed by a local
government must be consistent with the planning
and priorities established in these plans. Peninsula

Places Character, Facilities, & Governance | 81



Township’s park and recreation plan was adopted in
2018 and is now undergoing an update to refresh
and realign goals and priorities with proposed
projects.

Alserir In 2018, Peninsula Township residents voted
to change the organizational responsibilities for
park management from an independently elected
parks commission to a township board-appointed
committee. This committee has seven members and
works closely with the township board; members of
the committee are also assigned to specific parks.

Recently, Peninsula Township entered into a
contract with LIAA (Land Information Access
Association)

to assist with updating the township’s five-year
park and recreation plan and to develop a list of
capital improvements and a sustainable operating
budget. So as not to duplicate efforts, specific
park development projects will be defined in this
updated park and recreation plan rather than here.

However, as parks are such an important factor in
terms of the quality of life, it is important to draw
attention to overarching planning considerations
and strategies aimed at the four major hubs of park
and recreation activity in Peninsula Township.

Specific Park Strategies

» Pelizzari Natural Area (PNA): located in the most
heavily populated area of Peninsula Township,
PNA offers a place to walk and hike in a natural
and peaceful setting. With expected residential
growth in the general area, future opportunities
that may present themselves to expand Pelizzari
should be pursued and encouraged.

» Bowers Harbor Park: Bowers Harbor Park is
centrally located, and a new master plan for the
recent park addition sets the stage for many
improvements to increase functionality for both
active and passive recreational activities.

» Haserot Beach and Kelley Park: Haserot Beach
is the only public beach on the Old Mission
Peninsula, and a new boat launch is being
planned at nearby Kelley Park and should
be in place in the next few years. This area
is appropriately focused on water- related
recreational activities that should continue.

¥

Mission Point Lighthouse Park and environs:

82 | Peninsula Township Master Plan

Mission Point Lighthouse, Mission Point
Lighthouse Park, and the adjoining Mission
Point State Park are a major tourist destination.
The parks’ 145 acres include trails, picnic
facilities, and beach access. The lighthouse itself
attracts visitors from all 50 states and abroad.
When residents were asked how the township
should continue to manage the lighthouse,
most were in favor of maintaining the current
practice of coupling maintenance and tourist
promotion.

Initiatives and Action Steps

» Continue steps toward developing an updated
park and recreation plan.

» In conjunction with non-motorized
transportation planning, identify opportunities
to connect the four major park hubs in
Peninsula Township — PNA, Bowers Harbor Park,
Haserot Beach, and Mission Point Lighthouse
Park — to other township facilities such as
Archie Park, also owned by the township, and
Pyatt Lake Natural Area, owned by the Grand
Traverse Regional Land Conservancy.

GOVERNANCE

As described earlier, Peninsula Township is quite
geographically unigue among Michigan townships,
yet it governs and operates like most other
townships in Michigan and nearby states. Township
government has been in place for hundreds of
years and is rooted in New England traditions of
local self-governance.

According to the Michigan Townships Association,
township governments were actually in place in
most Midwestern states before they achieved
statehood, which is why they reflect the six-mile-
square land divisions established in the original
federal land surveys.

Today, the issues that local officials confront on a
daily basis could not have been imagined hundreds
of years ago. The logical question going forward

is whether or not to consider other options for
how to deliver services to residents in the most
responsive and cost-effective way possible.

Michigan law provides for two types of townships,
general law and charter townships. Charter
townships have additional powers, streamlined
administration, and greater protection against



annexation by a city. In the immediate area, charter
townships include Garfield, East Bay, and Eimwood,;
all the rest are general law townships, including
Peninsula Township.

Peninsula Township
could consider is incorporating as a village. There
are substantial complexities to the status of
municipalities in Michigan, but essentially they
include both villages and cities. One important
difference relates to the relationship to the existing
township. In the case of a village, the township is
not replaced, and it retains some governmental
functions. Cities, on the other hand, fully replace
township government. The appeal of creating
a village relates to the ability to exercise more
regulatory authority, an ability toprovide more
local services, and the ability to take responsibility
for public works and utilities. To be a village, an
area must have a population of at least 150 and
a density of 100 or more people per square mile.
Cities have much higher population thresholds.

The issue of municipal incorporation should be
carefully considered after weighing the advantages
and disadvantages. Peninsula Township might
have the tax base necessary to support the full
range of services provided by a Michigan village.
Most importantly, incorporation might provide
the means needed to effectively respond to
current and emerging problems associated with
road maintenance, repair of collapsing roads, and
speed limits. An incorporated Peninsula Township
might also have greater access to grants to fund
infrastructure projects.

Afternatively An alternative to municipal

incorporation is the appointment of a professional
township manager. In a few Michigan Townships,
(where governance issues are complex and
demanding) a township manager is appointed
and performs duties in much the same way as a
city manager does in a municipality. A township
manager would work directly for the Township
Board and oversee the day-to-day operations of
the Township, with department directors reporting
directly to the township manager. Much more
investigation is needed to weigh the pros and cons
of this option.

Initiatives and Action Steps

Convene a study group to evaluate the advantages
and disadvantages to incorporation or hiring

a township manager, then recommend action
accordingly to the township board. This group
should be convened soon after this master plan

is adopted and should be given specific action
steps and time frames. Primary focus should be on
options to consider, precedents from elsewhere

in Michigan via similar townships that have
undergone organizational change, and a complete
list of pros and cons for each alternative. Fvaluative
should be given to the need
for increased control over local road design and
management.

wetght

FEces

haracter, Facilities, & Governance | 83



This page intentionally left blank.

84 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



- o
9. Implementation S

Implementation Summary | 85



The following chart is a summary of
implementation steps necessary to achieve the
vision Peninsula Township has established for itself.
Vision elements described in Chapter 5 are aligned
with initiatives and action steps described previously

TOPIC

VISON AND ORGANIZING

in this document. This material is intended to serve
as a "quick reference” to summarize necessary
steps forward toward implementing community

goals.

LAND USE

PRINCIPLES (FROM CHAPTER 5) g [LRIESS REnHREn
T‘--Recogmze and make" the most of an PDR renewal & Traffic Study, Page 65
island-like geography.
#2 Continue to implement any & Rarld e (e
sl steps policies that reduce build-out +orialiv-ethers ir-the-Sit e Page 90
potential. ’
Page 62
General review of uses and development
standards in all zoning districts.
#5 Ensure th_at future development is Review and update procedures for SUP Page 74
constructed in ways that thoughtfully
approvals and amendments.
balance all land-use needs.
Continue to study and investigate the Page 74
concept of TDR and a commerical center. age
#4-Constructively and collaboratively work
toward the goal of adding carmmercm Pursue development of updated zoning
value to local agricultural products without | to address wineries and add more Page 71
creating areas that add noise and traffic flexibility to other agri-businesses.
congestion. B
#5-Protect the shoreline and wetlands to
the raximurn extent p055|bile through Update shoreline regulations {potentially
both regulation and education centered on | . ludi | : N
vegetation protection and enhancement Inciuding an overiay zoning d'Str!Ct) Page 67
. ' and encourage shoreline protection
Areas like Pyatt Lake and other beach and )
. education.
coastal wetlands are an important buffer
against pollution and flooding.
#= Continue to view alternative energy Update alternative energy provisions
(solar/wind) as having a potential role for in zoning ordinance with more public Page 68
Peninsula Township. input.
. . Pursue development of updated
e drnd (o PRI | o or B o oo |
fy ag . new category of lodging called “country 9
growth and manage traffic. inns. "
Continue steps toward developing an Page 90
updated park and recreation plan. age
#++ Continue developing an outstanding Pursue park expansion opportunties at Page 90
park system throughout Peninsula PNA and elswhere
Township with “hubs” at Mission Point '
Lighthouse Park, Bowers Harbor Park, and — : i .
Pelizzari Natural Area (PNA). In conjunction with non-motorized Page 80

transportation planning, identify
opportunities to connect the four major
park hubs in Peninsula Township.

86 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



VISON AND ORGANIZING
TOPIC PRINCIPLES (FROM CHAPTER 5) ACTION STEPS REFERENCE

Pursue development of a corridor plan and a
study of local roads focused on the identified
strategy elements. This planning is aimed at
identified issues such as:

» Improving safety at the scenic
turnout near Chateau Grand
Traverse;

» Improving certain intersection roads;

#7#Make vehicular travel safer and » ldentifying potential turn lanes,

. . Page 80
more convenient. passing lanes, etc.;

» Addressing parking issues near the
MDNR boat ramp;

» Identifying optimum locations for
future driveways; and

» Evaluating the potential for an
overlay zoning district along M-37 to
establish uniform setbacks and other
development standards.

Form a working group to begin developing
a non-motorized transportation plan to
represent an amendment to this master
plan. This plan includes exploring options
for Safe Routes to School funding and
zoning amendments to require bike parking
improvements related to new construction.

MOBILITY

This non-motorized plan (developed in
coordination with neighbors) should
ultimately become an amendment to this
master plan and include work to evaluate
issues such as:

» Paving roadway shoulders in high-
#& Make pedestrian and bike travel use areas;

safer and more convenient. Page 82

» Considering one-way roads where
feasible;

» Improving crossings at specific road
intersections with M-37;

» Collaborating with Old Mission
Peninsula School and NORTE to
explore Safe Routes to School
projects and potential funding; and

» Conducting additional studies of
local roads (potentially along with
the M-37 corridor plan) to specifically
identify right-of-way widths and
options for non-motorized travel.

Implementation Summary | 87



VISON AND ORGANIZING
TOPIC PRINCIPLES (FROM CHAPTER 5) ACTION STEPS REFERENCE

» Centralize the history of the Old
Mission Peninsula at the Dougherty
House/Log Church and the lighthouse.

» Create a single website to act as
a portal to all things historical and
cultural on the Old Mission Peninsula.

» Create and maintain seasonal displays

#+2 Continue preserving, at the library to encourage an interest
enhancing, and celebrating local in the preservation movement among Page 88
history and culture. younger residents.

» ldentify and implement sustainable
ways to maintain, operate, and
improve the township’s most valuable
historic sites and parks.

» Review the zoning ordinance and
consider new ways to support historic
preservation.

» Continue steps toward developing an
updated park and recreation plan.

» In conjunction with non-motorized
transportation planning, identify
opportunities to connect the four
major park hubs in Peninsula Township

#++ Continue developing an
outstanding park system throughout
Peninsula Township with “hubs”

at Mission Point Lighthouse Park, — PNA, Bowers Harbor Park, Haserot Page 30
Haserot Beach, Bowers Harbor Park, Beach, and Mission Point Lighthouse
and Pelizzari Natural Area. Park — with other township facilities

such as Archie Park, also owned by the
township, and Pyatt Lake Natural Area,
owned by the Grand Traverse Regional
Land Conservancy.

» Launch an effort to formally develop
and adopt a capital improvement plan Page 89
(CIP) for Peninsula Township.

» Convene a study group (appointed
by the township board) to evaluate
the advantages and disadvantages

PLACES; CHARACTER, FACILITIES, AND GOVERNANCE

#5-Operate under the best possible of incorporation as a municipality,
form of government, with suitable or change to a charter township.
and essential public facilities. Alternatively, consider other

management options such as hiring
a township manager. Give evaluative
weight to options that take into
account the need for increased
control over local road design and

Page 91
management.

88 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



Appendix

Appendix | 89



Red Tart Cherry Site Inventory Map Summary

This map depicts site suitability for red tart cherry production. Areas shown in
green are the most desirable areas. Areas shown in yellow require more intensive
management practices to overcome limitations. Areas shown in red have severe
limitations for red tart cherry production which are difficult to overcome by
management practices. The original document should be reviewed for a detailed
review of mapping and an explanation of study methodology and conclusions.

90 | Peninsula Township Master Plan



